SERVI,
Py Q)

g o
53 Helendale Community Services District
26540 Vista Road, Suite C, Helendale, CA 92342

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
Thursday, June 17, 2021 at 6:30 PM

SPECIAL NOTICE OF TELECONFERENCE ACCESSIBILITY

Pursuant to the provisions of Executive Order N-29-20 issued by Governor Gavin Newsom in response to the
COVID-19 pandemic and in an effort to prevent the spread of the virus, Helendale CSD will hold its board
meeting via teleconference. The Helendale CSD Board of Directors will meet in person at the District Office
located at 26540 Vista Rd. Suite C. Helendale, CA 92342. This meeting is open to the public via virtual interface
and can be accessed by clicking on the link below.
www.zoom.com Meeting ID 463 173 8547 Passcode: HCSD
(Dial-in instructions will be provided after registering at the link above)

Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance
1. Approval of Agenda

2. Public Participation

Anyone wishing to address any matter pertaining to District business listed on the agenda or not, may do so at
this time. However, the Board of Directors may not take action on items that are not on the agenda. The public
comment period may be limited to three (3) minutes per person. Any member wishing to make comments may
do so by filling out the speaker’s card at the following link: https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/HKGNLLS.

We request that all speaker’s cards are filled out by 6:25 pm.

3. Consent ltems
a. Approval of Minutes: June 3, 2021, Regular Board Meeting
b. Bills Paid Report
c. Directors Compensation and Expenses
d. COVID-19 Update

4. Reports
a. Directors’ Reports
b. General Manager’s Report

Regular Business:
5. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Adoption of the First Amendment to the Exclusive Franchise Agreement
with Burrtec Waste Industries

6. Public Hearing to Receive Comments and Possible Adoption of Resolution 2021-10: A Resolution of the Helendale
Community Services District Board of Directors Determining That There was No Majority Protest to Proposed
Increases to Refuse Collection Services and Adopting a Rate Schedule for Such Charges and Superseding Existing
Applicable Rates


http://www.zoom.com/
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/HKGNLL8

7. Public Hearing to Receive Comments and Possible Adoption of Resolution 2021-11; a Resolution of the Board of
Directors of the Helendale Community Services District Approving and Adopting the Fiscal Year 2022 Annual Budget
and Authorizing Appropriations Therefrom

8. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Adoption of Resolution 2021-12: A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
Helendale Community Services District Establishing the Appropriations Limit for Fiscal Year 2022 Pursuant to Article
XIIIB of the California State Constitution

9. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Award of Bid for Community Center Paving Project

10. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Approval of a Professional Services Agreement for Construction
Management Services for the Community Center Paving Project

Other Business
11. Requested items for next or future agendas (Directors and Staff only)

12. Adjournment

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(a), any request for a disability-related modification or
accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, that is sought in order to participate in the above agendized
public meeting should be directed to the District's General Manager's office at (760) 951-0006 at least 24 hours
prior to said meeting. The regular session of the Board meeting will be recorded. Recordings of the Board meetings
are kept for the Clerk of the Board's convenience. These recordings are not the official minutes of the Board
meetings.



RV
&E! I?

4 &
£ ®
FAEED o
2 - |
g T2
A& 9

= Helendale Community Services District

Date: June 17, 2021
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #3
Consent ltems

CONSENT ITEMS
a. Approval of Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of June 3, 2021
b. Bills Paid Report
c. Directors Compensation and Expenses
d. COVID Update



é“ﬁ-f‘_"‘.ﬁp
$ o
2 @
8% 3
8 Al

E o g . . . .
=S Helendale Community Services District

Date: June 17, 2021

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager
BY: Cheryl Vermette

SUBJECT: Agenda item #3a
Approval of Minutes: June 3, 2021, Regular Board Meeting




25& _— 6“’6 Minutes of the Helendale Community Services District
2 ot @ REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

z s : June 3, 2021 at 6:30 PM

o =N 26540 Vista Road, Suite C. Helendale, CA 92342

| HELENDALE |

Pursuant to the provisions of Executive Order N-29-20 issued by Governor Gavin Newsom in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic and in an effort to prevent the spread of the virus, Public
Participation in Helendale CSD’s Board Meeting was held via teleconference.

Board Members Roll Call:
Present: President Tim Smith; Vice President Henry Spiller; Secretary, Sandy Haas; Director
Craig Schneider; Director Ron Clark

Staff Members Present: Consultants:

Kimberly Cox, General Manager Steve Kennedy, Legal Counsel

Cheryl Vermette, Program Coordinator Richard Nino, Burrtec Waste

Craig Carlson, Water Operations Manager Blane Sandwick, High Desert Underground
Members of the Public:

There were no members of the public present.

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
The meeting was called to order at 6:31 pm by President Tim Smith, after which the Pledge of
Allegiance was recited.

1. Approval of Agenda
Action: A motion was made by Director Schneider to approve the agenda as presented. The
motion was seconded by Director Haas.
Vote: The motion carried with a 5 — Yes / 0 — No vote

2. Public Participation
None

3. Consent ltems
A. Approval of Minutes: May 20, 2021, Regular Board Meeting
B. Bills Paid Report
C. Directors Compensation and Expenses
D. April Financials
E. COVID-19 Update
Action: A motion was made by Director Clark to approve the consent items as presented. The
motion was seconded by Vice President Spiller.
Vote: The motion carried by the following 5 — Yes / 0 — No vote: President Smith — Yes; Vice
President Spiller — Yes; Director Clark — Yes; Director Schneider — Yes; Director Haas — Yes

4. Reports
A. Directors’ Reports
Director Schneider reported that he had a follow-up to his recap of the JPA recycling meeting.
The High Desert Second Chance gave an update on curbside contamination — they are



finding about 30% is contaminated. Update on SB 1383 they are trying to figure out how to
get money to help with costs for startup.

President Smith reported that he met with the security team about water theft, and it seems
to be under control.

B. General Manager's Report
Discussion: General Manager Cox reported that the Budget Public Hearing will be on June
17, staff is working on the budget document for Board review. The CSDA conference will be
held August 30 — September 2. The well permit for Well 13 should be issued any day. The
Concert in the Park will be held June 19" Asphalt bids are being reviewed by the engineer.
Staff is expecting a recommendation for consideration by the Board at the next meeting (on
6/M17).
Program Coordinator Vermette presented the flyer for the Concerts in the Park. Vermette
then gave the Solid Waste report. Recycling for the month of March was 71.38 tons and
refuse collection was 332.61 tons. The last e-waste pick up was in April with a total of 4,436
pounds recycled. Metal recycling for April totaled 4.67 tons. Green waste recycling for April
totaled 4.32 tons at a cost of 644.62. Our last mattress pickup was in April with a total of 131
mattress recycled and a reimbursement of $284.75.
Water Operations Manager Carlson gave the water report. Staff met with the San Bernardino
County Public Health Department at Well #13 for pre inspection. Staff repaired a service line
leak at the White Elephant Condos and one at Silver Lakes Parkway. Staff completed all
monthly inspections for the month of May and also submitted the Electronic Annual Report
for calendar year 2020. Staff is in the process of compiling 2020 sample results for the 2020
CCR. Staff replaced a leaking 6" hydrant valve, soon to be a fire flow valve at the wastewater
treatment plant.

Presentation

5. Burrtec Presentation to “The Right Stuff’ Community Winners
Discussion: Richard Nino presented background information on the Right Stuff contest as well
as announcing the winners for Helendale: Michelle W. and Carolyn T.

6. Discussion Only Regarding Proposed Solid Waste Increase
Discussion: Each year Burrtec presents the CPI increase for solid waste pick up services

Contract requires notice no later than 4/1. Section 10.05 outlines the annual formula-based
compensation adjustment: “The maximum rates set forth in Attachment D, Residential Bin and
Commercial Services may be adjusted annually effective each July 1st by an amount equal to
the calendar year annual twelve-month mean average change in the Consumer Price Index
(CPI)...It is understood by both parties that the maximum annual CPI increase shall be no greater
than four percent (4%) in any given adjustment period.” Previously the market basis for the CPI
increase has been the LA- Orange County index. Burrtec has agreed to use the Riverside-San
Bemardino-Ontario market beginning this year moving forward. Counsel drafted a contract
addendum to memorialize that change. The rate increase will come to the Board for approval on
June 17. General Manager Cox presented the proposed increase which included a $0.31
increase in cart service; a $0.07 increase in the recycling fee; a $0.04 increase in the admin fee;
no change in the 218-recovery fee; a $0.04 increase in the franchise fee; and a $0.37 fee for
green waste hauling. The total proposed increase is $0.83 per month. Proposed CPl increase is
1.87%. General Manager Cox presented only the residential rates, commercial rates vary



significantly based upon service. Public notices were mailed to all affected rate payers. The
public hearing is scheduled for June 17. The public hearing will be held in virtual and in-person.
To date Staff has not received any inquires or written protests, some initial comments were made
on Facebook after the notice was mailed.
Action: There was no action on this item.

. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Canceliation of the September 2 Meeting
Discussion: The annual CSDA conference is scheduled for August 30-Sept 2. This conflicts

with our September 2 Regular Board meeting. Currently, three Board members and GM will be
attending. Staff does not have anything critical scheduled for that meeting. The Board was asked
if they wished to cancel this meeting. The Board discussed and decided to cancel the September
2 meeting.

Action: A motion was made by Vice President Spiller to cancel the September 2, 2021 Regular
Board Meeting. The motion was seconded by Director Haas.

Vote: The motion carried by the following 5 — Yes / 0 — No vote: President Smith— Yes; Vice
President Spiller — Yes; Director Clark — Yes; Director Schneider — Yes; Director Haas — Yes

. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Adoption of Resolution 2021-09: A Resolution of the
Board of Directors of the Helendale Community Services District Approving Award of a Sole
Source Contract to high Desert Underground for Well 13 Potable Pipeline Project.

Discussion: General Manager Cox asked Program Coordinator Vermette to go over the grant

costs for the Well 13 project. Vermette went over the grant share and the District share required.
Vermette also went through the remaining items and projected costs related to the Well 13
project. General Manager Cox presented a map of the location of the well and the proposed
pipeline. She shared that the project has several complicated elements including a slurried drop
section in the wash, blow offs in a vault, the connection with the existing AC pipeline, severing
Well 5 from the system and capping the line, and working around the existing SLA non-potable
pipeline. The pipeline will fraverse the property from the new well to approximately 1000’ south
of Well 6. The pipeline construction will be ductile iron which has a 50-year life span and will
allow additional connections for other future wells in the area. The cost of ductile iron is more
than other options. High Desert Underground has unique qualifications to complete this project.
They have extensive experience with installing ductile iron, they have previously completed
ductile iron installation for the District, they have an intimate knowledge of our system and related
hydraulics and functions. They have gained knowledge from non-potable connection for the
same project. HDU also has the ability for flexible engineering design on the go. Time is of the
essence on this project, the pipeline must be completed prior to well completion and supplies
are not readily available. The District had hoped to have the well online for summer production,
however the CEQA process took longer than expected. The District could not make an award
until after the CEQA was completed. We are now awaiting the well permit. The pump and motor
are being pre-designed, and Staff is hoping to get the bid out in the next couple of weeks. The
well site completion will include a well building and fence, SCADA connection and power. The
District is currently working with Southern California Edison on the power.

Action: A motion was made by Director Schneider to adopt Resolution 2021-09 approving award
of sole source contract to High Desert Underground for Well 13 Potable Pipeline. The motion
was seconded by Director Clark.

Vote: The motion carried by the following 5 — Yes / 0 — No vote: President Smith— Yes; Vice
President Spiller — Yes; Director Clark — Yes; Director Schneider — Yes; Director Haas — Yes



Other Business

Requested items for next or future agendas (Directors and Staff only)
None

President Smith called for a brief recess at 7:24 pm to be followed by closed session which began
at 7:45 pm. Legal Counsel Kennedy did not attend the closed session.

Closed Session
The Board met in Closed Session. The Board conferred with its special Counsel, Wes Miliband of
the law firm of Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo.

10.

Conference with Legal Counsel

Government Code Section 54956.9(d)1)

City of Barstow, et a. v. City of Adelanto, et al.,
Riverside County Superior Court Case No. 208568

President Smith adjourned Closed Session at 8:03 pm and reconvened Open Session at 8:04 pm.

1.

12.

Report of Closed Session ltems
Discussion: General Manager Cox reported that the Board met in closed session and there
were no reportable actions resulting from closed session.

Adjournment

Action: President Smith adjourned the meeting at 8:056 pm

Submitted by: Approved By:

Tim Smith, President Sandy Haas, Secretary

The Board actions represent decisions of the Helendale Community Services District Board of
Directors. A digital voice recording and copy of the PowerPoint presentation are available upon
request af the Helendale CSD office.



Helendale Community Services District

Date: June 17, 2021

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

BY: Sharon Kreinop, Senior Account Specialist

SUBIJECT: Agenda item #3 b
Consent Items: Updated Bills Paid and Presented for Approval

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Updated Report Only. Receive and File

STAFF REPORT:

Staff issued 36 checks and 13 EFT’s totaling $265,578.45

Total Cash Available: 6/14/21 6/03/21
Cash $6,608,121.90 $6,573,801.88
Checks/EFT’s Issues $ 265,578.45 S 186,621.48

Investment Report
The Investment Report shows the status of the invested District funds. The current interest rate is

0.03% for LAIF and 0.10% for the CBB Sweep Account for May 2021. Interest earned May 2021 on
CBB Sweep Account is $242.28.



Helendale CSD

Issued
Date Number

Description

Bank Account: 251229590 - CBB Checking

05/27/2021
05/28/2021
0B/02/2021
06/02/2021
06/02/2021
06/02/2021
06/02{2021
06/02/2021
06/02/2021
06/02/2021
06/02/2021
06/02/2021
06/02/2021
06/02/2021
06/02/2021
06/02/2021
06/02/2021
06/02/2021
06/02/2021
06/02/2021
06/02/2021
06/02/2021
06/02/2021
06/08/2021
06/05/2021
06/05/2021
06/09/2021
06/09/2021
06/09/2021
06/09/2021
06/09/2021
06/09/2021
06/09/2021
06/09/2021
06/09/2021
06/09/2021

06/13/2021
06/13/2021
06/13/2021
06/13/2021
05/27/2021
05/27/2021
05/27/2021
06/04/2021
06/04/2021

Bank Transaction Report

California State Disbursement Unit
Mojave Resource Management, LLC
True Liberty Protection Services Inc.
ACI Payments, Inc

Amazon Capitol Services

AVCOM Services Inc.

Boot Barn Inc.

CA-NV Section, AWWA

County of San Bernardino

Craig Carlson

Hartford Life

Inland Water Works Supply Co.

K. C. Fabrication & Restoration
Lakeside Heating and Air Conditioning
Lowe's inc.

Online Information Services, Inc
Parkhouse Tire, Inc.

Shred-it USA LLC

Steve A. Filarsky, Attorney at Law
Tyler Technologies, Inc.

USA of So. California

Sonic Systems, Inc

Fedak & Brown LLP

Jean Thomas

Bank of America

Burrtec Waste Industries Inc

Choice Builder

Citizens Business Bank

Desert Service Station Maintenance
Frontier Communications

Frontier Communications

Inland Water Works Supply Co.
O'Reilly Auto Parts

Print Mart

LISA Blue Book

Plumbers Depot Inc.

SW Gas ACH 4-Plex Acct # 910000817466

SW Gas Community Center Acct # 91000010177
SW Gas Water Shop Acct # 9100001037540
SW Gas ACH WWTP Acct # 910000010195

SCE ACH Community Center 700218740906

SCE ACH Sod Farm Acct 700255337588

SCE ACH Well 6,7,8,9 & 2 Acct 700620711734

To record CalPERS Health Premium
CalPERS Classic Pmt PPE 5/9/21

Bills Paid and Presented for Approval

Transaction Detail

Issued Date Range: 05/27/2021 - 06/14/2021

Amount

-230.76
-20,339.40
-7,691.00
57.70
-60.12
-70.00
222,93
-100.00
-160.00
-331.00
-274.77
-711.46
9,769.48
-333.00
-1,154,09
-17.10
-771.97
-84.57
-560.00
-112.00
-57.85
-1,455.90
-8,476.00
-1,500.00
-5,459,09
-124.18
-1,144.82
-101,312.38
-320.29
-49,59
-133.81
-68.64
-341.93
-107.64
-899 47
-73,455.57

-75.32
-22.91
-11.00
-25.84
-1,190.84
-1,172.61
-420.33
-17,428.28
-7,116.13

Type

Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check
Check

EFT
EFT
EFT
EFT
EFT
EFT
EFT
EFT
EFT

Cleared Date Range: -

Module

Accounts Payahle
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payahle
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payabie
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable

General Ledger
General Ledger
General Ledger
General Ledger
General Ledger
General Ledger
General Ledger
General Ledger
General Ledger



issued
Date

06/04/2021
06/02/2021
06/02/2021
066/02/2021

Number Description
CalPERS PEPRA Pmit PPE 5/9/21
To record Global Merchant Fees Acct 4366 -
To record Global Merchant Fees Acct 4367 -
Ta record Tasc Flex Claim Pmt - PPE 5/23/21

Amount Type
-1,421,70 EFT

-475.52 EFT
-1,626.06 EFT

-533.33 EFT

Bank Account 251229590 Total: (50)
Report Total: (50)

Module
General Ledger
General Ledger
General Ledger
General Ledger
-269,578.45

-269,578.45



Alewnung
- ia8uey 2qeQ ponss|

S¥'815'592- 05 :1e30) Moday

P66ISTE- 14" 143
TSBSO'VPEZ- st [y
wnouny wno) adA) uopdesuesy
St8L5'592- 0s ‘20 Loday

5875592 05 -

Junoury unay

Sy'RL5'592- 05 __‘jeioL Hoday

St'B/5°592- 0s

wnoury junc)

BUppaY) - gdd W G5y G0TTI-66 66
WROWY YsE)

UNCITY yueg

uoday uoppesuel) yueg



sERVIC,

§
1 8
Yon
[ &

tEmEmmE Helendale Community Services District

Date: June 17, 2021

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

BY: Cheryl Vermette, Program Coordinator

SUBJECT: Agenda item #3c
Directors’ Compensation and Expenses




/zo2

- $

$] -~ ¢logzem [

810 804

BuwBpo (moL

Bleap 1®0L

SOl [oL  |sBugesl rmoy

. “ o
ey pemwang

Weusg and
10 uopduaseq

10 Usoag Ad PaiLIaAoB Bunesiy jlgnd ¥

aaz

weuag ojgng
1o uopdusseq

15% MmOl Aq paweaoct Bupesi d)iqrd Ty

ez

igeuag alignd
40 uojdpose

RY waig A pewesob Bunesi siland 1y

juaA3

Weuag olangd
Jo uojidyoseg

B Usoig fq pawwiaaoll Bueeiy dllqng

jusag

Weueg ollknd
1o Uopduosag

SuORRIEd0 PUTEA M Wews Buleery o

ez

S80UIBNE OSOH

Weuet olgng
Jo uopduoseg

Wy Umosg £q paweaot Bupeap oand

5Ll

Bugse gOg Je|nbiey

uaA3

L20TfErR

SIUEPISRI PUB BIIDUBA UM 100l

neusg oqngd
Jo uonduoseg

»FUAAIBURSDY SN 18 doy 0

giel

JojIRly sJanuIeq

WaAz

rvir]

epusly gog ssnos|q

jueLeq Hqng
J0 uopduassq

suopaisde UGG % W Buissi o

gl

WO yim Bupssyy

uery

Leoe/e

esaulsng QSIH

ijeueg Jqng
o vopdiosag

Juaazfupaey 0lland 19 uoge)uesadey

_ _ g4l

8101 Bupped Jo4 Bujuedo pig

weag

leoLes

epueby Q04 s8nIsIq

ijeusg dHdngd
10 uepdisea

Auangfiusag ofqnd & Uoj diy 19

oY SIolLYY

juaay

1Zozees

D dxg

10lRD

uilpoT)

UGREUBKIXANICRALosRg osURthG

120Z1L18 Buipuzy poped Aed

YIHONOA SSNIXT HIANIW GAvVOd LOMLSITO SIDIANIE ALINNWNOD ATVANI1IH




TZ/T/T 3AR33Y0 3|IW/95°0¢$ 18 palejnayed aBea|in

Bupasw pieog xau sy 1e pajuasaid 3q 03 paunbal podas |BQUA 1O USTIM,

1202 % 0 Nnr
U AIRD T

HIHONOA ISNIdXI YIFNTN aNVO8d

W&O\nU QQW\ T

1O141S1d SIDIAYIS ALINNWINOD ITVANIIIH

pieOq 3Y] JO FVWULILLOD I0H Py i
510333430 jo pieog aUl Aq pasoudde-aud SBunsay oy «1H1510 01 pajejps werdosd Suiuied] J1eujwas/Poualyue) (3
LS 3L Jo suoielado 10 suoldUNg BUIAOIAL J21ELW U] SISISUL LM uofieziueBio/m Supsaly it » PIEOY £JT0S UO uoneusauday g
QS2H Sunoaye vopdlpsuni/m Apoq |eJapad 10 3)e3s ‘|eanT jo Bunasy ;| «IUBAZ/RUNBAW AgNnd 18 uopRussaiday 1
1PUISIJ A p3Ielal JUBYNSUOI Jo A3Uloye ‘solpne/m Susa H «JUBAZ JIgnd :g
suonesadg 1ousig aJ Wo/m Sunssp o 19y umo.g Aq pawanos Suadsia Algnd Y
:sapoBany) asuadx3 sauo0Bbany asuadxg .
— ] P ageq meusis
/ $ingeusigiaquisy py . ~4
DUQ_ re % n (701 _.:EPI\\ lioshed 104 s$33p4d i 30
. —\ Sui@po f
s|eay
afeaily s|ee] ISIUIWIWO fsajoN
1jauag Ajgngd
FUETE]
Wlauag J)gng
uadAg
1yausg diqng
o -Juaag
1y3uag Jgnd
juaag
WRuea Nignd
FITETE]
Wauag algqng
355 4 B .mu > f
LA TRT VGTOE et/ G
X (w7 | weues wang -
Y~ ;q;n%moﬁ. “1727] Wl T 7T
2 Letep = >ﬁ_‘ yauag dqngd ,
£
. V)\.QQW«Q YIS D wena| L/ B\\K
D.L yauag Jang
1 7.
7 oo
=7 \Uﬁw A ] 7o ] weAl[ /T g
_ =) ~ 7 Jaid u\u\w Wawgangnd| ..H iy
WUP\ 7 E :..Vﬁdv;\ \W»»\QUW.\ JUSA3 Q!\.h\lh
Asodayey) "dxg 1/Y10 w..—ﬂuo._ s[ealy afeaqn uoleue|dxafuondudsag esuadxg “a1ed
21eq



TZ/1/T 9AN93Y9 aw/95°D$ e patejnojed sTea)y

s40122.1Q Jo pleog 3yl Aq paaocadde-aid Sunasiy
PUISIA Y3 jo suonesado Jo suopauny SUIASIAUL JS1IEW Ul SISIBU) yum uonezjuedio/m Supsaw
aSDH Supaaye uondIPsUNI/m Apoq [eapad Jo 3lels ‘3ot Jo Bunsaiy |

Bupesw paeog 1xsU Uyl 1e pajuesasd 3q 0] paiinba podad [BGIBA JO UM,

paeog 243 JO VUL J0H PY 4

P151g Aq paiel=d Jue NSUoD 10 Asuwiope ‘soypne/m Bupasy :H

suopiesado JouIsIq a1 WO/M BupRa 1o
:sa11083}

asuadxg ) sauofiayny asuadxy

»HAI51] 03 pate|as weaSoud Buiuied fieuiwes/sousyuc)
+ PJ420] £DTQS UO Ucplejusaaday g
»3U3AZ/Supaay Jljand 1e uoneluasaaday 3

#IUSAT D1iqNg i@

Py umodg Ag paLusacs Bunaaaw sgnd v

pd

) ajeg
.u._-_am 1S JOUIDIN pleoy

%

m H le30L _.__Ew

anjeusis

Hoahed Jo; ssa0ad o3 3ol

Buidpo
s|eapy
adeaIn s|ej04.

$SJUBLIIIOD fSTJON

~ oL

Iyauag Jignd

UBA

Wausg Aland

juaaj

14BUSE JGnd

jusaj

ysuag Jljgnd

jusag

yaueg Jgng

JUzAY

Wousg Mgnd

usng
hy

Wauag Jqnd

Juond

Jjausg gng

wang

Busg 21Ign
Wjausg Agnd ./

i

WSAZ Zu \3

")

yauRg MH|qhg

s

WP vse\m\ 7S

uaAg / \ N

K038y “dx3

B0

Suidpoq s|eay a8eaiNl uoljeuejdx3 fuondiiosag asuadxy

- - ajeq b\N\Q\ / Lv._.v\@n\ ETETY]

YIHINOA ISNIDXI YIFATIN QUvYOd
LD1YLSIA 5ADIAYTS ALINNWINOD JTVaNTTIH



SERV)
AT

: 7
2
g%i"q

£

RiLsSo

™ Helendale Community Services District

Date: June 17, 2021
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #3e
COVID Pandemic Update

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Receive and file.

STAFF REPORT:

As of June 8, San Bernardino County remains in the Orange stage. On June 15, the tiers are to be
eliminated. As of June 8, the latest update, the state-wide positivity rate is 0.8% over the prior
seven days. San Bernardino County’s positivity rate is 1.%. There continues to be confusion as to
what rules will be in place after June 15. The District will continue to maintain compliance with
the guidance to the extent possible.

District receivables as of June 14, are $67,001 which is approximately $10,000 higher than last
report.

Attached is a letter sent to State officials based upon a request from CSDA.
FISCAL IMPACT: $67,001.26 in outstanding receivables

ATTACHMENTS: State COVID map
Letter to State officials regarding Covid Funding



ecanomy/#caunty-status
»Tab W Veseris PuTraining.. £ Stong Authenticat. T Gmail 8 YouTube B¥ Maps B Suneyor Research..

California’s county risk levels

WIESPREAD — MINIMAL

" LwENEET cperstions "AIEINTA0N SASINESS SpEITEINE
maFicalTE are open with modfsenore

WiEny nen-essertiai ingons Some non-gsgental indoor Sre ad
SUBINEES BRErationg ore piosed business cparsliors aie siosed BT 35

STATRWIRE METRICE
2.0 Naw COVID-18 positive cases por day per 100K

0.8% Positi &
Reglonal [GU Capacity iy e Gy veregel
34.1% ICU avadabiity
Fnd & county
¥ -]
&3 Click on W e mag tor updated metrics
COUNTY RISK LEVELS
Courtics  Fopulaton
! Substantial 3 284773 %
.I Moderaka 3 HMEGL 124 e 36 5%
Minimal | 25.180.253 621

Last Updated B/B-2021 -

0 Close
San Bernardino County

Southern California Region

Eligibie to exit Regional Order effective 1/25/2021

Was placed on Regional Stay Home Order 12/6/2020 3:59 P2

COUNTY RISK L FVF]

Moderate*
Some indoor business operations are open with modifications

COUNTY MFTRICS

1.5 New COVID-19 cases per day per 100K
1.8 Adjusted case rate for tier assignment
1.0% Posttivity rate {7/-day average)

1.2% Health equity quariile pcsitivily rate



QERVIC'¢

Helendale Community Services District

26540 Vista Road, Ste.B - P.O. Box 359
Helendale, California 92342-0359
(760) 951-0006 Fax (760} 951-0046

7y

COMMUN,
101510 %

June 9, 2021

The Honorable Gavin Newsom The Honorahle Toni Atkins The Honorable Anthony Rendon
Governor, State of California Senate President pro Tempore Speaker of the Assembly

State Capitol, Room 205 State Capitol, Room 219 State Capitol, First Floor
Sacramento, CA 95814 Sacramento, CA 95814 Sacramento, CA 95814

RE: COVID-19 Fiscal Relief for Independent Special Districts
Dear Governor Newsom, Senate President Pro Tempore Atkins, and Speaker Rendon:

The Helendale Community Services District, along with a coalition of 750 stakeholders, is in strong support of the $100
million for special district COVID-19 impacts.

Our critical sector employees have been on the job since day one of the pandemic providing water and wastewater
services to our small rural community of 6500 people. The District had to lay off over 20% of the non-essential staff due
to loss of revenue. Currently our revenue shortfalls are over $321,000. For a small district this has created unexpected
challenges of delayed maintenance and capital improvement project, staff's emotional and mental health while
continuing to work in a critical infrastructure sector during the COVID-19 pandemic has been challenging.

We strongly support the legislative proposal for one-time relief funding for special districts who can demonstrate
financial need due to the COVID-19 pandemic and ask the Administration to also support its inclusion in the final budget
and that it be accessible only to independent special districts. Additionally, we ask for your support in extending future
relief through American Rescue Act funds to address needs that continue beyond proposed relief funding.

Special districts provide vital services to local communities and were instrumental in protecting the public’s health and
safety throughout the pandemic. We ask for your strong support to ensure the independent special districts that
responded to the needs of our communities during the pandemic are provided the support necessary to meet the
next challenges we know are ahead. Please include the above funding for special districts in the final 2021-22 Budget
Act. We thank you for your consideration of this request.

e

cC: The Honorable Senator Grove, 16' Senate District
The Honorable Thurston Smith, Assembly 33 District

Kind Regards,

Kimberly Cox, DPA
General Manager



20181510

"‘é |

[EE Helendale Community Services District

DATE: June 17, 2021
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #5
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Adoption of the First Amendment to the
Exclusive Franchise Agreement with Burrtec Waste Industries

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval

STAFF REPORT:

The Bureau of Labor Statics (BLS) developed a new market index for the Riverside-San Bernardino-
Ontario area. For the last two years the District has reference this index for employee related costs.
While data is only updated every other month, it provides a more accurate analysis of costs
increases affecting local residents.

Each year the District receives a cost increase from Burrtec for solid waste services which is based
upon the BLS data for the LA-Orange counties areas per the terms of the contract most recently
adopted in 2018. Burrtec has agreed to begin using the new market index in its annual rate request
beginning with this current year that will be effective 7/1/2021.

District General Counsel has drafted the document for the Board’s consideration. The amendment
has been reviewed by Burrtec and they have indicated they have no issues with this change. Once
the Board approves the Amendment, it will be provided to Burrtec for signature.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

REQUESTED ACTION: Approve First Amendment to the Exclusive Franchise Agreement with
Burrtec Waste Industries

ATTACHMENTS: Amendment



FIRST AMENDMENT TO
EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

This FIRST AMENDMENT TO EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT is entered
into as of the 17th day of June, 2021, by and between HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT, a public agency organized under the laws of the State of California (“District”), and
BURRTEC WASTE INDUSTRIES, INC., a California corporation (“Contractor”).

RECITALS

A Effective January 1, 2018, District and Contractor entered into an Exclusive
Franchise Agreement (“Agreement”) for solid waste handling and recycling services.

B. Section 10.05 of the Agreement sets forth the manner in which Contractor’s rates
may be annually adjusted by the applicable Consumer Price Index.

C. District and Contractor wish to amend the Agreement to change the applicable
Consumer Price Index from the Los Angeles-Riverside-Orange Counties region to the Riverside-
San Bernardino-Ontario area effective July 1, 2021.

COVENANTS

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the preceding Recitals and the mutual Covenants

contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

Section 1. RATE ADJUSTMENTS. Pursuant to Section 15.10 of the Agreement, the

first paragraph of Section 10.05 of the Agreement is hereby amended effective July 1, 2021, to

provide as follows:

“The maximum rates set forth in Attachment D, Residential Bin and Commercial
Services may be adjusted annually effective each July 1% by an amount equal to the
calendar year annual twelve-month mean average change in the Consumer Price
Index for All Urban Consumers for the Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario Area as
published by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics for
the previous calendar annual twelve-month period (“CPI””). It is understood by both
parties that the maximum annual CPI increase shall be no greater than four percent
(4%) in any given adjustment period.”



Section 2. STATUS OF AGREEMENT. Except as expressly set forth herein, all other

provisions of the Agreement, including Sections 10.05.a. and 10.05.b., shall remain in full force and

effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have caused this First Amendment fo
Exclusive Franchise Agreement to be executed by their respective officers as of the date first written

above.

DISTRICT

By:

Tim Smith, President, Board of Directors
Helendale Community Services District

ATTEST:

By:

Sandy Haas, Secretary
Helendale Community Services District

CONTRACTOR

By:

Cole Burr, President
Burrtec Waste Industries, Inc.



gﬁﬂ ERV/e e

@ﬁ

g

,"J..

EyCommuy
:uzsm“:'

Helendale Community Services District

DATE: June 17, 2021
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #6
Public Hearing to Receive Comments and Possible Adoption of Resolution 2021-10:
A Resolution of the Helendale Community Services District Board of Directors
Determining That There Was No Majority Protest to Proposed Increases to Refuse
Collection Services and Adopting a Rate Schedule for Such Charges and Superseding
Existing Applicable Rates

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
None

STAFF REPORT:

Per the contract with Burrtec Waste Industries, a request for a Consumer Prices Index {CPI)
increase is submitted to the District each year prior to April for review and acceptance. The
amount of this contemplated increase for FY2022 for residential customers is $0.83 per month.
This increase, tied to an economic index published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS), validates
that the requested increase is appropriate to cover the increased cost of doing business. It
includes such factors as fuel and other commodities. After the Board accepted the request Staff
began the Proposition 218 notification process which included a public meeting held 6/3/2021,
and a public hearing held on 6/17/2021.

Section 10.05 of the contract as amended in the prior Board action outlines the annual formula-
based compensation adjustment as follows:

“The maximum rates set forth in Attachment D, Residential Bin and Commercial Services
may be adjusted annually effective each July 1t by an amount equal to the calendar year
annual twelve-month mean average change in the Consumer Price index for All Urban
Consumers for the tos-Angeles-Riverside-Orange Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario area as
published by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics for the
previous calendar year annual twelve-months period (CPI”)...It is understood by both parties
that the maximum annual CPl increase shall be no greater than four percent (4%) in any
given adjustment period.”

Attached for the Board’s information is the letter requesting the CPl increase per the contract
terms above. The noted CPI for FY2022 is 1.87% which is below the maximum increase allowed by



the contract of 4%. The CPl increase last Fiscal Year was 3.07% and an increase in recycling costs
of $1.77.

The breakdown for the residential CPl and other related increases are represented on the chart
below. Commercial rates vary significantly and are represented in the attachments to this staff
report.

Fee Current Proposed Difference
Cart service 16.49 16.80 0.31
w/ESFR
Recycling Fee 1.77 1.84 0.07
Admin Billing Fee 2.36 2.40 0.04
218 Fee 0.07 0.07 0 -
Franchise Fee 2.29 2.33 0.04
Green 0 0 37
Waste Hauling

$0.83

A new fee has been added this year to help cover the hauling of green waste that is dropped off at
the recycling center. Burrtec has increased the fee this year and the existing rate structure does
not include a component for the green waste disposal. During the pilot period, Burrtec gave an
exceptional rate so the District could determine if the program met a need within the community.
The disposal for green waste, as with all other residential disposal charges, is covered under the
ESFR fee that is place on the property tax bill each year. This fund will close out the year in the red
with revenues from the small reserve fund, currently at approximately $320,000, covering the
deficit. The upcoming budget is equally as tight. With the green waste service open to all
residents, it is appropriate to add the $4.44 annual charge to the trash bill to cover hauling.
Further, it is anticipated that this program will satisfy some of the onerous waste diversion
mandates that will be implemented later this year. If this program is accepted in lieu of additional
curbside containers, it will save money for our customers by not having to pay for an additional
can and sort food waste, etc.

FISCAL IMPACT: Increases as outlined in Staff report and public notice.
REQUESTED ACTION: Conduct the public hearing and consider adoption of Resclution 2021-10
ATTACHMENTS: Resolution 2021-10

Mailed Public notification for rate increase
Burrtec Letter requesting rate increase dated March 15, 2021



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-10
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS DETERMINING THAT THERE WAS NO MAJORITY PROTEST TO
PROPOSED INCREASES TO REFUSE COLLECTION SERVICES CHARGES AND ADOPTING A RATE
SCHEDULE FOR SUCH CHARGES AND SUPERSEDING EXISTING APPLICABLE RATES

WHEREAS, the Helendale Community Services District (“District”) is a Community
Services District located within the County of San Bernardino and is organized and operates
pursuant to the California Government Code Section 61000 et seq.

WHEREAS, on or about June 21, 2006, the Local Agency Formation Commission of the
County of San Bernardino (“LAFCO”} adopted Resolution No. 2927 which made determinations on,
and approved the incorporation of, the District, which was subsequently approved by the electorate
pursuant to an election held on November 7, 2006, and thereafter confirmed by LAFCO pursuant to
its adoption of Resolution No. 2951 on December 4, 2006, all of which operated to authorize the
formation of the District as the successor agency for the performance of water, sewer,
streetlighting, refuse collection, parks and recreation, and graffiti abatement functions and services
within the prior County Service Area 70, Improvement Zones B and C (the “District Boundaries”).

WHEREAS, LAFCO Resolution No. 2951 specifically authorizes the District to collect, transfer,
and dispose of solid waste and to provide solid waste handling services, including but not limited to
source reduction, recycling, and composting activities, pursuant to Division 30 (commencing with
Section 40000), and consistent with Section 41821.2 of the Public Resources Code {“Solid Waste
Services”), within the District Boundaries.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority expressly set forth in LAFCO Resolution No. 2951, the
District entered into an Exclusive Franchise Agreement with Burrtec Waste Industries, Inc.
(“Burrtec”), effective December 1, 2011, and updated effective January 1, 2018 (the “Franchise
Agreement”), which granted to Burrtec the exclusive right, privilege, and franchise to provide
certain Solid Waste Services (as described in the Franchise Agreement} within the District
Boundaries, subject to the terms and conditions of said Franchise Agreement.

WHEREAS, the Franchise Agreement established a rate schedule for the refuse collection
service charges for the Solid Waste Services, subject to potential annual adjustment in an amount
equal to the calendar year annual twelve-month mean average change in the Consumer Price Index
for All Urban Consumers for Los Angeles-Riverside-Orange Counties as published by the United
States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, for the previous calendar year annual
twelve-month period {(“CPI”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Franchise Agreement, Burrtec submitted to the District a written
request not later than April 1, 2021, for a CPl-based rate adjustment of 1.87 percent to the refuse
collection service charges for Residential Cart Solid Waste Services resulting in an increase of $0.31



per month totaling $3.72 per year per residential customers.

WHEREAS, the cost of processing residential recycled materials and the value to resell such
items for beneficial use has significantly diminished over the last years, however, an increase in
processing costs is realized in the increased cost of recycling of $0.07 cents per month or $0.84 per
year.

WHEREAS, the cost of hauling green waste has increase over previous years, and was
historically paid from the ESFR revenue, a fee has been included of $0.37 cents per month or $4.44
per year.

WHEREAS, the revenue raised by the proposed rate increases to the refuse collection service
charges will be used to provide adequate Solid Waste Services within the District Boundaries and
do not exceed the total cost of such services.

WHEREAS, the District is allowed to collect certain administrative fees in relation to
residential cart service for billing and processing residential solid waste customer payments and
other related costs of $0.04 cents, in addition to a franchise fee that has also increased by $0.04
cents, and the costs of printing and postage to mail notifications of $0.07 per customer per month
which is unchanged from last year for a total cost increase of $0.83 per residential customer per
month or $9.96 per year.

WHEREAS, this action is necessary to meet operation and administration expenses for refuse
disposal and recycling programs, and to obtain funds necessary to maintain adequate Solid Waste
Services within the District Boundaries, and is therefore exempt from the requirements of the
California Environmental Quality Act as provided by Public Resources Code Section 21080(b){8).

WHEREAS, rates for commercial solid waste customers varies by numerous factors and are
outlined on Exhibit A based upon service specifics

WHEREAS, the amount of the rates and charges hereby adopted do not exceed the
reasonable anticipated costs for the corresponding services provided by the District, and therefore
the fees imposed hereby to not qualify as a “tax” under Article XIlIC, Section 1{e) of the California
Constitution or Section 50076 of the California Government Code, and the actions taken herein are
exempt from the additional notice and public meeting requirements of the Brown Act pursuant to
Government Code Section 54954.6{a)(1){A) and (B).

WHEREAS, the District has satisfied all of the substantive and procedural prerequisites of
Articles XIlIC and XIIID of the California Constitution in establishing the rates and charges set forth
herein, including but not limited to, the identification of the parcels upon which the rates and
charges will be imposed; the calculation of the rates and charges; the mailing of written notice to
the record owners of each parcel upon which the rates and charges will be imposed describing the
amount thereof, the basis upon which the rates and charges were calculated, the reason for the
rates and charges, and the date, time, and location of the public hearing to be held thereon; and
the conducting of a public hearing on the rates and charges not less than 45 days after mailing the
notice during which all protests against the fee were considered.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Helendale Community
Services District does hereby resolve and determine that the written protests against the rates and



charges set forth herein that were received by the District prior to the close of the public hearing
hereon represented less than a majority of the parcels subject to the rates and charges set forth
below and, thus, the District’s Board of Directors further finds that the public interest and necessity
requires the adoption of the following rates and charges for Solid Waste Services, as well as
affirmation and ratification of all prior rates and charges previously approved and/or adopted by
the District’s Board of Directors:

SECTION 1. REFUSE COLLECTION SERVICE CHARGES

The rates for residential and commercial refuse collection service charges for Solid Waste
Services within the District Boundaries are hereby established in the amounts listed in Exhibit “A”
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

SECTION 2. GENERAL MANAGER AUTHORITY

The District’s General Manager is hereby authorized to take any and all actions necessary to
carry out the intent of the District’s Board of Directors as is stated herein and as otherwise required
in order to comply with applicable law.

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE

This Resolution shall take effect on July 1, 2021, and shall supersede any and all prior
resolutions and ordinances applicable to the District only to the extent expressly inconsistent with
the terms hereof.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Helendale Community Services
District at a regular meeting held on June 17, 2021, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN;:

By:

Tim Smith, Vice President
Attest:

Sandy Haas, Secretary



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT REFUSE COLLECTION SERVICE CHARGES

The Board of Directors will be considering an $0.83 cent per month increase in weekly residential curbside trash service
and various increases in commercial rates based upon fevel of sarvice.

Article XilID of the California Consfitution requires the Helendale Community Services District (HCSD) to send notification of a proposed rate increase
to all owners and tenants of real property within HCSD's service area who would be directly liable to pay for refuse collection services at least 45 days
prior to a Public Hearing at which adoption of the proposed rate increases will be considered. In accordance with those requirements, please be
advised that HCSD is proposing an increase in its refuse collection service charges. This Notice identifies the amount of the proposed rate increases;
the basis upon which the proposed increases were calculated; the reason for the proposed rate increases; the date, time, and location of a public
hearing on the proposed rate increases; and the manner in which all persons opposed to the proposed increases may object and/or file a written
protest thereto. Consequently, please be advised that this document shall serve as formal notification to you that HCSD's Bodrd of Directors will hold
a Public Meeting on June 3, 2021, and a Public Hearing on June 17, 2021, on the proposed rate increases described herein, at 6:30 p.m., in the
HCSD Board Room located at 26540 Vista Road, Suite C, Helendale, Califomia and will also be available via teleconference at www.zoom.com
Meeting ID: 463 173 8457 Passcode; HCSD

INFORMATION ABOUT THE CHARGES

A. Basis upon which the charges were calculated. The HCSD Board of Directors has previously determined that the collection and disposal of
refuse in its service area shall be performed by Burrtec Waste Industries, Inc. {“Burrtec”), under the terms of an exclusive franchise agreement.
The monthly residential curbside collection charge is comprised of six components: {1} an amount for the administration and operation of
automated curbside refuse collection service, which includes the provision of collection carts - a 95 gallon refuse cart and up to two 65-galion
recycling carts - with weekly pick-up service; (2) the cost of recycling; (3) an amount to compensate HCSD for its administrative costs in connection
with billing, customer service and noficing requirements; (4) an amount to compensate HCSD for franchise service provisions as assumed from
the County of San Bernardino; (5) the cost of residential disposal at the landfill; and (6) the cost of hauling green waste. Typically, residential
disposal costs are paid out of a disposal fee listed on the property tax bill. If this fee is not paid on the tax bill, then the disposal costs are added to
the monthly bill for those accounts receiving curbside service. The commercial charges are comprised of three components: (1) An amount for
the administration and operation of commercial bin refuse and recycling collection service; {2} the tipping/disposal fee; and (3) an amount to
compensate HCSD for franchise service provisions as assumed from the County of San Bernardino.

B. Reason for the proposed increases. The total proposed increase of $0.83 per month is based on the following factors: a $0.31 per month
increase for collection service based on the Riverside-San Bernardino-Ontario 2020 average Consumer Price Index (CP) for All Urban Consumers;
a $0.04 increase per month in the administration fee to reflect the CPI increase; a $0.04 increase per month in the franchise fee to reflect the CP!
increase; a $0.07 increase per month in the cost of recycling; and the addition of a $0.37 charge for green waste drop off service to help comply
with State mandatory organics requirements under SB 1383. Commercial rafes vary by frequency and type of service. See Exhibit A for more
service specific information,

C. Charge per parcel. HCSD proposes to adopt the rate increases for residential and commercial refuse collection service charges as described in
Exhibit A on the reverse side of this Notice. If you need assistance determining the charge for your property or parcel for residential service, you
may contact HCSD by calling (760} 951-0006, by mall to PO BOX 359, Helendale, CA 92342, or in person at 26540 Vista Road, Suite B, Helendale,
California. For questions about commercial refuse service, you may contact Burrlec by calling (760) 245-8607.

D. Written report. A written report has been prepared and filed with HCSD's General Manager regarding the proposed new commercial and
residential refuse collection service charges. As required by Califernia Government Code Section 66016, the written report also provides data
indicating the amount of cost, or estimated cost, to provide refuse collection service and the revenue sources anticipated fo provide the service. A
copy of the written report is available at HCSD's office located at 26540 Vista Road, Suite B, Helendale, Califonia.

HOW TO PARTICIPATE
if you have any questions or comments about the proposed rates or wish to protest you may:
Write ~ Formal written protests may be mailed to the Helendale Community Services District, Attention: Clerk of the Board, P.O. Box 359, Helendale,
CA 82342; or hand delivered fo the administration office at 26540 Vista Road, Suite B, Helendale, California. Written protests must specify the rate or
charge being protested and must include: Your name, parcel number and/or service address, and your signature. E-mailed protests will not be
accepled.
Attend the Public Hearing - Written protests may also be submitted at the Public Hearing on June 17, 2021 at 6:30 p.m., in HCSD's Board Room
located at 26540 Vista Road, Suite C, Helendale, California. All written profests must be received before the Public Hearing. You may address the
Board; however, oral comments do not qualify as a formal protest unless accompanied by a written protest. You may attend the Public Hearing on
June 17, 2021, at 6:30 p.m. either in-person at HCSD's Board Room located at 26540 Vista Road, Suite C, Helendale, California, or via teleconference
at www.zoom.com Meeting ID: 463 173 8457 Passcode: HCSD
Information available to you - Copies of the written report, the proposed Resolution, HCSD'’s exclusive franchise agreement with Burrtec, and further
details concerning the reasons for the proposed rate increases and the basis upon which they were calculated, are available for review at the HCSD
office located at 26540 Vista Road, Suite B, Helendale, California.
Public Hearing process - At the time of the Public Hearing, the Board of Directors will hear and consider all protests and objections. After the Public
Hearing, if a majority of the property owners and tenants of real property directly liable for paying refuse collection service bills for the affected parcels
file written protests in opposition fo the proposed rate increases, the increases will not be imposed. However, if a majority protest is not received,
HCSD’s Board of Directors may increase the refuse collection service rates after public input and deliberation in the manner described in this Nofice.
If adopted, the proposed rates would become effective July 1, 2021.



0g%e  § e § sjeueq uopeulEuos akoey | 0088 ¢ wOL0E § 9 £
818y S 6T ¢ sulq uoneuiweluos ojkaey | 168EL § 98'G5L ¢ g £
Zrey  § 18§ dyoidenad | vi168 & 02w09 § t g
Wi $ o0y § awuasIO-INd | oEtey § £SESE ¢ g g
Wik § %0k § UEap WeA)S IBURWDD [ JOS6Z § SEZOE ¢ z )
{upsed)upue | 1&g $ o1g ¢ soumjuca Bupoat | erzbl § L1ISE § b ) UBIC}S 50 JSOHWILOD
Aunog ouipiewsag soBusyg uig snosueyieas|w wee § 6 § £ Z e § o0es g 40 1509 SR+ Waluzoedey uig
ZEALL § 9.6 $ ' Ueg ojuaye) SIgiz § 96612 § Z 4 {steiteq pabewep 1o gyest
UojanAsaq Jo sjeaypiey 0K % 6rbL 8 {eqied}oaieivay | 88200 & 9660L 4 I 4 o} Adde jou sa0p ‘afiseyo ouje Jeak
F1:3 I IV TR 2eo0RY | veerE § Zhvee § £ g1 |let8 ¢ oves ¢ sed abueyoxe auo) sbueynq jeueg
el § 69795 § eowegdwnd | 9509l § 40%60L § z ] 20JAIAS Ui [epueplsey
GELLL & zgoLl ¢ sug Aeiodwoy | 05Zey § aLvie § o dwnd | ogee § Zove & I gl
suig Aresodwal WE/S § 687295 § Aenjeq fousnbasy eZg | UB|O}S 10 JSOHUILUOR LK)
) INOYSEAL j@I2U0D a9jueg ujg Bujakooy e $o0EE § 401500 [emJe + Juswaog(dsy ulg
5298 ¢ szess ! Bgg (sioueq pabewep
Svozl'L $ SL00L'S 9 £ 16986 § SOELE 9 ¢ Jo puyeifi o) Adde you saop ‘afisy
LLESE & 87il6S g ) (xoquedywboy | spzze ¢ ze018 § g £ 19¥8  $ o0z § ou e Jeak Jod suo) ebueoxg ug
B6'6h. & 99EEs$ ¥ ) egsE $ 12§ weiboig yo-doig yoIox | 66258 $ ZLOKD § 4 £ 83|AIBG SUIE [BjEWW0D
02095 ¢ OF0Sss g € |6l $ S0-10y soseury | 1oe6y  § SS9y § £ £
Welt  $ 69993 z t | St § t9eeE ¢ wopeloy | 166828 § Ve $ z £ 692L $ 951 § (uBloys 1o 1s0]) uswedeyday [azieg
oreelL ¢ reslg b £ | et § aune ¢ JowedwoopeAoy | 15vel § 81Z0F $ L £ {sipueq pabiaursp
Z96RZ  § 2W'veTs ) gL oz § Lne § peAQ) | SE8sE & KGEEE § £ 4 Jo fyesti 03 fidde jou seop ‘ebleyd
ELOBL  § 197618 Z |z § ez § pekoz | orezz $ vrse § 4 4 69l § 199 ouje teak sad suo) abueLpxg Ruey
0870 & Z600KS b gL Lot § e § peioy | e06lL § 1€ § b 4 8rg  $658 § x1 - B Aosy pejewoiny
Aausnbary  ezg Buissazo.diesodsig + (Buiokosy) syo-liow 91’967 § 08287 & g gl LFE9  § 0Zee  § Xg- [oeq uojet-gg
[oLBg 3 SUjg JSEM UsAID Wel $eel § 4 gl W b ety $ XZ- [aueq uoieB-ge
v6es § 665 ¢ {uorsed) jesodsia | 6o'l6  § ¥E06  $ b 5l LBl § 6Bl $ X|- [Leq uo|eE-gp
YE0ZY  § GLAT 8 9 Osg | sbe. § tonr 4 ejeaojey umy Aig fousnbayy 928 80/AI6g |aeg [EINIBLWLIOY
bvese  § evzez ¢ g B39 | 85028 $ eSOl § paeh o) BIJMES YSRI) (eewwo)
£5°982  § 5oL S ¥ 639 | ggoze & g8 § puRA 07 {sjeweq pofewep
POEl  § 68'TRIS g 59 | zo08 § zeass ¢ PRAOY | 256l § 99TUE 6 £ € 1o puyesB o) Adde Jou saop ‘aBreyo)
U/ § LeTis 4 figg {uses)) syo-fioy Amiodws) WEsT § ek 4 z € w9 $-199 § ou e ead Jad suo) ableyy pued
58§ vees I Bg9 0591 § etz § b (3 ke o1 0§ (s1eaeq) Aep eowes uo dn-yoid enxgy
VL § 6056118 9 T | w65 ¢ ¥6e5 o fuoy sed) esodeid | 80797 § Z6GLZ § £ ? {spueq) Aep
VIERL § ¥8'/66% g ¢ | 592 $e0%r § (fep 1) 304 |eay | eez8L § 96%€8L § Z z orve $ WV % Ba{AIaS-UoU Lo dn-youd ek
BeYE  § 160088 r 7 | e¥er w0 § Siesoe/ Uy A0 | OZE6 & 8616 § l z g9 $090  § e epfsel uojeB-G6/59
L $ LEE09S g z | eviee $ebue § opedwod pieA gy | 26402 § 26T $ £ 3] N DN B0 15|, 894281 uojeb-Ge/Gg
62037 § S000VS 4 g |eviez s8ilz pEAQL | sZsyl § 19THE z g1 e $ae  § 12Lreq Usey uojel-gg enx
orer & 8L907% b Z sz $avae g peAOz | oL $ ZELL § l ¢y 0r0e ¢ veoe $ 502 {esodsip pled oy (eueq uoyeb-55
fouenbasd  emg | g11zZ § QLAZ § pieh gy founbeiy ems | vrez  § e6TZ § 81502 [esodsip predpm jauseq uojjeB-g5
[SLBG | SUlg SjEBM Pooy Bujssescidesodsig + (ysei)) Juauewusy 83jAIeS UIg [eRUPISEY 90|AI0S |eRuep|say
P el I R - T Al -

HSVAMONI 31V 1202 3S0d0Yd 89 ITYANIEH - V LigiHa




WASTE INDUSTRIES, INC.
“We’ll Take Care Of It”

March 15, 2021

Kimbery Cox

Helendale Community Services District
26540 Vista Rd, Suite B

P.O. Box 359

Helendale, CA 92342

RE: 2021 Rate Review Report

Dear Ms. Cox:

Pursuant to the Agreement for Solid Waste Handling and Recycling Services, Burrtec
respectfully requests a 2021 rate adjustment and submits the following rate review

information.

This year's rate adjustiment is comprised of the following factors:

* A coliection service adjustment based on the Riverside-San Bernardino-
Ontario 2020 average Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers at
1.87%.

 Estimated no change in the per ton disposal fee as charged by San Bemardino
County at $47.94 per ton. Impacted rates will be adjusted pricr to finalizing the
proposed rates.

» Aresidential recyciing service cost factor based on 2020 recyclable commodity
values and material processing costs resuiting in an increase of $0.07 per
month.

» An updated discounted rate for the green waste drop off program service
charge.

» Updated green waste and food waste recycling programs rates to reflect
updated tipping fees at Victor Valley Compost and comply with state mandatory
commercial organics recycling requirements under AB 1826 and SB 1383.

Enclosed please find the detalled rate review work sheets.
Thank you for the consideration.

Sincerely,

Vice President
8880 Cherry Aventue < Fontana, California 92335 + 909-420-4200 - FAX 909-420-4280



DATE: June 17, 2021

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #6
Public Hearing to Receive Comments and Possible Adoption of Resolution 2021-11:
A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Helendale Community Services District
Approving and Adopting the Fiscal Year 2022 Annual Budget and Authorizing
Appropriations Therefrom

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Consider approval of the FY 2022 Annual Budget.

STAFF REPORT

The public notice for budget adoption was published on June 3 and June 10, identifying the date
and time of the public hearing at which the public can provide comment on how the District
expends the funds collected.

Attached for reference is the budget in worksheet format. The final budget document with
department statistics and details will be presented to the Board in hard copy format at the
meeting due to the size of the document.

Over the past three months, District staff has presented various aspects of the budget at both a
special board meeting and regular board meetings where various components of the budget were
discussed. The structure and composition of the budget is intended to provide greater depth of
information and transparency as requested by the Board. The specificity of revenues and
expenditures in the budget will provide a clear guide to the publiic as to how the District utilizes
the funds it receives. Staff will make a detailed presentation to the Board and the public during the
hearing.

The budget is developed using the “zero-based budget” technique, which means all line items start
at “zero” at the beginning of each fiscal year. All line items were evaluated based upon current
year’s expenses and anticipated costs during the upcoming year. An extensive review of revenue
and expenditure details was part of the staff-level budget process. The Budget Summary pages
(attached) show the projected results of operations for fiscal year 2021 and the proposed fiscal
year 2022 budget.



Capital Improvement Plan
The contemplated capital improvement expenditures as discussed with the Board are included in

the budget document and everything over the General Manager's signing authority will be
discussed with the Board on a case-by-case basis and a designated funding source identified as
part of the Board approval process. Funding for capital items could include grant funding,
reserves, or projected excess revenue. A projected five-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is
included in the full Budget. The CIP is a look ahead by Staff as to what projects are considered
necessary for the park, water, and wastewater operations. During the year additional
unanticipated capita! improvements may occur that are not embodied in the CIP document. The
development of the Park CIP has been a collaborative process involving discussion with the Board
and the Park & Rec Committee.

Availability of the Budget

Copies of the draft detailed budget for fiscal year 2022 are available at the District administrative
office for public viewing and is part of the agenda material. Once approved, the FY2022 Budget
will be posted on the District’s website.

Staffing
The organizational chart included within the budget depicts the approved staffing that was

previously discussed with the Board. No significant modifications have been made to staffing over
the previous budget year. Staffing is discussed in full-time equivalents or FTE’'s which represents
2080 working hours in a year. Staffing has reduced slightly from 22.44 FTE to 22.3 FTE. Water
staffing essentially remains the same with anticipation that two staff members will advance to the
next level once they receive the appropriate certifications. Advancement for one park worker is
anticipated during the course of the year based upon performance. Salary costs increased based
upon the approved Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) of 2.5% and an anticipated merit increase
during the year.

Debt Service

The District has a reduced debt service burden in FY22 due to the early pay-off of one foan and the
refinance of a second loan. The District will continue to pay down debt as quickly as practical.
Interest and principle are listed in each fund for the greatest transparency.

Fiscal Impact
The projected net surplus based upon the revenue and expenditure estimates contained within

the draft budget document are as foliows:

Fund Revenue Expenditures Balance
Water S 2,978,255 | § 2,018,981 [ § 959,274
Wastewater S 1,328,678 | § 1,238,988 | § 89,689
Solid Waste S 852,833 | S 871,330 | S (18,497)
_Recycling Center | S 173,259 | S 173,259 | § -
Properties S 128,280 | S 117,994 | S 10,286
Parks $ 540,501 | S 329,368 | § 211,133
Admin S 120,501 | § 120,501 | S -

*Does not include any capital expenditures for the year



Park funding:

The Board has prioritized the development of park facilities utilizing discretionary funds. This
Fiscal Year the Recycling center is anticipated to contribute $126.740 to park development per
Board direction based upon the estimated revenues and expenses. Other revenue sources include
cell site rental, franchise fees for solid waste. To date the District has developed a 14-acre public
park that includes soccer/football fields, baseball fields, playground, exercise circuit and picnic
shelters and pavilions. The park has an inter-fund loan with Wastewater that is memorialized in a
resolution and prepayment plan. Each year $42,100 is repaid on this loan.

FISCAL IMPACT: As outlined in the draft Fiscal Year 2022 Budget
REQUESTED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 2022-11

ATTACHMENTS: Resolution 2021-11
FY 2022 budget (worksheet only)



A

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-11

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HELENDALE COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE 2020 ANNUAL BUDGET
AND AUTHORIZING APPROPRIATIONS THEREFROM.

WHEREAS, a proposed annual budget for the Helendale Community Services District for the fiscal year
commencing July 1, 2021, and ending June 30, 2022 was submitted to the Board of Directors and is on file in
the District Administration office; and

WHEREAS, the proceedings for adoption of the budget have been duly taken; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors conducted budget workshops open to the public and has made
certain revisions and modifications to the proposed budget; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager has caused the proposed document to reflect the changes ordered by
the Board of Directors.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The budget incorporated herein by reference, is adopted by Resolution as the Annual
Budget for the Helendale Community Services District for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2021 and
ending June 30, 2022.

Section 2. There is hereby appropriated to each account set forth in the said budget, incorporated
herein by reference, the sum shown for each account in the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget, and the General
Manager is authorized and empowered to expend such sum for the purpose of such account within the
purchasing limits adopted by prior Board resolution. No expenditure by any department for any items
within an account shall exceed the amount budgeted therefore without pricr approval of the General
Manager, and/or prior approval of the District Board of Directors.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June, 2021.
AYES:
NOES:-
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

By:

Tim Smith, President

Attest:
Sandy Haas, Secretary




00°'005'6T- 05'T- 00000'€T uondwnsue) Ad Aeujwjsad
unowy 83l $Hun uopduasag apo) 193png
lIe12q 123png
00'005'6T 05'£TH'9T 0D'60Z'ET 009871 00°60T'ET “NSUOD-AJUQ JSIRMA - SBIES JR1BM 0-0G-ZTe0LP-10
08'6E6'L SL€99°2T OB'6E6’L 00'85T €T 08'6E6'L IAW-A[UQ) JITRM - STIRS JIBM D00-TTEOT 10
00°'055's- 05°'1- C000L'E uondwnsung Ad Aeujdippad
unowy 8514 N uonduasag apo) wdpng
Ile13g 123png
00°05S'S 00°652°S Q0'TIEL 00'8TF'S 00'6Z6'F suo)-Ajjwed-njA) - s3|es 1em DO0-ZTTOLF-10
ZS'09TTIS
TIE96'9- ZS'09T'T- 00'9 =TT XT£°965 HAIAW T Apwed-ninpy Aeupupad
07°898'¢- 09'755- 0oL 092555 = ZT X50°'9%S 1219 T Alwed-piniy Aeujuwaag
wunowy aslad sHun uopduasag apo) Jadpng
|le32q 123png
ZE'TER'OT TrOIS'0L ZETEROT $0'0ES'S PSTEDT JAIRA-AlLUELNINIA - S3|ES JBTRM 00C-TTT0TH-10
00°000°082- 0s'1- 00°000°0ZS vodwnsued Ad Areujwyaid
wnowy aod spun uandposag spo 193png
|1e32q 193png
00000°08L LLBLT LVL DO'tYS L L LPTLTL 00'tvbs'zzL “suog-Alluey 2|8uls - sa|es Jalep 0-00-ZT00TZ-10
Z5°0911%
TS'09T'T- 25°09T'T- 00'T =TT XTL965 Hatew g Awed aSuis Aleujwalg
09'755%
08'6ZLP0ST- 09'2a5- 00'€2LT =TT X 50'9PS 318y ,T Ajlwey ajBuls Aleuiuaid
unowy g sHUN uonduasag apo) adpng
Ile32a 323png
TE'06R'SOST LIV TIE'T ZE068'S05T 65'STS'TEH'T 00'+90'0Er T JE2N-Ajwed 213uis - sajes Jatem 0-00-TT00TE-10
Q00 00°06€'99- 000 000 00'0 “suod-Ajued 3|Buls - sajes Ja1em ZT00TF-0T-1-10
anuaaay
suonesadQ Ja3eM - T0 (pund
133png [e104, Auaipoy |eloL  188png koL Auaay elol  3edpng R0l
TTOZ-TZOT A4 TZOZ-020ZAd  TZTOZ-0Z0ZAd  OZOZ-GTOZAd  OZOZ-6TOT Ad

7202/0£/9Q :Bulpu3 poHad ZZ0Z-TZ0Z Ad i[edsid Jod
3NUIAIY pund Ja1eM asD slepuajeH

199Yys)JoM 128png voc



¥2'925's- vT'9zs8's- 00T PT'IZSSS = ZT X Z5°09%F5 * 1218 7 |0oyds Aeuiuyfasd
TL99E'- TL'S9E Y- 00T ZLGYEPS = LT X TH'E9ES P19 £ |00YdS Aleujijig
unowy Rl4d suun uonduzsaq 2po) 188png
naq 3e8png
147986 96’1636 1312005 - SBIES IB1EAN, GO0-TZS1iF-10
00°052°LT- of'0- 00°000°EZ {|ewiau)} yieg uoidwnsuord Aeuiwiaag
00°00E's- 0s'T- 00°002e J1ed AY V1S - uondurnsuay Aeujupad
00°ET8'¥T- 05'T- 00°ZpS'9T Jied - uendunsuc) Aeujwiaid
unowy g syun uopduasag apo) 193png
I1e33q 123png
00'E9E‘SE 05'618'8Z STYeLST uondwnsuod-y1ed - Sa[eS I3 TO00-ZZPILE-10
POIZET- TS'09T'T- [s]0rd ZS09TTS =TT X TL'965 119N, T ed Aseujuisug
08'0Tt't- 09°'255- 0g'e 09'295% = 2T X GO9pS Maldm T Aded Aeujw)iaig
unowy 220d SN uopdiasag spo3) 1adpng
llEe32q 123png
0T'STL™D TS'ETE'E 1912|Ajeq - S3|eS JDIBM 000 TerTTH10
00"00E- 0s'T- 0o'00z |EUID1U] J31EMBISEAA - uondwnsuo) Aleuaig
0O'sZe- 09'T- 00'0ST [210H - uondwnsuo) Aeujwiaig
00'S66'T- 66'E- 00°005 JUeIpAH UaRdNsUe) - uoidwunsua) AdeLild
00'0059T- osT- 00'000'TE jej21awuIe] - uopdwinsua) Areujwaig
00°'SZ8- 09T [veRilan sayauny) - vondwnsuo) Ateujuijalg
unowy a3id syun vopdpasag apo) 32dpng
lle1ag 393png
00'S¥3'6T ZTYPO'ZS 00'055°LT "SUQD-[BIZRWILIOT - SRS JIBM b0tzzotir-0
9T"LE9TS
8P TT6Y- 9t LE9'T- CO'E =51319W £ X Z. GGG JOI2IA UDIIDNIISUOD Aeujw[a1d
ZFE6T TL96 o0'e |BUIBIU] dLAAM T [EIIBLULIDYY Areujwijaiy
2L G9ERS
PPTEL'S- LS9 oo’z = 7T XTE'E9ES . J12W € [epIawwio) Aleujwijalyg
T5°09TTS
¥Z9Z6ET- 5°091°T- 00'ZT =ZT X TL'965 (12BN T [ERIBWWO) Aleujwijaid
08'€8T'4- 09'Z5%- OO'ET 09°258% = ZT XS0'9%S 421310 , T [ERI3WWO] Aleujwyjaid
wnowy 2ol syun uopdjsag aped 123png
lle3ad a2dpng
¥5'655'VE S£'8LL'08 P OTY'sT 16'655°T¢ 88'60TFT 4303~ || 1DI0] - 53| B Ja1BA, 00O TZOTTF-T0

jdpng eol  Auapv elol  JeBpnglelol  ANAROY jeler  198png oL
ZIOT-TZOCAY  TZOT-0Z0ZAJd  TZOZ-0ZOZAd  OZOZ-6TOZAd  OZOZ-BTOZAd

1aaysnsopn 193png



P EES'ET

00°000°0E-

wunowy

00°000°0E
00'000'€Z

00°00v°2-

unowy

00a0P'e

00°00002-

Junowy

00°000°02

09'900'6-

Junowy

09'900'6
00°03€

0070052~

Junoury

00'005°2S

2468 2T-
08°0Zr Y-

unowy

TS98TLT

00'95862-

Junoury

00°958°6T

193png |ej0L
ZZOZ-1Z0T Ad

BO'TOV'ET

g

S9'98.°rE

TLELE'EE

2ud

00°009°9

alid

00°000°S5

anlsd

ST'89£'pZ
00°099

05°T-
any

0090405

30d

ST'EB0LT

0S'T-
aaud

00'669°0E

Annnay [elo)
1Z0Z-020Z Ad

00°005°Z-

Z5°09T°T-
09'Z55- 00’8

0S'80P'6T

0ozt
syun

00'000°TE
00'000'0Z

00°009- oot

suun

00'00Z'T

00-000°S- ooy

SN

00°000°0T

S9'1SZT- ooy

sun

0£'E0S"Y
00°0zZT

00°000"SE
SHun

05708425

00 1T

sHun

ZL'9L6T

00'F066T
syun

00'958°62

1239png &301
TZ0Z-0Z0T Ad

9T Tr8 YT

TTEY0TS

08'95T'1Z

00'008"T

000

S6'V¥SLTT
00'08T

00'920"F1

84'€00°ST

05'911'92

Aoy [Elo)
020Z-6T0Z Ad

00°009°8T

00°000°ZY
00°000°4Z

aoo

000

0o'c

00'aos

05'082°2S

BTITYI

009586

198png |m0)
0Z0Z-6T0Z A4

1USWIBSINGUIIBY BILAISS JIUBLIIA

saljjeuad
uonduassq

s3[}|Euaq g 5234 Juanbuyag

safieyn g 5934

324 uOjIE||EISU| 19131N
uondunsag

uope|jeisu| Ja1=A

aa4 Addng Jajep,
uonduasag

994 A|ddns 121880

69 TSZTS 924 uonIaLue)
uonduasag

5394 UB[DAUUCD

suojoadsu| g sy

uoRdWINSUO] Ad
uonduasag

“dwnsue)-uolieBLi) - S3(es JoIEM
TS09TTS = TT XTL'965 818N,z uonesu|
09°255% = T X S0°9YS *IS19IA1 , T uoiesi)
uondussag

1212|N-UoiEBIL| - 53| BS 218

uoidwnsuoy
uopdpuasag

“RAWNSUOD-|00YIS - 5I|ES JITBAL

TOOTOLETHT0

Aeujwiaig
apo) 123png
[fe13q 398png

0-00-G0S61F-10

0-00-0006TF-T0

Aeujwgaig
apud 133png
Ieiaq 323png

D-0C-000ZTH-10

Aeuwald
apo3 123png
nelag 323png

0-00-0059TH 10

Adeujwpid
apo) 133png
|'eaq 128png

0-06-0009TF-10

0-G0-000StR-T0
Aleupuyjaig

apo] 138png
ey 128png

EViD

Aleuiwjaly

Aleujuaig
apo) 198png
Ileyeq 32dpng

0-C0-TFOETF-T0

Aleulwalg

apo) jadpng

l1£32q 323png
000ZeaTAr-10

199ysyioM 199png



PE'SST'BLET TO'€ZL0S2E €0°020°065°2 T69LT060°E 90't'26'255'2 jelo] Hoday
PE'SSZ'BLE'T TO'EZL0ST'E €0°020°065°Z T6'9LT°060°E 90°'¥Z6'T55°T {10 suohieladg J91BM - TO Jpund
PE"SSZ'BLE'T .na.MNh\.cmN.m £0°020°065'T T6'9LT'060°E 90'vZ6T5S'T |E30L @nuaAaY
00°000°S- 00'000's- 00T Sa3uleg J)3NENS YN
ajeag ||ews
00°000°05- 00'000'0S- 00T 32Y J0 NEAINE WO} JUBWISINGLIR) JUEIS
00°000°052- 00'000SZ- 00T IUEIS ¥ma
wnowy ao1g suun uonduasag
00'000°S0€ 0T'066'ST 00'005'LE 05'2£52°06 00'000°5L NLIBASY Juesy
00'gos 680002 00°009'T VTEZEL'Y 000197 saxeL Juanbuyag uo sanjeusd
00008t 86'012'T 00'008't 0T'68.'8 00'008't AQPUELS 131BM Ad - SHWSSY |B2adg
0000081 oF'ZZT'ST 00'000°8T OT'€9€'9T 0000081 Agpuels J191ep) - SJWssY [epads
P EES'BT- £8'990'56- 050 JUIWISINGUWIAY 32IAIS HUBYIBA
unowy asug sHup uopduasag
1eBpngelol  Aumdv[elol  jeSpngjelo)  ANARYY (elol  1a8png jejo)
€20Z-120T Ad TZOZ-020T Ad TZ0Z-0Z0T Ad 0Z0Z-6TOT Ad 0Z0Z-6TOZ Ad

Aleunaig

Aleuiwiaid
Aeujwysid
apoj1e8png
l1e13a 393png

0-00-00090L-10
0r00-00550Z£-T0

Aeuguinud
apo) jadpng
Ie1aq 123png

1ayssom 12fpng



00°000'S 00°000'S 00T

o0'siy oSy oot

00°005 00°000°T 050

00°00Z ££°85 0021

wunowy aoud syun
00°080'TT DO'ETEDS 00°000°02 6€'STE9E
00°000'¢ 00'8TY'L 00°000'Y 05°Z8E'E
00'008°C 0F'0SY'T 00'599'7 8£ZPIZ
EZ6T69 55°805'9 18TI39 75°E88'p
ST99L's 98 vED'TE 00'¥9E"Z vLPTYTE
00°00+'29 TUTTOTY 00°00Y'28 SE'EEE DY
60°LZV'SE Z0'168'L2 00'0F0"9E T6'bYE'SE

00°VES'6T 00'890'6€ 050

unowy 29ld syun
00'vES'6T 98'15¢'62 00°LT8'8E SV BV LT

o0'ovT'e 0008 00'80Z

00'058°2 0005 00'£ST

unouly 4d S
00°060%T 98797 'ET 00°0TE YT PT'L90°%T
00°000'FT £7£95TT Q0°000°vT 92'765°€T
[AA AT SE'SRE'GYT 00'£¥9'€9T £0b29'6EL
jpngeiey  Auapay|me)  eBpngjeioy  Auappyeol
TZOT-TZOZA  TIOZOZOZAd  TZOZOZOZAY  OZOZ-GTOZ Ad

220z/0£/90 Bulpu3 poliad ZZ0Z-TZ0Z Ad i[@sld 404
asuadxj punj 133epp

199YSHIOM 193png

O0'0SE'ET
00°0009
00
£9°6£6'9
9T'PS8'8T
¥8'TZ6'EY
SY'ELL'Ob

00°09T'LE

00'CTE DT
00°000YT
959£Z'v LT

328png |e30L
0Z0Z-6T0T Ad

10)3E1UGY [B31II8]]
334 [enuuy 12y 31g

uay 3ig

uopedunWWo) Aajjea ajddy
uopduasag

S3I|AIDS |ENIDBIIUGD SISA|BUY
AJolEIOqE] JUSWBLNRY YHd3Id
aJeAPAN/YIId - SoxeL ||oshey

.._o_ummc.mn..cou SIDRIOM,
ue|q 1yauag

JUBLWAIREY SY3d

%05 @ ey
uo|yduasag

UBYIBIA BUILL-LlEd - SBIIe|eS

SYRAM TS K SARP  iny | -Uow ||[ED-UD
S)}IaM 75 X SAEP € 1ung-ud [[ED-UQ
uondussag

Aed |[eD-up - sauejes
SWIRIBAQ - 53|e|es

awiy |in4 - ssuejes

Aeujwaigd
Aeujungaag
Aeujwpld
Adeujwiaid
apod dpng
Ieyeq 3e3png
0-G0-005TZ5-10

0-00-000T¢5-T0
-00-6000T5-10
0-00- 2L
0-00-2000T5T
O-00-TO00TS 10

Adeujwiaug
apo) 12dpng
lte1aq 123png

0-00-¥00005-10

Adeujwipld

Aleuupdd

apo) 1a3png

|1e3aq] 19dpng
0-00-£00005-T0
0-00-¢00005-10
0-00-TO0005-T0

asuadx3

suanesadQ Jazep - TQ :puny

aso ajepusje )



o0'oor 00°00% 00'1
00°00€ 00°00€ 00'T
00°000°T 00'005 00z
0009 00°00€ o0t
00°008'T 00'006 00'z
00°00S'T 00°00S'T 00T
00068T 00°68T 0001
000ZL 00'St 0091
00°009 00'Q0E 00z
00°009 00°00T 00’
00°0S2 00's7T 00'g
Junoluy 331d sHUn
00'09T°0T 66'72F'T ao'zrTL's
00'000'Z oo 000002
00°000°8T 00°000'81T 00T
0000tz 00°SZ5 o'y
00°000°T 00'000T 00'T
00°008 0000t an'z
00°anL 00°00F'T 050
junowy 2014 sHun
0000922 TTBIT'ST 00°00T'8T
00°0SZ'T 000522 o't
00'05Z'T 000827 00'T
00ZTIT'9T 00°ZTT9T 00T
Q0'008'9 00°00tE 0o’z
unguy oA SHUN
Q0°ZTH'LZ IP'8ra'1z 000502
Q0'000'e 00°000°T 00°0009
00005'T 00°005°T o't
00°'S06'L 00°506°% o't
00000 00'000°S 00'T
1efpngeiol  Awapovelol  398png [elo)
TI0Z-TTOZ A4  TZOZ-0ZOZAd  TZOZ-OZAZ Ad

96'959
000

9T'FI6'ST

LVOER'L
a0

Auagay jejo)
070Z-6107 AJ

5JUBI3JUOY HELWS JFIBAR

Supoys yauas)
Buiuies)

BuiBde|q J1yyes]
FIUDIBJUC) SNSUIS
SNO3UE|A3SIA

{Aep/z58) sleaw g [anels ‘{Aep/zeTs) Buidpoq

00'TTLE
00°000'C

00'0BE'ST

00008
007000

188png |e301
0Z0Z-610Z Ad

YINMAH
3oeds pauyua)

SO

'3 A1EI5 1] - voReysEay [/ Butulel] N3
|EM3UaY / suopesyilal

uonduasag

Suluie| pue uopeInp3

{ElUaY JuBLIdink3

A2UMS
2414 Aunod g5
s
AWOYaIN

%05 Sunss| yue [and [entuy

uopduasaq
$294 PUE S
SUAS B1RQ YWY J3JAL

1AL
{aaueuzUIEN

Uolleysaseq 1§ 9:em1jos) shsuss
535U T - Woddns 515

uonduasag

uoddng 2l1emijog

sanndas Supasuidul

vavas
ISIA
HIOVH

AleUitRId
Aleupuyaly
Aleuiwnalg
AdeunuRid
Aleujujaiy
Adeuiwald

Aseuiialg
AU
Aeujwgpiy

AeUIWIRId
Aeujw)plg
apo) 198png
{2190 32dpng
O ¥Z5-T0
0-00-000%Z5-10

Aeuiwijald
Aeujua.d
Aeuwpig
Aeujwypld
Aeujwjjalg
apo) }aBpng
Ie=q 193png

Aleujwijald
Aleujwijaig

Aeupwiaid
AleurwiBad
apod 199png
lle3aq 1adpng

0-00-105TES-TO
Adeuwaad

Meutwinaid
Aleuiwijag

199aysytopg 128png



00°000°SZ

00'000'SZ 001

00°000°s9 00'000°59 001
uncuuy g syun
00°000°06 L4 ¥4 745 00°000°06
00°95L 00'ES 00'¢T
00°'89L'E 00'F1E 00°ZT
00°v0T 00 70T 00T
00°ZLE 00'TE 00°ZT
unowy aslig sHun
00°000°'s 0E'SrT'y 009687
00'005T 00'szT 0zt
unowy 24d sHun
00'005'T 9T LIT 00'0FS
2EL09 T9'05 o'zT
00'8L9 0598 00zt
virasT'T L8'86 L4}
ZE'E0TT T9°E8T 00t
OF'0ZT'ES 0£'9ZF'y 00z
00'95€'T 00°ETT 00'ZY
8Z'995°E 6T°L62 [
9665’69 £8°S6L'S o0zt
¥2'600'69 78°05L's 00zt
8’696 64°08 00'eT
00°000°s 00°000°s o0'T
wunowy aoug syuny
vOLYEL0T £6'880°ZTT 0F"901T'H2T
00°092'T 00'068T 00°092°T
00°009°6 00°008 00zt
wnowy 4 syun
000096 00°000°8 00'008'6
12dpng |eloL Aanay |eloL 198png |e3oL
€T0Z-TT0T Ad TZ0Z-0Z0Z Ad TZOZ-0Z0¢2 Ad

ZTvrt'or

SEE6Y'Y

9E'95k

09°¥9Z'01T
00'0E9

00°009°6

Ay eiol
0Z0Z-6T0Z Ad

00'000°06

00'p8sy

00'ovs

O0'CEL'ETT
000927

000096

S1ie4 1319 pUE 51313l
J1AIBE

SIUBUSIUIE [ SIEURLEIA B SLE UOINGLISI]
uondulseqg

S0UBUBIUJEY PUE suapessdg

{sMUN ) 13]Ge1 - SO UOZIIBA
HEIS JA1BAL 7 - UOZIIBA

sl

%085 - Jlueyaa

uopdpuasaq

auoydala ] - saiM|n

doys J1338M,
uopdusag

2D - SIRAN

TL-9657-6T0°€ 64 12M
85-965-620-E 8# |I9M
Py96SP-6T0-E L# [IPM
9E-965H-620E 9# |12M
E0-965P-620-€ trit [1IFM
£8-565p-6Z0-E £4 ||13M

LT-T097-6T0-€ 2t |[2M

ET#I3M

LE-S6SP-6T0FE T# ||13M

64°08% =£5°T9T$ X §'0 = }Bd/doys 1318/
ET# [I9M - 2AJIDS UOS|P3 MaN
uandiasag

a3e( - el
$3}IS Huel N8 - sy

3led 0l pled asea] doyg Ja1ep
uonduisag

doys Ja1em - $9587 pue SIUDY

yaipng |e101
020Z-6TOT Ad

Areuwinalg

AkEUILLIDI
apo3 3e9png
leyaq 388png

T-00-000T55-10

Aeujulijpgd
Aeujurnpig
Aeujwipid
fueujwpid
apa) 183png
lle3eq 128png
0-00-005¢E5- 10

feurjaig
apo) 193png
|le3aq yaSpng

0-00-TO0TEST0

AJeugwialg
AdeujwiRad
Aeuiwigad
Adeujw)pld
LILINITETE]
Aeujunjaig
AeujwjRdd
Aeujwjalg
Aeujwipld
Aleupupad
Adeuiw|ald
apo) jadpng
|1ea2q 1adpng
0-06-0001E5-10

0-00-TOSL25-T0
Aeujwnald
2po) 398png

Iie32q 128png
0-00-00S£Z5-TO

1@aysylom 193png



9S°6L9°42T 95'6£9°LZT 00T
94'915"8 9£'915'8 007
wunawy aonad syuny
TE'96T'9ET L9'76E'SST S0°S0LP9T
o00'eot's 05462t 00°00t'L
00°SZT 00'sz 00's
unowy 2014 spun
00'sz1T [4 8 00'SEE
00°000'2 00'000'7 00T
00°05L 00'005°T 050
junowy as|ad sHun
00°05L2 ZEPO0'E 00°05LT
00'005°E TL0L6T 00'ZE6'E
00°00E 00'00T 0o'e
00'005 00005 00T
00'00T 00'00T 00T
00'005T 00'00T 00°'sZ
00'08E 00'08€ 00T
00'8LE 9zt 00°00€
Junowy g syun
00'85T't 000 00'085'T
00'000 00°000'9 co'T
00'000°2 00°000'2 oot
unowy atd sHun
00'000'ET ¥5'655'9T 00°000°ZT
00'00S'T Z6'SOE'T 00°00T’T
0O'00L'LT 6L TEE'PT 00°000°ET
00'000°0T 197696 00°000°0T
1P8png|ejol  Auaoy |e0l  1adpngjelol
ZZ0Z-T20Z A4 1Z0Z-020Z Ad TZOZ-0Z0Z Ad

06'8E9'ELT
SEOTSE

ersi-

19'TS2'T

SL'679'2

000

9Z'0Z6'ST
ZETPOT
6E'580°CT
19'089'6

Aunnay |R10)
0Z0Z-6T0Z A4

000
00'09E"L

00'5EE

00'05L"2
007£0°E

00°005°'T

00°000'%Z
00°00Y

00°000'FT
00°000°0T

183png |eoL
0Z0Z-6T0Z Ad

LT0-pT - UBOC] $TOT

€£0-80 - uee] 8OOT

uondunsag
asuadxy jsasa1u|

$394 JAISEULIDLEA

VYMWAH
uopdjaseg

suonduasqns 1g sang
5N
|00 [|EWUS JIUBYDBIY

uoyduasag

S|O0] J[BWS

suLgyun

doys}IOM UDJIEAIBSUDD ITIEM
S{eLIBIR PAIUJId UO[IBAIISUGD) 13EM

PNy 131EM

weidold s1eqay 19101
ISIA

JEPUIES VMY
uopduosag

welS0ig UOIEAISSUCD JBIBM

saiddng Funessdo st
aupo)
uonduasag

sajjddng Sunesadg

WIBSANGUUaY |aAeI] puE aBes|||y

134 3PIyaA

FDURURNUIRLN 3[DIYIA

Aleunwtalg
Algunijpld
apo) 1adpng
ne3aq 198png
0-G0-10 N
T-00-000195-T0

Adeuiwifald
apo)=8png
{re1aq 1@dpng

0-00-005955-10

Aeujwjjaig
feujujaig
apo) 1a8png
lleyeq 1adpng
00000975510
0-00-009€55-10

Aleuiwaud
Aeunwaig
Aeunnalg
Aeuiwi@id
Aleuiuy=.d
Aeunundid
apo) @apng
1233 335png
[RUEASE ]

Aleuiwpag
AdeuwRid
apo) 198png
|'eyag 138png
-00- T

0-00-00L255°T0
0-GC-T00SPS-T0

0-00-0005¥5-TD

Paysoa 195png



95 TR6'RID'E 86'8ZH'BOF'T TULST'TRL'T 86 8LV L89T 92°'S18'999°T ‘|e3o) Woday
_ 95'T86'8T0°7 86'8TY'30V'T TTLSTTRLT 8580 L89'T 97'ST8'999°T :|evo0) suopesado s21eM - TO :puny

95°T86'810° 86 8ZY'20P'T TULST'TPLT 8S'8LF I89°T 9Z'5T8°999'T ‘|e3oy asuadxy
P6'96L'9LS 88'E65'EST'T 090 UO[IEIO|E UIPY JO %05
unowy 231d sun uonduasag

P6'96L'9LS 0L 2LT'SOY TTLOZ'BSS 9E' L1906 80196y UONE30|fY UIWpY
00°000°68T 00°000'S8T  00'T £2-T/22-T Suidly Ja1ep, uewyid
PESTZTLT PESTTELT 00T LT0-PT - VED] ¥TOT
EYL68'8E £ £62'3E 00't £0£-80 UeGT B00Z
unowy 20)id sHun uopdudsag

LLTITS6E [4:3:TANA ¥4 ¥9'820v2T 68'BSE'ETE 89'EELBBE AR5 1420

193png je10L AAnay |ejo), 13dpng |eyoL Aympy eiol  198png Iei0L

TE0Z-TZ0Z Ad TZ0Z-0Z0Z Ad 1Z0Z-0202 Ad 020Z-6T0ZAd  OZOZ-6TOZ Ad

Aeuwijalg
apo) ja8png
re1ag 198png

‘0-00-00TGRE-T0

Aleujwpag
Alguiwidid
Aleuiwialy
apod 3png
I'e12q 138png
0-CO-0D00CE-10

Baysiopm 12dpng



91'892'91- 89°6EY 00'LE
unowy 23ld sHUn
91'892'91T 91'892'9T 9T'892'9T
Or86T'e- 89°6EY- 00's
unowy asg sjufn
or'86T'T YTREY'T or'86T'T
BO'0E9ET- 89'6Eh- 00'1€
POEIET- B9'6EY- 00’
PTRES'6T- 89'6EY- 00'89
0v'86T°Z- 89'6EY- 00§
unowy 29)3d sHun
9L 'SY0'LY LTy 9L°SP0°LY
96'799°0Z- 89°6Ep- o0'Ly
unowy 20)ad sHUn
96'199°0C PrITE0T 89°€Z¥'TT
ST ZIHF'T6T'T- 89'5€0- 00°ZTLZ
unowy 14 sun
ST eIHET6T'T ¥6'3ST°E60"T Or vEE'BRT'T
198png |ejoL Aoy (eol  19dpng |exoL
Z20Z-TZOZ A4 TZOZ-0Z0ZAd  TZOZ-0ZOT Ad

2202/0£/90 :BuIpul poLdd ZZ02-1Z0T Ad (€254 Jod
3NUDADY pund Jamss

199YsSHIOM 183png

SY'TIEYT

QTST0'T

8T'STT'ER

96'799°0Z

09°996'T6T'T

Auanoy (ejol
0702-6T0Z Ad

nas
/ 89'6EP=SUIUOW TT X {°9E€S = 1Ll Jamag
uopdussag

91°89z'91 |ooyas - sadiey) Jamas

na3
/B9’ 6EF=SUIUOLW ZT X $9°GES = 2RI JIMIS
uopdsag

08612 Hed - sadiey) 1amas
Na3 / 89°6EF=54IUOW ZT X #3°9€% = [I0W
nai3
/ 89"6EF=SYIUOW ZT X +9'9ES = SWoH 3liqow
nail
/ BOBEP=SLIUOW ZT X $9'9ES = [elaULIDD
Na3 / 89°6EP=SYtUoW ZT X $3°9€S = YInud
uondussag

92'St0 Lt [elDIaWWa] - sadley) Jamag

nai
[ 89°6EF=SYIUOW ZT X ¢9°9F3 = d1BJ JIoMag
uondudsag

89'ELVTT Aiweg-ningy - sediey) Jamag

na3a
/ 89'6EF=SIUOW ZTX £9°9ES = Ajlwied JFuis
uopduasag

OF FEE'6RT'T Ajwey 218us - safieys Jamas

123png (=100
020Z-6T0Z Ad

asd ejepuslsH

Aeujwialg
apo) 123png
|le32q 128png

0-00-02S (V]

ABUWIRId
apo)adpng
l'eaaq 133png

0-0C-0ZpTLr-20

Aleujw|aag
Aleupu)jaig

Adeujupid

Adeuiupig
2po3 193png
lle3aq 123png

0-00-0Z0TTF-20

AlEUiald
apo3) 18dpng
[1=32q j23png

AuiwBsd
apo) 198png
lleyaq 188png

0-00-0T00TH 20

anuaAay

SUONRISHO JAMIS - Z0 :pUhy



9£'Z99°8TE'T OT'Z9L'YSE'T U LTRSIET $6"LLOOEE'T TU'6LEBTE'T ‘jejoL poday
9.'199'8TZE'T 0T Z9LVST'T T LTR'STET b6 LLO'0EE'T TI'GLE'RTET {[B10] SUONEJdD JIMIS - 20 fpung
9£'£99°8TE'T 01'z9L Y52 T LTE'STE'T V6" LLO'DEE'T TU'6LE'STET {{€10] INUBASY
00°000°T oo'o 000 000 000 53955Y JO 9|ES UO 5507 10 UIED
00°009 8E'8Y9 00°055'T 9EZIOY 00°055'T saxel Juanbujjaq uo sapeuad
00°00¥'T 85°6Z8T 00°008'F 0£'9948 00008 'RUEIS 19MaS Ad - SJWsSY [Ejpadg
00°000°ST SE'098TT 00°000°ST Or'a/9'et 00°000°ST Aqpueig tamag - WSSy [efpads
00°000°ST- 00052'T- 00'eT s3jl|euag
unowy 20d spun uonduassg
00'000°ST o' T65°9T 00°000'ST SE'986°LT 0000081 salleuad g saa4 uanbuiag
09" EPF'ET- 06'09E"E- o0’y $334 UOHIIUUCD JamIs
unowy 20l suun uonduasaqg
09'Erb'ET St'0L6°GE 00'8EY S8°Z80°0T 000 $334 UOIIBUUD])
00'948- o0'eTE- o'y 5394 uopladsuj g Jwisd
unowy aNlid sHuMn ' uopduzseq
00'948 00'601'T 000 00259 ao'e uopadsu| 1§ SHUWIRg
na3
22'952'T- 29'6EY- ook / 89'GEP=SYIUCW ZT X $9'9ES = BlEl JamIg
unoLy aoug sHun uopduasag
ZLRSLT ZLBSLT TL'YSL'T 9T'ZI9'T ZLBSL'T “rsayfm uonesiuy - sadley) Jamag
198png |e304 Awvpy |eol  198png |elo) Ayanoy ejo)  192png (elol
T20Z-TZOZAd  TZOZOZOZ A4  TZOZ-0ZOZAd  OZOZT-6TOZAd  OZOZ-6TOZ AJ

0-00-006TTZ-20
G-00-00090Z-20
0-00-00550£-¢0
0-00-00050L-T

Aeunwyalg

apo)189png

l'e3aq 338png
X TT-C

Aeujwag
apo) 123png
|e3aq 398png

B-00-00091F-¢0

Aeujwipid
apo) 1a2phg
lleseq 128png

-00-000

Aleupunjauig
opo) 1@8png
leiaq 3adpng

0-00-0FOELF-Z0

1@aysyso 123png



95649471 95'649
94'9T5'B 94915
junowy a1dad
TE'96TIET LS'PEE'SST
000018 05462'L
00°9ZT 00'SZ
unowy d
00szT vy
00°0o0'e 00'000
00'05L 00'005
unowy add
00°0SL2 ZEP00'E
00°005'€ TL0L6'T
00°00E 00'00T
00°00S 007005
00°00T 00°00T
00'008°C 00°00T
Q00'0BE 0008t
00'8LE LT
unoLuy alad
00'8sTY o0n
0070009 00°'000
00000, 00'000
unowy a211d
00'000ET #5'6559T
0000S'T Z6'SOE'T
00°00L LT 6L TEEVT
00°000°0T T9'769'6
193png |ejoL Aunoy R0
TT0Z-T2AZ A4 TZOZ-0ZOZ A

4Z1 00T
‘g 00T
sun
S0°S0£*Y9T
00°00%'L

00's
suun
00'SEE
X4 00T
T 050
sHun
00°0SLT
00'ZEG'E
00
00T
00T
00'sz
00T
00'00E
spun

00°085'T

‘g a0t

L 00T
sHun

00°000°2T

00°00T'T

00°000°ET

00°000CT

123png (e3e)
TZOZ-0Z0Z Ad

06'8E9'TLT
9E0ISE

[A4 T

L9T5TF
SL'629'C

92'0Z6'ST
ZETWO'T
6E'S80°ZT
19°099'6

Aanay jesol
0Z0Z-6T0Z Ad

000
00'098'L

Q0'SEE

000542
00'kL0'E

00'005T

00'000'%2
00'00F

00°000'FT
00°C00‘0T

128png [el0L
0Z0Z-6T0Z Ad

LT0-HT - URG] $TOT
€L0-80 - VR0 BOOT
uondussag

asuadx] ysasaju|

533 JI]SRLLIDIe

VAMWGH
uondunsag

suondyasqng 1g sang

51N
|00 jlBWS J1UEYIAl
uopdiosaq

sjoa] |jews

SuLOHUM

doySyI0AA UOIIEAISSUDY) JATEM
S[EIDIEIN PAIULd UDIIEAIISUCT JRTEAN
HUpny Jarepy

weidold ajeqey I9)I0L

I5HA

1BEPUILED Y MY

uondussagq

WweiSold UOLBAIBSUD) J31eA,

sa||ddns Sunesadg os)y
BULOD
uopduassag

sa||ddng Suijesadg
“WasINgWIay |aABl| pue adeajiy

[and ap1yan

FIURUBILIRY B[IYDA

Adeujwijpid
Aeujuwjid
apo) 1a3png
|le1aq 198png
0-06-100565-10
0-0O-000T95-10

Aleulwinalg

apo) 188png

11e3aq 328png
T00-005955-10

Aeunuiaid

Aleuiwjaag
apo) ya8png
Ile3aq 3adpng

0-00-003%55-T0

0-00-003£55-10

AeUiwiRag
Aedilizad
Adeuiaug
Adeujwifpad
Adeujwiyald
Aleu|waid
apo) 193png
|le3aq w3pnd
0-00-553E55-10

Aeujwiaid
Aeuiwaig
apod jafipng
nelaq 39dpng
0-00-000€95-T0
0-00-00£C55-T0
0-00-TOOSFS-TO

000+ 5-

123aysyomn 198png



95'I86'810'7 86'8Z'304'T eTLSTTINL'Y 89'BLY'L39'T 9Z'ST8'999'T ‘lesoL dHoday

95'T86'810'T 86°'8Z0'30V'T TLLSTTVLT  BS'BLV'IBYT  9T'STR'999'T :[e3o] suoiesadg JeyEM - TO (pUNy

95 TRE'2T0'T 86'8Z1'800T T LSTINL'T 85'BLb'L89'T 92'ST2'999'T :[e3oL asuadxg
¥6'06£'045 8E'E6S'EST'T 050 UOREIO||E LWIPY 40 %05
oWy 274d SHUN :O_un_._umﬂn_

¥6'96£9L5 0L'ZL159% TT'20T'858 9€'/19'061 LEOTS T6Y UOEI0]|Y UIWpY
00°000'S8T 00'000°SBT 00T €2-T/TT-T SUAB1Y 121 UeLld
PE'SIT'TLT PESTZTLT 00T LT0-YT - Ueo] $T0Z
£ L6R'BE EV'£68'BE 0o'T £0£-B0 UBOT 50T
unawy U spun uondursag

LL°ZTTS6E ZYITTLTT +9'820'VZE 68'85EETT 89°€E/'BOE a5 1090

198png |el0L Auaoy R0y 12dpng |m101 Ayanay |eyol 1adpng [R10L

TZ0Z-TZOZ A4 TTOT-0Z0ZAd  TZOZ-020ZAd  OZOZ-6TOZAd  OZOZ-6TOZ Ad

Meuldjaag

apo) adpng

|e12q 1e8png
0-00-001666-T0

Aeurunjaid
Aeujwijalg
Aeujunjaig
apo) 193png
Ieyeq 183png
0-00- 10

192ysyiom 128png



00'009"2 000082 00T SNO3AUR[[2I5| W Aeupuyjalg

00°00F'2 00002 00’1 yoddng g9 AleuiLia.d
unowy 2014d sHun uopduasag apod123png
1e12q 128png
00'000°S 0T LLL"T 00°00%'Z 00°00Y'T 00°00¥'T Hoddng g)n/a1emyos 0-00-009T¢5-20
00005z o000 00°000°0F 000 00'000°0T savlAes BupaauBul 0-C0T05TE5-20
00°000°ZZ 00'00022 00'T Suiuea|) aur] James AdeunRld
0O'BTED 00'8TE9 00T s Areuiunalg
00-0ST'S 00'0ST'S 00'T YoM [2IL3DR]T Ateunwalg
00°00T‘T ¥T°E 00'0SE Hapy Big Aeupuiaid
00°000°6 000006 00'T sqen sepy Aeunwijaud
00ZEY on'at 00'zT suLiey - Uoniealunwwo] As|jep 2|ddy AJBUILLIY D)4
nowy 201d syun uopduasag apo)123png
Ieyaq 1e8png
00000k 26°€66'0T 00'000°0% Z9E6T'TT 00'T89"SY G-00-003T €520
00°000°SE 05 EYRT 00°000°'sT 0S°ETE'SZ 00'000'6T SaIALRE [en1IeIU0) sishjeuy T00-000125-20
EVTL9E LUELRT 00vTT'E {S'BIR'Z 000 Aro1e100E7 JUBWRINGY VHdId T00600015-20
86'60L°E ZYTEE'E #E'80G'E STOEE'T Li'0SE'E 2Ie3IPRIN/YDIS - SaxXE] ||osdeq 0-00-€00075-20
69609 PE666 YT 00'8T0°L 26'059°8T 9t ETH9T uonesuadIo) SIayIoM 0-00-Z000T5-¢0
000089t YTT00'SY 00°0089tr DR'960°BE ¥5'828"6E ue|d WBuag 0-00-T000T5-20
8658 8LV66'TT 00'S62'08 L8'060°€Z 66'899°ZE WBWaIRaY SHAd 0-00-000015-20
00'060°PT 98'Z5TET 00'0TE'FI PLL06'ET Q00TEPT Aed ||e3-uQ - salie|es 0-00-£00005-20
00'000°ZT TE'SIT'IT 00°Z9T'ST 9E'FO6"LT 00°Z9T'sT SWRJBAQ - SBE|RS 00~ =
08'0Z8'THZ PIS65TIT 00°'576'82¢ 80°0€€°022 08'95L°9T2 WL |4 - s3le|es 0-00-T00005-20
asuadxg

sunnesado Jamas - 20 pund

wipngjeiol  Ajapovielol  3eSpngieial  AuMpy (R0l 138png jelol
CTOT-TTOZ Ad TZOZ-0Z0T Ad 1202-0202 A4 0Z0Z-6E0Z Ad 0Z0Z-6TOZ Ad

2202/0£/90 1BUIpU3 poudd £Z02-TZ0T Ad :[EIsid Jod
mwcwn_xm_ pun{ Jomas sD =jepuajsH

199Yys)JoM 1898png r



0002 ZLT09 00°0Z2
OVBT6'ES 0z7'E6V'y 00'zT
PO PTLET [RTYTT 00’71
Ob'EB9'ZT S6'950'T 0071
71816 T5°9L 00Tt
0008Z'% 00'082"y 00°t
96795 50'LY 00zt
8U°EES'E 89'EE5E 00’1
Junowy aNd SHUN
O0'E19'68 YE'ST0'79 00564
00°006 00°00€ 00°€
00'006 00°'00€ 00's
00'T0L'T 00'68T 006
00795 00’881 00°E
00055 00'0TT 00°s
00'006 00008 00's
00'00F 00902 8]0
00022 00'0vz 00°€
00058 00'058 00°T
unouwy 204 SyuUnN
00°S8%'L 20°66€ ap't9r's
00008 00°'008'E 00T
00°000°22 00'000'22 00T
00°000°T 00'000°'T 00T
00°005"y 00'005 Y 00’1
00'000'€ 00'000°¢ 00'T
00'00£ 00'00%°T 050
unowy =15 F syun
00'000°SE 90°660°0€ 00419°42
jefipngejol  Apandyejog  jelpng (ejol
ZE0Z-1202 A4 TZOZ-0ZO0T Ad TZ0Z-020Z Ad

ITLLL 00024 ses - sapAn

T8-P6SK-620-€ (WO0Y JaMOIF dLMM
PL-TT06-62-€ ‘Wed pos
-5651-6C0-C SUQIIEIG 31 UDSUIWIS
Si-565t-620-F TUONEIS YN 418
papAiay Alepuodag

SZ-965t-620-E 'UOREYS Y1 J3uoolds
AN

uonduasag

TO9LT'LL 0’66689 21419313 - salBN

Supoys yousday

Busuies | Bu(S3erd J)jed)

(Aep/ig3) siean g (Aep/geTS) Buidpa
Suuel) vImo

SUOIDRI0T YIMD

aoedg pauyuo)

S18410

1§ 18IS L1 - uojlens|3ay / Juueds n3d
[eavauay [ SUDilEIYIIS)

1BYSAUIY UOITEIYNIDS

uopdpasag

LE6L9'T 00°£9%'9 Sujuel) pue uoneanpg

Of Auxaidwa) /1eauy) - GIHMS
8z Axa|dwod /1.3y L - GIUMS
OHJ JAS VO LYWZYH vSdv
‘WdnJ-uenaalold 2 o3 gs
SROBUB|[25IN

SED JEN ‘dLMAMELI

[osaiq pod sen‘adpnis - aWOYaW
%08 153 juey [and [enuuy

) uondiasag

ST9SEPE 00°000'9T 5934 pue SHWISg

Aoy |eo) 183png |B10)
0Z0Z-610Z A 0ZOZ-6TOT Ad

-GO-TO0T

Aleujwralg
Alevi 2.4
Aleulw|algd
Algulluljalg
Aeupwyjald
Aleuinalg
AJeuinaid
apo)12ipng
#2134 135png

Aeujwalg
Aeuiwpad
feujwiaig
Aleujuuzad
Aeun|ad
AdBuiwjaid

Aeujwijaid
Aeusunaid
Aleupwi@id
apo) 1@98png
|1e3aq] 3a8png
(R 74zd]

Aleujwyald
Adeuiw=dd

Aeujwiplg
AdeujwiRid

Aleuiun|dad

Aleulw|aly
apo] yadpng
Ite3aq 138png

0-C0-000E¢a-20

129ysyiopn 19dpng



00°00T 00001 00'1
00°0ST 0£0 00005
unowy 3d sHun
00°05% o0on 00085
00°0002T SrTrTor 00°000's
0000587 9E'9vET 00°002'T
000006 29'THs's 00°000'6
0T LZ9'ST 00'890'6E or'o
00°OF6'T 00'0v6T 00t
unowy g suun
07'£95°LT [4% 42X 00°0Z8'9T
00°000°8T €6'998°9T 00°000°5Z
00v8LT 00ZET 00z
00°ZTE 009t 00zl
00ozL 0009 Tt
00°09¢ 00'CE [1ligas
00°0ZL 0002 00zt
junowy a3l SN
00'968'Y 69'TOTE 00968
00°0ZLY 00'65 0008
00°006'T 00'SLY ooy
unowy 20)4d sHufn
00’0299 TWELSY 0O'00E'9
00°00¢ 05T Q0°00Z
unowy adlad SHUN
00'00€ 000 [+1a%1]
00'0ZL 00°03 oozt
unowy g syun
198png |e30) Aunnay e1oL 133png |e10L

Ze0Z-120Z Ad TZ0Z-020Z Ad T2¢0Z-020T Ad

94901 00095
ZO'0EL'S 00°000°0T
05'STZ'T 00002
68°E108 00°005'8
LETIIET 0007891
STHre'TL 00'000°0E
CS'GBE'Y 00968
25 T0T'6 00'008°L
000 000

Moy oL 198png jelol
0Z0Z-6TOZAd  0Z0Z-6T0Z Ad

asIN
JaA|4 oy
uondirsaq

yaeanng oliqnd
salddng Supedado

“UISINGUIY [9ABLL puE 333

12n4 3PIYRA

JSIEAN W43 JUSWISING WY JOGET] JIUBYIBN
SINAIAG 1§ SHE Jieday aPIysp, |esausD

uondiisaq

SIUBURIUIEW 3DIYSA,

saUBUBUIRRY pUE SUolEId]

s10)e12dQ) £ -SS3[IM UOZLIBA
13|geL - SSB|3JIM UOZLIBA
uonElS 41 uoSYYWS

%05 - VYIS

$530014 40} WLIE|Y SAUJ| pUET JARUSIY

uonduzsaq

auoydaja|

spijosolg - 824 Buiddi] =|esods|q 98pn|s

adpns - Buney 233Lng
uopdursag

|esodsiq 1sodwon/a8pn|s

|eudaju] J31epA - SanLRN
uopdusag

dLMM -121EM-S3UIAN

dLAA - SED 1samUInos
uopduasag

AlBujWDI4

Areunwitiaigd
spo) 13spng
lleyeq 123png

0-00-555855-00

0-00-000%55-20
0-00-00£255-20
0-00-T00575-20

Aleujwinaly

Aleulwiald
apo) 1adpng
e¥aa 123png

0-00-0005t5-20

0-00-000TPS-20

Ateujwyalg
Aleujtugaly
Aeujwalg
AeuwiRId
Aeujwipy
#pod jafpng
llelog 393png
0-00-0052ES-20

Aeunwigaad

Aeuiwiaig
apod 199png
|Ie3aq 199png

0-00-900T£5-Z0

Aeujwipig
apo) 1adpng
|1ezaq 193png

T-00-¢00TES-20

Aeujwijpad
apo) yafpng
le1aq 139png

1eaysxytop 189png



ZI'686'9E2'T 9Z'FIT'0SEL SEEEELET'T 99°96.L°202'T SSE9L'STTT :je3o) Hoday
IT'686°8EZ'T 9T FIT'0SE'T SE'EEE'L6T'T 99°96L°L0Z'T SS'E9LSTTT ‘{23101 SUopeIadE JaMmas - Z0 :pund
I 686'SEZ'T ITPIT'0SET SE'EEEL6T'T 99°96£02'T SSESL'STTT i[e30) asuadxgy
00°00T 2t 00'00T'ZY- 00'T {34ed woig) 1di30ay JWaLIARy LEOT puniaiu|
unowy astid syun uonduasag
00 00T Zh- 0€'£80"5¢E- 00'00T T 0o 00°00T ZP- {u1)/anQ J3ysuel) punpiaiug
00°T9Z's95 88'E6S'EST'E 6F°0 UOREIO|E UIWIPY JO %6
unowy aald syun uopduasag
00°'192°995 0T'698'55t S0'EF0'LYS 050808y 99°089°T8Y UORESD||Y Ulpy
94'9L€'68 9L9LEBS 00T ¥20-20 3DUBUEY UBDT OZ0T
wnowy 39l4d syun uopduasag
9/°9/£'65 ZTSPE'BS LTOTL9S 9T°56%'2S EQTHO'SL 831035 193
80'000"€T 80°000°€T oot ¥T0-Z0 RauBUYaY Ueo 0Z02
Junowy aMid sun uondyuasag
80'000'ET STOET'LT SE'SZERT 6970522 oo'o asuadx 1521y
0005 00'sZ 0oz {0055y Ja1BAA UNN L1353 YBIH) YAINGH
Q0099 00072 0O'E vamd
unowy ald Sun uwonduasag
;6 0) ¥ 00°2Z5E 0D'EYD 00762 00°Ev9 suonduasqns g sang
00005'E 00°005°E 00T ISIN
00°000'T 00°000°2 050 1001 |lews JuBydaly
Junowy 3Md 2 T1TY] uoljduasag
00005 26'066'T 00°000°€ 95'59€'T 00000 sloa) j|ews
QU'EVT'E Z20°856'T 00'EPTE T VIe'T 00°'8TO'E suLoyiun
00°00€ 00'00€ 00’1 s|elsiel Yaeanng
198png |e301 Auanay (ewo] 198png |ejo) fyanay pero) 193png |eyoL
TZ0T-TIOZ Ad TZOT-020Z Ad TT0Z-0202 Ad 0Z0Z-6TOZ Ad 0Z0Z-6T0Z A

Aleunwiaig
2po2 apng
I1e1aq 198png

0-00-006666-20

Aeuswiad
apo) ye8png
l'e3aq 193png

0-00-00T666-20

Adgunundad
apo) yadpng
|e¥aq 333png

'0-00-000008-20

Aleujwald
apo) 123png
I1elaq 1w8png

0-00-T0D565-¢0

Aeuiwipdd

AeujBlg
apo) 193png
Je1aq 338png

0-00-005555-¢0

AeujwiRd

Adeujwald
apod 198png
llexaq 123png

0-00-009%55-20

0-00-009E55-20

Adeujwjaid

1@aysyop 129png



2207/0£/90 :Buipu3 polad 220Z-TZ0T A4 i{eDsld 1od

INUIAY 3ISEM PIIOS
199Ys)JO0M 183png

00°09T°L 00’0 00'0 00’0
00°000Z ¥18E0°C 00'000% 8T'OVL'T
00°005°S 97'99Z's 00°005°€ 8E°65Y'L

TE'998'ITT- ¥T'58- 00'889°C

95'L65 Y- PT58- oS

junowy aLld syun
88'ESH'EET 91°0£5'572 90°LPETET LT'RTSFIT

00'002"L- 00'009- 00zt

uncuy sud sjun
00'00€'L 86°SET'L 00'000°L 9Z'STEL
ag'o 00'S9E 000 aoQ

00'918°081- 09°T02- 00'S8ET

0809925~ 80°ZZ- 00'S9ET

0b'685°0T- iy 00'S8E'T

02 LwL'6T- 9/'68- 000z

oF'9LT- ¥9'LT- 00'0T

9g" - 9t L¥- 00T

ZL°8L0°2T- 89'522- 00'%S

0¥ €00°2- v80- 00'S8ET

wunowy 32d SUUN
8T'615'8LS 8E'9ST0TS ¥b'680'2895 0Z'T8T'605
138png |e10L Aoy ejo)l  138png eloL Aiapy [el0)
ZZOT-TZOZ A TZOZ-OTOTAJ  TZOZ-OZOZAd  0ZOT-6TOZ A4

0-00-00T<TL-30
4] 0504
0-00-00950L-90

Aeunwnaig
apo) yedpng
Ie3aq 393png

0-00-00050£-90

AJeuiwijald

apod ye8png

|lelaqa 325png
0600567530

0-00-00061+-90

AeuiuRid

Aleuiwgjaly
Adeunualg

AeupuRid

Aleujwald
apod =dpna
(rejaq 12dpng

0-00-00001-50

ahuaAly

|esodsiq 915eM PIIOS - 90 spUng

000 anuanzy uiaAiay
00005 saxel juanbujjaq vo salyjeuay
00°005'9 LB BENBY 1A Id - S)WISSY [e1oadg
$T°58% 4453 Ajiued I)3ug
#1°58% 4453 opuod
tojjdlasag
00'84T°SET 4453 - s1wssy [eads
sajleuad
uoidpasaq
GO00E's s9|1jeusd 3 s394 wanbuljsg
Q00 S301A12E 1§ 5394 JAYI0
09°T0TS = SYIUoW TT X 0F'9TS$ MBS ysel |,
80'TTS = SYIUOW ZT X #8°T5 33135 Sulphiay
P ps = 2T % ££'04 = SulIneH 3)sep UG
9£°68S = TT X 8¥' LS [9JJed ysed | enxg
v3°LT8
=SIUOL 7T X £'TS (aideq Bulaisay eix]
QE"LbpS = SYIUOW ZT x g7 LES ¥3(dnq
{udsa/m)
89'EZZS = SYIUOW ZT X $3'8T$ Opuol
$8°08 = SYIUOW ZT X £0'0G A13A0IDY 8TE
uondiseq
0Z'T0¥'80S B1SEAN PIjOS - SB0IAISS 10} saEIEY)
183png je10)
020Z-6TOZ Ad

Qs 2|epu=@H




9T EE8'ZS8 26°089°0SL 05°9E6'828 6E'PTT0SL 0Z'086'65L |e1o) Woday

9T°€€8°258 26°0£9°05L 05'9E6'828 68'bZ2°0SL 0Z'086°65L ijejol [esods|a sisem PIIOS - 90 spund

91°ce8'258 Z6°089°05L 05'9£6'878 GEFTL0SL 0Z°086'65L i|ej0] anuaaay

00°000'02 00°0 00'0 aoo 000 anuaaay Aieuopalosiq piecg

00°000'T 000 000 000 oo'a INLIATY JuURID
00°09T'T- 0o0'06z- 00'¥ Buiphoay sseapey
00'0o0'e- 000071~ 0g's BuypAaay asem-3
unowy g Syuft uondussag

13dpng |30y Aunpyelol  382png |ejo) fuanoy elo)  je3png |ejoy

ZTOT-TTOT Ad TZ0T-020Z Ad T20Z-0Z0Z Ad 020Z-6TOZ Ad 0Z0Z-610T Ad

BO0-00£666-90
0-00-0000%.-90
Aeujujalg
Aeujwalg

apoy 1elpng
1e3=q 3@dpng

1Paysom 128png



000096

00'000"8ET

unowy
00'009'L1T 8€°L09"FET
000 00'ss

00'9T8'0BY

08'099°28

0T’ LvL'sT

0b9LT

9E' Lt

TL'8L0'TT

unowy
8¢'976°995 OEPIL eI
000 oo'o
86'996'S ZE'SET'S
000 L0729y
000 679971
£9°8ETT 69°EED'T
GS'SaYE LTSLY'E
00'002TE £8'3ETTZ
000 L10TE
09'SZP's8 P TEI 8L

00°008
00°0Q5
aoug

05107
80°2¢
9.'68
NN
9E°LiP

89°€7¢
apg

188png |p1oL Ayanoy (230l
T0T-TTOT Ad TZOZ0Z0Z Ad

2207/0€/90 :Buipul polad ZZ0e-T20Z Ad 182514 Jod
asuadx3 21sepn plIos

193Ys)iom 103png

00°¢T
% 00°ZT

5N
00'9S6'£ZT
00'Q

00'S8ET

00'SBE'T

00’0z

00°01
00T
00'bs
syun
U LTE'OrS
000
00°LE5'S
000
000
OF'6YL'T
00'89L'T
00007 TE
000
00'692'6L

198png |e10L
1Z02-020Z A4

79'8956ET
00'€TT

96'ELP'EOS
000
68'8PT'S
00
{6'BST'T
vO's0L

8L TEY'Y
62'55¥°07
£€'9TL
YS9ZLg

Aunpy |m0l
0Z0Z-6TOZ Ad

284 ssed dwng Arunod g5
23} [esods|g [ERUIRISDY

uoiduasag
00°2L0'9TT $324 |esodsiq Auno) gs
0o s34 puUe s}wiad

09'TOZS = SYILOW ZT ¥ 08'9T$ anaG Yseu)

80'7Z$ = SYUOW T X @ T$ 33unIas Bulphoay
9/'68%

= SYJUOW ZT X 8b"/$ [911eq ysed| enx3
LTS

=SYIUOW ZT X £ TS [eueg Bujphoay enxg
9E'£irb$ = SYIUOW ZT X §Z'£€4 ¥@|dng
R9°EZTS = SYIUOW ZT X #9°8T$ opua)

uonduasag
0891 L9F 5334 291LINg - 2IIAISS JIRIIUOD
00°00T'E 530|A13S |ENIEIUO]
oo UsWAINSY YHdad
000 £t asuadxg uswalnay
000 asuadx3 [eyuag / uoisip,
PT'€90'T RPN /YIS - SOXEL ||0sAed
T'9L0Y uonesuadwo) sIyJop
9E'069'TT ue)d 14suag
TE'EBED luawsinay sYid
00'0ZE'EL WL |thd - sallefes

ARujRId

Aeujwjalg
apo) 1a3pna
lle1aq 323png

0-00-005£25-90

D-00-000875-90

Aeunuiaag
Aeujuigeld
Adeujw|aiy

AeujRly
Aeujuiald
Aeujugalg
apo3 123png
lle3aq 1edpng

OO-00STZE-
0-00-6000T5-90
0-00-£000T5-90
0-00-500075-390
TO0-E00015-30

-00-2
0-00-T000T590
G-00-0000TS-9
0-00-TO0G0S-90

asuadx3

[esodsiq e1sEAL PIIOS - 90 (pUN4

125png [el0)
0Z0Z-6T0T Ad

s 2epul|sH



00'00€'T £5°Z90°T 00°00E°T BEGT'T 00°00T'T
00052 26491 T0'6EY 000 00°FIL

00002 00002 00'T

000szZ 00°052 co'T

00°00T a0'00tT 00T

005z 00°SZE 00’1

00001 00°00% 00'T

00°00Z 00°00T 002

00°00% 00'00T 00'1

00°09% 0008 00T

unowy asd sjun
00°'SEL'T 0452t 00°SEL'T £0'vZF 000907
00059 94°SLL 00°059 S5°679 00059
000 [2% T4 000 000 00'00€
000 CS'E0T 000 000 00'0
000002 T8'GHST 000052 €8'066'T 00'09€'E

00°00S'T 000057 00T

YE'TI8L £8'990'6E Z00

unowy 20l4d SuNY
vE18Z'e Z6'T6ST TEALTT T9'EEL 00°00T'2
000 T8t 000 00a 0o

00°Z1E 009z 00T

junouy 2d syun
00°ZEE Tr'osz 00'ZIE £9°6T 00'ZIE
00’0 00°000's 00'000°9 00°000%9 [s,00(4]
ooo 000 00 00'0 00008

00002 0009 00'0L

Or'zsze T€95T o0oF

junowy adlid sjun
ov'ZSP 0T £5°609'8 00°000°¢T ER'TS09T 00°000'ZT
3adpng |R30L Auanoyjelol  1e8phng |ejo) AYMIIY jer0L 193png |ej01
T20Z-TTOZ A4  T202-020ZAd  TZOZ-OZOZAJ  OTOZ-6TOZ A OZOZ-6TIO0Z Ad

5150D Sunuld

suLIojun

Bupsodwo] - doysyion,
1891U03 1y paaAday

5N

sa[ddng - Aep Yuieg

spoo4 - Aeq Yueg

sSpood - Aeg dn UED(D

Jauued - Aeg dn uea|)
sano|D 13 s8eg - Aeg dn ues|d
uopdussaq

Yaeannho aljgng
Alanl|ag g adejsoy
sal[ddng Bujjesady

“wasIngUIISY (asel] pue aSes|ily]

[3hd PI3A

S3IAIRG 77 S1ed
JUSWSSINGWIZY JOGET JJUBYIBN
uopdussag

2aueuIuIRly 3]IYDA

SoUBUSUIBIN pue suofeladg

UBlq e3e(] '8 19|qe - 553NN UOZURA
uopduasag
auoydaja)
3}ed 18 afeios - spuay
Suiujes) pue uoneanpy
234 Buidd|L
Suney
uopduzsag

|esodsiq 21SeA URRID

0-00-00£E55-90
TO0-005ESET0

AU aid
Adeu(ijadd
Aleulwi|aiy
Adeuiwiaid
Aleunwjaid
AU jadd
Aleupjalg
Aleuiwijalg
spo) 1adpng
lleyaq 3edpng
0-00-55555590
0-00-002€55-90
0-00-000£55-90
~00-004455-9
TO0T00%E530

Aeuiwpag

Aeujwijaid
8po) jadpng
|lesaq 128png

0-00-0005%5-30

Aleuiwijaad
apo? 1a3png
[1e32q 335png

0-00-0052%5-90

0-00-005£25-90

0-00-00425-90

AeuiwiRed
apo) 198png
lie3aq 198png

1Paysyiom 123png



96°6ZE'TLE 20'BZ¥EVL 66'2LE'ATB £4°90£'082 LZ'8p6'SEL ‘jesol uoday

96'6ZE'TLE Z0'6ZH'EVL 66'TLE LS €£'902'08L LT BVE'SEL :|e3o) |esodsiq a15ep, pIjas - 90 :puny
96°6ZETLS Z0'6ZH'EVL 66°TLE'028 £2'00£'08L LTBVE'SEL i|ejo] asuadxg
$6'GESTT 88°65'6ST'T 100 UOIIEI0||R UILUPY JO %T
Junowy a1d sun uondursag apo) 329png
llelag 398png
¥6'SES'TT 05086 PTFOTTT T8 ZT0EB'S Uoneso|y ullpy 0-00-00T666-90

wipngpo)l Aoy ielol  1eEpng|mol  Awabyielo)  1edpng elol
TZOZ-TZ0Z A4 TZOZ-0ZOZA:  TZOZ-0ZOZAY  OZOZGTOZAd  0OZOZ-6T0Z Ad

19aysjIom 1285png



99'6SZ'ELT 9T LEDL8T 00°0Z9°6LT 66'92Z'8ET 25'650°6TZ :|e30) Hoday

99°GSZTELT 9T LE0L8T 00029641 66'9Z2'8EL TS'650°61Z i[e30) 183ua) BuipAaay - g0 pung
99°6S2 ELT 9Z'£20'L82 000Z9'6LT 66'97T'BET 25'650°612 |e30) BnusARY

PE'OPL9ZT- 6E'SH 00'08E'¥8- 000 81 0V6'vL- anuaAsY ABUONBIISI] pIROg
000 00°0 000 00'000°0T 000 anuaAay Juelg
00°000'00E L8°T66'98 00°'000°Y9Z 66'977'87¢ 00°000°'¥6T Jaqua) Suiphasy - s3jes i1y
1adpng |e10) Aupy el 38dpng oL Aoy [El0l  3a3png jejol

ZIOZ-TZOZ A4 TZOZ-O0ZOZAd  TZOZ-0Z0ZAd  OTOT-6TOZAd  OZOT-6TOZTAd

€202/0£/90 1BUIpU3 popdd Z02-120T Ad 282514 Jod
3NUIAIY 2101S WY1 /I21ud) SulpAday

199YSH4I0M\ 198png

as> slepus|oH

0-00 -
0-00-0000FL-E0

ahuanay
Jayua) Buiphaay - €0 ipunyg



000 418 000 ao0'0 00'0 suoyun 0-00-009E55-€0
00'0000T ¥7'868'6 00°000'8 06'956'8 00'000°0T saljddng Supessdo 0-00-000t55-€0
00'00F [Ay4: 14 00°'00E 99°9Z¢ Q00 auedoid/|and aplysa 0-00-T00STS€0
00'000T LT'819 00'000'2 8278282 000 SIUBURIVIEIN PIYIA 0-00-0005F5-20
00°00S'T 80°TL0°T 00°000'T 88'STL'T 000002 JoueuUIE puE suopesadQ 0-00- g
00°09S'T 00°0ET feloiras 3uj| piey Npaly Adeujupad
unowy aslig sHufn uondussaq Bpo7) 10dpng
l1e32q 198png
00°095°T B9 PER'T 00'¥ZS'T PESEET 00°860'T auoydasjal, 0-00-005CES-E0
00'790°L 05'88% 0ozt 0Z-5956-L£0-€ Aleliuaid
unowy 20lid syun uopduasag apo?) 133png
lessq 1w8png
00°790°L QEP8E'S 000099 8t'ST89 00°000°8T 2HI313 - SAAN 0r00-000TES-€0
00'000'% 68°855°E 00'000'E 89'608'¢€ 00°000°€ safiey yueg 0-00-G066ZS-t0
00'009 000 00005 00009 00°009's SuisiaApy 0°00-T09925-E0
00005 000 00008 000 00°'00% Sujujes) pue ucpeanpy 0-00-00GFCa-E0
00005 00°00S 00’1 28I
00°C00°T 00°000'T 00T 533|AJBS BOUBUSIUIEN Aeujwaag
00°000°T 00'000'T 00’7 |ea3ueD 31BWD Aleunjalg
unowy 20)4g sHun uopdiesag apo) 193png
Ileyaq 3edpng
000052 BY'EZE 00°00¢'y STRIL 00'00E'S §201AlaS |enjlenuod 0-00-005TZ5-£0
000 60°LLY- 000 000 000 asuadxz WawAodwaun 0-00-F000TS-€E0
11'5£9°6 66'SEE'L 00'6ZH'0T 68'68LST 9E'T0L'TT 2JeaIpalnl DI - saxe] ([otheq 0-00-£0i
$S8'060°T P LSTE 00'TZTT 60°'TOS'E 9T'I80E uonesuadwIo) SIBYI0M 0-00-2000T5-€0
00'TLVIZT T 6856 00'9ZE'9ET 86 FSETOT 00'656°TST Al -ped - s3leRg -0 -
asuadu]
133ua) Buiphaay - €0 ;pund
398png |04 Ayapow ol 393png |ejo) Ayapoy |elol  3edpng |0l
ZZ0Z-TZO0T Ad TZOUT-02Z0Z Ad TZ0Z-0207 Ad 0ZO0Z-6TOZ Ad 0ZOZ-6TOZ Ad

ZTOT/0L£/90 :Bulpuz polad ZZ0Z-120Z Ad :|eds1d o4 »
asuadx3 21015 Yy /191ua) BulppAday asd alepus|ay

199YSHIOM 108png -




99°65Z'ELT SL'SP8SET 00°029"'6LT 66'922"8E2 25'6S0'612 ljejo) Hoday

99'65Z'ELT SL°SPB'SET 00'0Z9'6LT 66'9TL'BET Z5'650°6TT o {|elo), s33ua) Sutiphiay - €0 Jpund
99'6SZ"ELT SL°SY8'GET 00" 029'6LT 66"9ZZ"BEL ZS'650°6TE ijelo L asuadxg

00°000°L £7'30T9 00°0Z0°r L6962 00°0Z8'S weidold aAIURIU| 33
000 9t'EE 00’0 00Q oo 5|00 |jews
1a8png jelol AlANOY (e30) 123png |etoL AMY |El0L 1a8png [e10L

TLOT-TTOT Ad TTOT-0Z0C Ad 1Z0Z-020Z Ad 020Z-6307 Ad 0T0Z-6T0C Ad

0-00- S-E0
0-00-009%495-E0

1RaysIoM 108png



00°082'82T 08'942°42T 00°08b'8ZT 0T L1T'621 T6°L60°01T
L 00°082'82T 08'9LZ°421 00°08'8ZT QT ZIT'62T T6°L60°0TT
00°082'32T 0R'9£2°5ZT 00°'08t'82T o0T'L11'621 T6°L60'0IT
000 00'0 000 000 600TE'EE-
00°009'EE- 00°004- (10317
UNowy oy SHuR
00"009°EE 0%'TES'EE 00'009°€E 01°Z9T°0¢ 00'826'62
00°000'9E- 00'000°E- o'zt
0000021 00°000°T- 00zt
0O'000'8T- 00'005°T- 0ozt
00°000'9- 00005~ 00'ZT
00°000°2T- 00'000'T- 00zt
00'G89'0T- 00'068- [alipras
Junowy g spun
00° 0896 000ET'EG 00°089°F6 0008536 00°08+'Z0T
oo 00'STS 00°002 00'SLE 00'0
123png |e10) Ay ejoy 133png |20l ANANDY |eyoL 198png (2100
TTOT-TTOZ A TZOZ-0ZOZAd  TZOZ-OTOZAd  OZOZT-6TOZAd  OZOZ-6TOZAd

2207/0€/90 :Buipul polad ZZ02-T20Z Ad :[edsld Jod
2NU3AlY sall4adold

199Ys)ioMn 193png

Jlerod Yoday
(€301 [e3uey Auadoud - 0 :pund
o LIRELTEN

anuanay AJeuonalasiq pieog 0-00-00L666-1¥0

a-v sun Aeutujaig
uopdusaq apo) ja8png
|'e13q 1@3png
{EIUSH PROY PILW SZ¥ST ~00-000E30 -7
2Z/4 nayy Ayladoud Gouey - 4§ Jun Adeujw|z1d
EL R Aeujwijaid
a#uun Aseuunzud
J#HIN Adeullu|jaid
g4 1N Meupwijaid
Vi wan Adeurujaad
uopdudsag apo) Jedpng
I'=1aq 195png
[E3UY UOSYHWIS ZOEST -0 9F-7i

sal}jeuad Juanbunag 0-00-00S6TH-#0

anuaaay
|ejudy Auadoud - pg pung

as?d 3lepuajaH



2202/0€/90 Buipu3 pollad ZZ0Z-TZ0Z Ad :1evsld Jod
asuadx3 santadold

199YsHI0M 198png

00°000°0T

7L'BSLT

Wnowy

TLBSLT

0¥'B6TE
unewy

O'86T'Z
0Z'S0T'T

00 LET
unowy

0TZPET
z9091T
00°SE8'Z
unowy

Z9°566°E

007008

00°00L°E

00°L9E

00°000°S

188png |eyoL
TZOZ-TZOT Ad

ZE'ECH'OT
95'9%T
g
z1°L29
0T'€8T
22ld
STGPET
or'ee
0sT
2311d
SO'9EY
496
05T
aoud
05046
EEL9ET
R 58E'E
S0"9EE-
000
000
AYNPY €300
TZ0Z-0Z0Z A4

00°E€9°T

a0zt

suupy

ZL85L'T

00zt
suun

ov'S5I'T

00zt
00°8ST
sHun

OTIVET
00°ZT

00°068'T
sHun

TLTTL
00008
00'00E'E

0098

00°'000'S

12dpng |elol
TZUZ-0Z0Z Ad

ET°E8S'E

000

000

000

000
TS9VE'T
76'468'T

00°L9¢E
D0'STE

Ay |30l
0Z0Z-6T0Z Ad

00°000°S

4.0)4]

000

000
00°095°T
00'959°y

0070

00°000°0T

1a8png |el0),
0ZOZ-6TOZ Ad

WG - 33UBUAIUIERY B uoleadl

95'97TS
= y9°9€ X SHU( T - S8d1eyD Jamas Alluoy
uopdusssq

PIIM - J3M35 - SaiIN

0Z°E8T=F¥5'9E X S1UN § - UOSLLIWS JOMIg
uonduasaq

UOSLAIWIS -1aM35 - S2IH[aN

0T'Z6% = S0°91S X Z - seBuey) Jalay Jajem
uondwnsuoy) Ja3ep
uoiidpaseqg

"PY Pl ~JoTeA-SIIAN

o2 - 5381eyD 1219 I21BA
uondwnsuod 13
uopdposeq

UOSYRIS -I1e A-SIUIRN

PY Pl - Se9 - SN

PY Pl - 211933 - SaLn
saa4 funo) oulplewlag Uues

S30LAJBS [EN)IRIILOY

as3 sjepua|pH

70000075

Aleuiwaig
apo) 1edpng
neasa 3@dpng

S 00-E00TESF0

Aeujwipig
apa) 103png
leisq 1a8png

¥-0C-E00TES-F0

Aeujwyprg

Aeuiwjjalg

apa) 192png

lieraq 3@8png
& N =

Meujwijpig

Meujuaid
apo) 1@dpng
IIe33q 199png

F-00-C0TESF0

5-00-TCOTES-Y0

S-00-000TES-¥0

0-00-005€25-F0
0-D0-00GTZ510
asuadxy

|ejuay Auadoad - g puny



S8'U66LTT 18°598°T0T £6'266'90T oT'L1T°621 T6°260°0TT [ejog Loday
S8'v66'LTT T8S98°TOT E6°Z66'90T OT'LTL 62T T6'260°0LT l[e3o) [ejuay Apsdoad - 0 tpung
...... B - SE'Y66'LTT T9'S98°T0T £6'766'90T 0T £TT'62T 16'Z60°0TT i|e10) asuadx3
ST'vS6°L9 ST'v56'(9 00’1 ¥2T0-0T Aleujuaid
Junowy 3aud sHun uondulsag apo) 1aipng
Ie3sd 328png
[ L) S9°'TL6°09 ZE'606'v9 000 T6'TR8'GE Aladoud [ejuay - annas 1qag F-00-000008-70
9R'BLBYT 98'8.8'PT 00T aseyaung Aysdold +70-02 - ueo Aeuw@.d
unowy aolsd syufn uondursaqg po) 1eBpng
|1e3aq =28png
98’8801 EG'ETI'0Z 8924602 000 0070 asuadx3 15as33u1 0-00-T00565-v0
00°000'9 PT'6ELT 00000y ¥9'961' 00°000°€ “'PIIAA - 2JUBUSILIEIA 7 UofEIAdD T00-000TFS 70

198png e300 Auapoy |elop 1a8png (elol Ayanoy 10, 199png |eloL
Z20Z-TZ0Z A4 T20Z-0Z0ZAd  TZOZ-0ZOZAd  OZOZ-GTOZAd  OZOZ-6TOZ AJ

193ysIoAn 195png



2202/0€/90 :buipug poued 2Z02-TZ0¢ Ad :le3sl4 Jod
anuaAay Yled

199YS)JOM 198png

00°000°L

00°000'9-
96'7L6'T-

unowy

9EVLEL
o000

00°009'6-

unowy

00'009°6

00°000"S-

unowy

00°000'S
00°000's

Qa0'00s-

00°005"L-

unouwy

00'000'8

00°005'E-

unowy

00°009°E
00°000°T

1afipng |e10)
CI0T-TTOT A

00004 T 00°000°s
00'005- 00°'ZT
86'LE- 00'zs
3old suun

TLTEST 00°000'9

00'000's 00'000'9
00'008- 00'zZT
anldd sHun

00'000"8 00°009'6
oo'ot- 00°005
d syun

00'0SE’'8 00°000's

TL9E2'8 00'000's
00°00%- 00'T
00'sL- 00°00T
a3l sypun

00082 00°008'0T
00'09- 0009
aud SHUnN

o000 00°000°9

000 00'000°T

Aynpy eic]  333png [elol

TZOZ-0ZOZ A4  TZ0Z-0ZOZ Ad

000

00°000'9

00°000's

000096

00'GET
00'7£5'9

08'0£5°0T

00'050°9
00°0V6'T

Ayanay 230
020Z-6TOZ Ad

000

00'000'9

00'0009

00°009°6

000
00°008°0T

0000807

00°000°S
00°qotT

138png [e10L
020Z-6T0Z Ad

|e3uaY p[ald yied

Aepung |e3uay yoinyy
{Aepanmies) [eauay yainydy
uopd|nsaq

- |e3UY D UM JauaD) AHUNWWoD)

15BN PIIOS WD -jed ik 3Feio)g

doys Jateps
uodussag

awoou| asea doys Je1ep

1UesD 193 YNEW 1IEN
uojyduasaq

193 19)JejA] s1oulle

BNUIAIY 193JelN SISULIES
diysiosuods
yoea §7% 1183208
uonduasag

133008 YIno,

yoea g% :||leqiased
uoduasag

294 weifoid andes j|eqlayseg

5394 WEAF0.d U3ea)a3y

¢-04-000191-50

Aleuiwijaid

Aleupw|ald
apo) 1wdpng
(1213 129png

- 1>-000T9%-50

T-0v-00019%-50

Aeujwipid
apo) je8png
lreazq 123png

T-00-000055-50

Meupwijaid
apo?) 188png
|te1aq 1=dpng

B-00-7000ET-50

0-00-F000EY-S0

Aeujwpid
Aleujun|pig
apo) 1adpng
Ieyaq 3adpng
0-00-E000EF-50

Aeuwijpid
a2po) 192png
lle1aq 123png

0-00-¢

000

anuaAasy

uopEIDSY 1§ S - SO JpUng

asd s|epusipH



TETOS'OFS LO'6VE"SOP P9°ES8'005 SE'E99°'TZR ££'800'0£9 ‘[eyol Woday

TE'TOS0VS LO0'6PE'SOY o £58'005 SE'EINITY €E"800'0€9 €10 UDI1EIIIDY 'R SHIRY - SO :pUNng
TETOS'0VS Lo 6RE'SOr POESR'00S GE'E99TZY €€'800'0£9 [ejol anuUIASY
00'000'8L- 00'005'9- 00T vin Aeujunaid
9€°058'T6- 9505816~ 00T 204 as|yauBl] 31SEM P]0S Adpuiuad
00'000°02 0000002 Q0T 3SEM, |05 Adeuiwaid
¥E0FL'92T- YEOFL9ZT- 00T 19N Jajuz) JusAssy Aleupnaad
¥6°0T5'08- $6°0TS08- 00T 3)i5 Jamo L olpey Aleuiuiald
T4 vE'vOT- TLPPEYOT- Q0T saxe] Ayadalg Adeupui)|a.d
unowy ao|4d SHUN uonduasag apod 199png
Ie38q 183png
SEOFY TS 8¥' PO0'EZE I E0O0LTY ZTOEQ'REE €E'899°0ZY 3nuaAlYy AeuoRadsq pleog -00- -
oog ZL'69¢E 000 00’0 00" 000°0ET nusAaYy ULl -00- B
000 00'g oot djyJosuods Ja2305 YIno, Adeuiwiaid
a0'c 000 0o'T diysiosuods asa] |elJOwWRA Aeugwigaid
000 000 o't diysiosuodgyied ey} ul sy4edUC])
00°005'S- 00'005'5- 00'T UONEUO( [ENUUY 3310ng Aeuiwyaig
000 on'g 00T diysiosuods anSea || eqiaxseqy Aeunwiaad
junowy 33ud syun uoiduasag apoe) wEpng
|teaq 3e8png
00°00%'s 00°E9SZT 00'06£°0T 00'9TLTT 000621 djysiosuods 73 suoneuoq 0-00-Z000EZ-50
00°08B"9- 00°0T£'T- 00y s394 1aedw] Juswdojansq yed Adeudld
Junowy anud s3un uonduasaq apo) 1adpng
|1e3ag 328png
00'088'9 00°026°8t 00'0 00'09T’s 000 s34 10edw) Juswdajanag e D-00-00ZETZ-90
06'000'8T ¥E'BTEDT Q0°09T'LT €8'76E'9T 00°009'9T 534317 19345 - saxe] Apadodd 0-00-0000CGL-50
00°00S'T 0S°EL 00'00S°T 0582 00°005'T Q78 3 - |E1uay JajuaD Ajunwiwo) - -G53
a0°000'z- 00°005- 00’y lleg [2ABIL Aeuiwiald
00°000°s- 00°000's- 00T lIequ0S/12020%5/||eq1004 ASH 10} [eIUaY plald Aeujuialyg
unowy aolyg s uopduoseqg ape) 199png
lle3aq 1adpng

198png |e301L Auapav ewol 188pnyg je1o) fAynoy ml0p 198png |e10L
TZ0T-TZOZ A4 TZ0Z-020ZAd  TZOZ-0Z0ZAd  OZOZ-6TOZAd  0Z0OZ-610T Ad

193ysyIoMm 193png



2202/0£/90 :Buipuz polad Ze0e-Te0¢ Ad i[22sd Jod
asuadx3 yled

199YSH40M 198png

00°€98'T

00°0SE
88°6ET
unowy

88'68S
00°000°s
00°000°T
00°000°Z
00'095'T
unowy

000956

86'VEE'S

o0'o

Qoo

ooQ

000

G TEE'T

00°802°€

00°002'TE

000

00°005'T

00°000'T

09'L28'9L

193png (2304
ZZOZ-TZ0Z Ad

00'EET DO"BEE'S
00°0SE 001
6661 00°zT
a2ud syun
YLTE'T 00°006'T
00'000's 00T
00°000'T 00T
000002 a0t
00°0ET o0zt
alid SN
66'TT9FT 00°098'21
LT'EOL'Y 00'62E'S
oo 000
b 06t 0o
95'8TZ'T 000
000 000
0L°6E6°T 00'€99'T
L0'ZE8'Y 00'TTT'E
TL885°GT 00'00Z"1E
8L°TEE 000
9L £86'TT 00'692'L
JA aran 00'000
YE¥L9'L9 o )=T-7 4 T2
Awapoy elol  188png |Ej0)
TZ0T-020Z Ad TT0Z-0202 Ad

00'gye'T

EE'EED

T0'990°ET
SSLLT'Y
62257
000
19°8€6
1008
€0'65C'T
887266
LOTREYT
148tk
L5°0FL'Y
LO'SEY
£0°29Tv9

Aunpoy jeto)
0202-6TOZ Ad

00'8Y8'T

000

00'008'TT
000

000

000

000

000
TLTTE'T
OE'vEL'8
PRTSE9T
95'68%'9
6E'£S6'ET
00'000'y
0T TLT'SL

128png [e10L
020Z-610% Ad

5394 uol1oadsu| pue spwIag

2JEMIOS UOREDITY
BJEM1JOS 13)JE SJawiey
uondudsag

3ied - woddng aiemyos

SNOBUE||BIS|IA
s32|AJBS Supsauidug

sduems / 191E3H B /Y {01007 SIBWID
suopenunuwwaoy Asjep ajddy
uodussag

$HIIAIDS |BMIBLUOD
UWSINIY YHdad

JANd3 SY3d

L5t asuadx] Juallainay
asuadx3 |eauag / uoIsip
asuadxy Juawiojdwaugn
2IE3IPaN/YDId - Soxe] [[oshed
UOTIESUACLIOY SISYIOM

ueld yduag

URWaiaY SH3d

pea o2y L4 - S3LIE|ES
WMIAD - SAlE S

3w

N4 - saue|es

0-0CG-000£75-50

Aleujuaid

Aleujw|ald
apo) adpng
|le32q 328png

T-00-008TE5-50

Aleununald
AleulWwIBld
Aeuivdaid
Aeujwipigd
2pod @8png
lle13g 199png
B-00-005125-50

o0 =
0-00-E000TS-50

000 5

0-00-T000TS-50
0-00-0000T5-50
00070000550
D0-00-C00005-30
0-00-TO000550

asuadi3a
UopEDY 13 e - 50 puny

asd sjepusiay !



0008221 £T99Ty
00'000'y T6'9TET
00°001'2 00°00Z
00°000°2T 00008
unowy 2ud
00°00t"02 S9'E0€'g
ZE990°T 9828
80°LLT'T 60°86
YTTHT LETT
junowuy 23lid
PO¥RE'T POTSST
00'0 000
wunowy ad
000 606
00°00% 000
00°£88'T 00°/88
unowy 2opd
00 £88'T oo£88'T
00°000'T 00'000
00°005 00'00S
00002 00'o0z
unowy andg
00°00£°T 00'S6T
00'0 QUETH'T
00'088 00'088
00°0%Y 00°0sY¥
O0'EES D0'EES
JeEnowy anld
198png |e10)L Aumiay [eo)
2Z0ZT-TZ0ZT A4 TZOZ-0ZOZ Ad

SL0Z0°L
00°000°y
ozt
T 00zt
sHUnN
00°0vS'ET
00zt
oozt
00zt
SN
09'822'2
00T
sHun
00°00ZT
00002
‘T 0ot
syun
00°288'T
T U1
o't
o't
sHun
00’000
000
0ol
o't
00T
s3uN

12dpng |e10L
T20Z-020T Ad

aoo 000
8'VI6'E 00'000'9

[BUIBU| Ed -IIBA-SDLIIIN

120U Munwiwo) - sen - saplin

@ JtUf 423033 AHUNWIWOS
J U 21U B._C—_EEOU
uonduasaqg

ET9LEL 00'9TTeET 3 Aunuiue) - 3313 - SN
05°64% =TSTS X §'0 = }ed / doys J21em
(££-5690-E€0-€) PEAY{|2M YIBd
(95-5690-EED-E) [IZA% SWIDH 3|IqOIN
uopdpasaq
00918

STLTY'E 211923 - senyAN

af1eyp Bulssanold pies 1patn OA3

uopduasaq

09'91¢'T 00°00Z'T
86°0T 007002

pie) Hpary - safleys yueg

suone|=y 211qnd

IUeINSY| s30ds

uopduosag

00'0 oo aJuRInsu|

|aaei] Sulugel] yied

IS

SuiLiesy ap1onsay fapIBIqIsy

uoiduasag

89'609 00 001" Sujujesj pue uoneanpl
[1400] 000 ) AUNWWOY - 5384 PUB SHWIad

11248 J21U80 ALUNW WO YijeaH AUnod gs

aul4 Aquna) gs - SpomaIly

AWINGD 85 W4 POTY - 19IElN SJdWIES

uoliduasaq

1ad3png [e101
0202-6T0Z Ad

Aoy (e0)
0Z0Z-6T0Z Ad

0-00-¢001ES5-90
£-00-TO0TES-S0

AeujwgRid
Aeuiwpid
apodaspng
Ile1aq 3@3png
-00- TES-

AJeuiwiald
Aeudifald
Aeuwgalg
apo31e8png
Velaq 38png
0-00-000TES-50

Aeuiw]Rad
apo) 12dpng
|le3ag 193png

000-006625-50

0-00-0099¢5-50

Adeujwiaid
3po) 1a8png
['e33q 129png

0-00-000525-50

Aeuriadd

Aleupwaid

Aeunzud

2pod 199png

|'e3aq 1adpng
O =

E-D0-000EZS-50

Aleupwiaug
Aleuiwialg
Alsugualg
apo) 193png
|e1ag 138png

waynpom 128png



00°00€ o0's 00'09
00'008 00'szZ 00°ZE
00'0ZT 00°0F 00'E
00'0FS 00’6 00°09
00'02ZE 009t 00°ZE
00°08t 00'8 009
unowy E=TFR | syun
00°09L°E 00'0 00'bEE'S 79689
00°005°2 68'22LT 00005 95°S6¥'T
SE'STTE (89906 90°0
00'v20'T 00°vZ0°2 0T
Junowy 01d syun
SEBPT'S A0 TIV'E 9£'6TT'S 0E°064'E
oorooo's 7T628'ST 000008 05'519'9T
00°000'% aT6TTY 00000 STOVETT
00'962'T 00'80T 00zt
00'950°T 00'88 0021
unowy ald sun
0U'TSET SEEVE'T 00°25€°T 96'LET'E
00°'00S'T 00°SZT 00'ZT
00005'T- 00°5TT- 00zt
unowy adlad sjun
00'0 TO'SEY 000 66'79T'T-
00'0 157807 000 000
0000081 0L %91'ST DO09T LT 95 Tt '6T
00°05Z'TT 840 00'000°ST
05217 S840 00'0ST
00'SL8'T S£0 00°008°T
05°ZT0Y SL'0 00'0SE°S
unowy 201d syun
123png [R30) Auamay elo]  yelpng |e30) Aoy e10)
TIOT-TZ0Z A4 T20Z-070ZAd  TZOZ-0Z0TAd  OTOT-6TOZ Ad

Aydoua)
ELIETEN
anbe|q
Py / 6% 2an13id
awed/grs vosiad oo
pri/gs |leqiayseq
uoirduasag
00°P6E"S lleqisiseq - sayddng
00°0¥9°€ |3n4 3[MYaA
JUBLWISINGLUIBY JOGET HUEYIBA
3IUBUBIUIBIA| BIIYIA [EIIUSE
uopdussg
00°000'S a2ueuajulely / wawdinb3 appiyap
00"000'8 07 - SIUBLLIEW] '§ UO[RIDd0
00°000't g - UL pUE woRRIdD
SJ9YJONN SIUBUIILIEIY T - SSS[AJIM, UCZLIDA
WiLefy duwng Jajue) Auhwiio?)
uonduasag
00'8%9 suoydajal
SZ-5656-LE0-E JQ# J2UsD ANunwiwo)
1U3WBSING W|3Y g4 Jajuad Aunwiwag
uondusag

000 “3JUN 43D W) 21333 - SN

000 |BUIRIY| YIEd-1aMaS-SBIH(IAN

0000997 3H193)3 Bunyan 19308 - ssmINn
Jded PY PIA
LI00J152Y ed
3ed Bog
Sp|ald fleqaseg
uanduasaq

198png |e3oL
0Z0Z-6T0Z Ad

Aleugalg
AJeujwialg
Aeuiwjald

l|24d
Aeulwi@ag

apo) 1Wwapng

llevaq 328png
0-00-200055-50

0-00-T005%5-50

AleujLurag

apod 328png
[e13q 133png
0-00-0005F5-90

E00-000T55-50
~00-000THS-

Aleuiwpid

Aleuidild
apo) 1adpng
Jie32q 323png

0-00-00SZES-50

AdgujwRad
Aeuwipid
apo) 13png
lesaq yedpng

0-G0-

Aeujujpid
Aeujwigaid
Aleyul)jald
Aleuiwpdg
apoy yadpng
I'e3aq 123png

199ysyiom 193png



cOovy's L0°000°S 00°0vP'8
00'sEr 00°S+T 00’
00°595°T 00°595'T 00T
unowy TR | sHun
00°000°2 00'ZET 00'szs’s
00°0SL°T 00°0SE 0o0's
00°005°¢ 00’005t o001
00°005°L 00008'T oo's
JunoLuy a2lld sHUN
00'0SLTT 000 0005421
00000 62'8€9T 00’000
00°005T 00°005'T 00T
00'005 00005 00T
00°000°'T 00°000'T 00T
00°000's 000005 00'T
00'000'T 00'000'T 00T
00°000'TT 000055 00’z
Unowy 324dd siun
00°0000Z 54’5990 00°000°0T
00°008'T oo'er 00°00T
00'00S 00's 00'00T
00'00E'€ 0005 0099
00'00S 00's 00°00T
00'000'T 00°000°'T oot
00'ss 00°ST oo's
00'0ST 00°0T o0'sT
0000T 00°00T 00T
00'08E 00'L 00'08
unoinyg a3l SHUN
00'SLLL £T°TOT 00'0EETT
00°00Z°T 00'02 00'09
198png |e301 Aunpav |eiol 198png jeo)
ZL0Z-TZ0T A4 TZOZ-0Z0ZAd  TZOZ-0Z0Z Ad

EQEZ9'9

PEI6L'T

68'ST0'6
£ PSE'E

PEELBLT

PR'TESTT

Aunnay [eroy
0Z0Z-6TOZ Ad

00°002'L

00'000°s

00'8€6'8
00000

00°000°DC

OO'OEE'TT

138pnyg |e10)
0Z0Z-610Z Ad

2suadxg yayJely slaulled

59941 |BLOWRlY
swieiSoud 1§ sasse|y
uopduosag

sasuadxg welSolg

Q07 Juiad

sHoM, 241

JUSWUIENISIUT - YIBd Ul SH3IUCY
uonduaseq

asuadxg J4ed D3 Ul 107D

“Ryunuwos - sayddng Supeiado

pues / diyospoom,
sa3pjulds
IPINGISH/SPINIS3
ISIN

paas sseln
J3zl|iHa]
uonduasaq

yed - saddng Sunessdp

SWoUN
saydos|
5194
s34MIId
a5ty

Py 18414
SIU0Y
Aleys

sitea
uonduosag

133208 YINOA

PI/ETS woyun

0-00-FOPESS-50

Aleupwaid
apo) 193png
1e32q 325png

0-G0-00%E595-50

AdRUILLIB)
Areujupid
ABUtUiBlg
apoJi28png
rejaq 1odpng
0-00-00£€55-50

Aeujunjaig
apod 1@93png
|1eyaq tadpng

0-D0-000ESS-50

Aeuiwald
Aeujwiald
AdeuiwiRid
Aeujw)id
Aeuiwald
Aeujwalg
Aeuijaig
Aeujwaig
Alsujwjald
apo) 1adpng
|le3aq 193png
TO0ER005550

AlBUiWILBId

183ysytopn 198png



v6'£9E'62E 86'062Z'shE LS'9E7'69F 6E'6E9'VZZ SLTES'PIE ‘oL Hodey
V6 L9E'6ZE 86VETGVE L5'9ET'69E 6EGEQ'VTT B/ 'T6S'VIE ‘(8101 UCRERIINY ' SHiAed - SO ‘pUng
6 L9E'6TE 86'F6L'6VE 15'9E7°69€ GE'GEI'VTT 8£°165'PE i|eot asuadxg
00°00TTF 00'00T‘Zr 0o'T {daremaisep) ueo punpiatu)
junowy d syun uopduasag
00°00T 2 0E'€80'SE 000012y 00°0 00'00TZY {ul}/1nQ JagsuesL punpaiu|
00°55% 00'SSS 00’1 diysiaquialy SHdD
juncuy 29)ud sAun uopdpaseq
00°5ss 00'ass QOSit Qoo 0054 suondasgng ;g sang
007008 LEPS 00°008 PEEIE 007008 sjooL Jlews
007002 000 00002 000 007002 1500 Buuld
0000zt 60'78S'T 00'0ET'T 5:34 72 00°080°T swiojun
00°00Y Q0°00¥ 0T 53} [euonoLwc.d
00002 007002 0ot paoy
00°cov 00°00% 0ot pueg
unowy aid sy)un uopduzsag
00°000'T 00'0 00°000°'T 0098 000 asuadxa 1IN0 1YSIN |euoneN
00°000°s 000t 00005 YOIEW 13 HEW 193
wunowy 2oUg sjun uopdiesag
00°000°S C0'00S'TT 00°000's 00'6VZ 000 193 1y slawlley
00°0¥2'9 00°02T 002S sasuadxg Apjeam
0000z’ 00'055 [elon saa4 3y Aaenp
unowy 23id syufn uonduzsaa
1adpng |elog fmpoy elol  198png [ejol Auapy elel  198png jeoL
2202-TZ0ZAd  TZOZ-0ZOZAd  TZOZ-0ZOZAd  OZOT-6TOZAd  OZOZ-6T0Z Ad

Aleuiwiald
apo) 32dpng
lte1aq 333png
0-00-0066

ABUILLIBIY
2apo) 138png
|13 198png

0-00-009955-50

0-00-009%55-5

0-00-00£ESS-SD

0-00-003ES5-90

Areuiwidd
Aeujwald
Adeujwipld
#po) jadpng
I'e13q 323png
0-00-507E55-

Aleulw|aid

[apo) 1dpng

I'e32q 3adpng
BO0FOFESS-S0

AeuiwRg
Aeujwatd
apo) 128png
I3 129png

J@aystiop 123png



¥8'605°T- 96'L2- 0075 96'£ZS = SYIUOW ZT ¥ EE°ZS SOPUGD Areujuyaig
00°009°'1Z- 00°008'T- 00zt 130y |BRIBWLIOY JO) 281INg Areuiwigsig
unowy 93|14 sSHUN uodpasag apoyiaipng
|Im1ag 1a8png
9€'058'16 or'gsz'9s 79'65€'18 TO'LE9TR 9LLET L YSBM 1|05 - $394 Is|youedd T-O0-00FET 0T
000 8£'8ERG 000039 T19°POT'L 000099 3[eJop 33 - anuaaly Fu|PAdIRY o0 -
00'002 18'S6T 0o'toz 99'09E’8 00002 3Wodu| 1310 0-00-000CTZ-0T
00’0 000 o000 6L L00°LT 000 SQS507 1§ SUIRD) pazl|eaaln -G0-TO0GTZ-0L
00°000°0E- 00'000°000'¢- TO0 Q1Y 15815)U| T X 2IuB|Rq YSED Aeujw]p4d
unowy aolad sHun uoryduzseq apa) 1adpng
Ielag 1e2png
00'000°0€ TP'90L's 00°000'Str ¥6'TE8'6S 00'000°2L S| JUBWsaAU| T-G0-0000T£-0T
00'005 09216 00°00S 89°856 00°00S X3 JBUMOBIOH - saxe | Apedold 0-00-000Z0Z-0T
00005 80689 00°005 £L°E09 00°00s saxe] Juanbutjaq ud saiyeuay 0-00-00090Z-0T
0070002 £b'600°T 00'000'7 9t'155's 00°00S'T Jolid - saxe] Apadold O-00-000%0Z-0T
00°000'8T 00'000"8T 00'T uojog Fupyd| 1e9as Aeuiunpag
TLye'zet- TLVPETIT- 00T Anaxe) |elauan Adeujwy|zad
wnowy Mg SHuMN uopduzsag apo) 198png
lIe3aq 128png
TLPPEROT PLOLSBIT 00'+¥8°00T LETSLLPIT 00'856°96 31N - saxe ) Auedolg 0-00-00000Z-0T
00°000'8L- 00'005"9- 00zt [¥IN) "] 55329y 19Ula3u) 218U N Aeujwnpid
¥6'0T5'08- ¥6'0TS08- 0O0°T a5 J1amao alpey Aeuiwijaad
unowy )44 sjun uonduasaq spo) Jadpng
|1e3aq 1adpng
v60TS'85T £9'866'99T 00'0ZF'0ST L0°Z6T'esT 00°8E8'vFT IaMmaL OlpeY - JUAY A)S 0-00-000F97-CT
00°000°ST 05'ZrL 0 00°000°Z1T 0S'ZLL'ET 00°000°ZT 5934 Bu|ssa001d pIE) 1PS.D 00~ -
000002 T6'9T6T 00°000'2 VLSBT 00°00%°T safiey) 1g saay 00~ -
anuaay
uoeSIuIpPY - QT pund
129png |ejo0l Aunpoy |m30L 138png |ejoL Ajaay |30l 132png |210L
2T0Z-TT0Z Ad 120Z-0Z0Z Ad TZOZ-0ZOZ A4 0ZOZ-GTOT Ad 0202-6T0Z Ad

220¢/0£/90 :Buipuz polRed ZZ0Z-TE0Z Ad (23514 404 .
3NUBADY UILIpY asD 2lepusieH y

199Ys)ioMn 198png v



08'0050ZT 0y 6Z9'9ET 9L'6959%T ELEVY'SBT 88'629'79T ![e10] Loday

02°'005'02T 01°629"9ET w.h.mmm.mm.ﬁ mh.mev.mma 88'679'79T Jelo0 L UORENSIUWPY - O pund

08'00502T 0t"6Z99€T 9L°695°9ET ELEH'SST 88'679'79T [R10L anuanrsy
00°000°8L 00'00s9 00'eT 35837 ¥in
9E'058'T6 9£'058'16 00'T 994 ISIYIUEI] IISENN PI[OS
¥6'0TS'08 ¥6'0T508 00T 12MO| olpey - JUIY S
TLPPEPOT TLPPEROT 00T saxe] AJadold
uncwy ud S3UN uopdussaqg

TO'90L bSE- T vZEBEE- 9 ET9TEE- S0'SZH'GSE- 94 LI ETE- ShuaABY AleUonRisIq pieog
09°L5~ 09'L5- ao'T 09254 = ZT % 08'p% X3|dnQ 404 534 ulpy

08'82%=

02°559°T- 0B'8C- 00'ts SUYJOW 7T X OF'TS SOpUo) 104 334 ulwpy
00°889°89- 08’8~ 00'58€°Z 08°8Z% = SHIUOW ZT X OF'2$ 924 uupy
unowy 2014d sHun uondussag

08°00€'0L ET'STL'EY 9£'69£°49 TEL8E'S9 BE'ETE'LS 5234 Suy||1g 1seM PI[OS

964253

09°89'99- 96'LC- 00°S9E‘T =ZL X EE'ZS [BUDpPISAY Auned 3[3uis
00°000'2- 00'000°2- 0o'T ISYN 834 asiysuely
6’959 €6'55- 00T €6°55% = Syuow ZT % 99°p3 x2fdng

w3pngesol  Aungavielo]  wdpngielol  Ayady el 18dpng eioL

220Z-TE0¢ Ad T20Z-0T0Z Ad TZ0Z-0Z0Z A4 0Z0Z-6TOZ Ad 0Z0Z-6T0Z Ad

Aleujwjaid
AleupaaRid
Aleunutfaly
Areuwnjaly
apos3 3edpna
{lexaq 3@dpng
0-00-00£666-0T

Aeujwijald

Aeujusiaid

Meu|uwjpid
apoj jadpng
Ilelaq 192png

TOT-00SETZ-0T

AlBujwidad
Aleuiwjald
Aeugwnaag

Raysjiom 128png



00°9TL'sY

16°60V'E
000
000

00'SEE'DE

0o
LU
0P8

00'0TH'E
00009
00062
00°00E‘0T
00'00z'T
001957
OO'ZEET
junowy

S9BSE'SE
LLULBE'T
I TLOEE
0E'TO0'EZ
Q0EZ9'T

00°ZTLBT
Wnowy

86'9057
0018
9% LEL'6

00'9ZE'BT

00°0TH'E 00T

Qogs 00T
00°5ST 009z
00'00E°0T o't

00'00T [s[1ran
00'£64'T 00zt
00'9T1 00zt
Dd sHun

00'0EZ'Ty

00'5¥Z'E

00'G

00'0
00°529'T 00°T
00ZTIL'8T 00T
apd syun

00°'SEE'08

000

000

00'655'

TE'TST'E
00°009°E6
ZL'BPT'98
0S'6LE9T
00°009°T
0T'6T99TS

188png |ejo)
ZZOT-TZOZ Ad

Z20Z/0£/90 :Bulpuz poluad ZZ0Z-TZ0T Ad iledsid lod
asuadx] uiwpy

199YSHJoM 193png

£TEIS'E
LB'SBS'LY
16'Z60" Y
8£'920°TT
000
22°8%6'89Y

Apansy [ezo)
TZ0Z-0Z0T Ad

00'PTZT
00'009'€6
00'0E9°28
00°T8S°ST
00°009°T
00'Z8Z'v6P

128png |g1o)
TZOZT-0Z0Z Ad

TY'T66'0r
60'88'€
£8'ETL'9Y
00'o

00°£50%Z
90'9ZE'2
000
92'¥89'6
89°ZLT'e
9L 159°6E
£9'609'9¢
06'0TL'6€
T6'798
€1°£28°06Y

Aanoy [mj0)
0Z0Z-610T AJ

00°0EY'0S
000
000
00'0

000

00’0

000
SL2S8°L
E8T6LE
PESSLTY
LZ'0BT'68
05'794°T
00009t
0'8T0'voY

1a3png [el0L
0202-6T0Z Ad

aaueua3LIBA Jajuld
33 ULUpy [EJPIIN SHAd

Suues|) 3P0

s

2235 Bullamsuy 1911510

adeisog puasoju| - Bu)jig Jawolsny
puasoyu| - U9 Jawolsn)
uopdpasag

S3I|/USS |EMIIEINOD
WBWRIRAY Vi dad

JAd3 S¥3d

£5t 25uadx3 Juswaanay

Vid3d
JISSE[}

uopdinsag

Ajjiqer] panuaoy papunyun syad
2suUBdNa [eIUsA / VOISIA
asuadx] JuswAiojdwsun

aJED|paNfYoId - SaXEL j|oJARg

upjiesusdwoy) SIDYIOM
ue|d 3jausg
juawaii=y SH3d

3| -Hed - sale|ES
FUWNLBAC - SOLIRIRS

3w, ||n4 - s3e|es

(sD @|epuseH

Meunwjaryg
Meujwipid
Adeujlujaid
Adeunwizag
Adeujw|aid
Meujwjaid
Aeupunjaig
apo) y@ipng
|1eaq 23png
0000051501
TO0EO0UTEDT
0-00-3000T5-0T

0-00-Z000T50T
AleujwiRdd
Aseujw|aid
apo) 123png
l1=32q 328png
0-00-800015-0T

0-00-500075-0T
BO0-7000T5-0T
TO0-E00015-0T
000~

-0T
T-00-TO00TS-0T
T-00-000015-0T
0-00-#00005-0%
0-00-Z00005-01
0-00-TD0005-0T

asuadxy

usHELSIIWRY - §T {pund



000 00ZOr'E 00°000°02
00002 00'00Z°E a0'T
00'008°Z 00'008'2 o't
00'oaL 00'60L ae'T
junowy 8ald syun
00'00L9 T# LOE'S 00'005
00'000°0T 00°000°0T 00T
Junowy alg spun
£0'000°0T 006LY'TT 00°S8T°0T
000007 ST'V0ET 00°000°T
00'005" 97849 000059
00'o0sze ' vOb'9s 0000528
00°-009°'vT 0O009%vT 00T
00°000°05 00'0000S 00T
unowy adld SHUN
00'009pL SLTSLEL 00°000'9L
00°00005 5Z°076'%9 0000005
00°005'T 00'005T 0o'T
00'089°T 00'0rT 00°zT
00062 00062 00'T
00'000°22 0000072 00T
00059 00059 0ot
00ozL 0009 002t
00'000'8T 00°005°T 00'eT
00'005T 000052 c0'T
00'000°S 00°000°S 00T
0008T 00°08T 00T
unowy oUd sHUNn
0002528 8T TrY'LE 00°086'81
00096 0008 00T
1adpng |ej0) Aunnoy mjol 3aSpng jelo)
TZOZT-TZ0ZAd  TZOZ-0Z0ZAd  TZOT-0Z0Z Ad

Q00 000
29'8E0°E 00005
00°EETS 00'S8T's
80'165'T 00°000'T
S0'0£8'Y 00'005"9
00'EV9'ZZ 00'000'v8
0T'£89°20T 00'0S6°16
ST'9.9'6F 00'000°'09
0Z'7b6'68 00’0866t
Ay ejog 1adpng jejol
0Z0Z-6TOZ A3 0ZOZT-6TOT Ad

Isuadx3 uojaa|3

aa4 duipJaday
294 xe] Auadodd
231

uopduasag

5824 AJunoy oulpJEUIag Ues

931 02dv1
uopdunsag]

$334 pUe s}

sajjddns Sunaay pieog

"{iA/SIRUIWBS/BuUBL| 5103534100

$334 54013414
Hoday s1zjjonuo) Nels ¥ upny
yoddng Bununozoy

uonduasag

52215 Fununody g Bunpny

seDIdas [efa

93e4200] BunABN [BRMIA

2unsoH gas g 3ujing AN Buljug J3JAL

SIIRIO BANAIBS IO JJAL
oddng a1eMPos [ENUUY JHAL
B|qRAEIDY SIUNOIY J3AL
Fa49uis5904d

g 42 B YO - dio) sjuawAed [EPIYO

yoddns )

Hoddng ajsqam gSOH
SusoH 1D

Jays||qnd sqopy
uondusag

Joddng a1emyos

S3IMUBE PAIYS

Adeuiwijald
AJEUIWIRd
Aleuiuadd
apoy ye3png
Heiaq 323png
001 0T

AeujwipRlg
apo) 198png
llesaa y23png

0-00-000EZ59-0T

0-00-0T52¢5-0T
0-00-S05CT5+

0-00-005SZ¢5-0T

Aeunwpig

Aeujwijaid
apod 1afpng
|'®1aq 392png

TO0-TO02250T

0-00-000¢2Z59-01

Aeuiajaig
Aleujwizid
AJeuILwIg
Aueuili=dd
Aleujwiaid

Azeuiwyadd
AleujwRld
Aeujwpid
Meuu|ppid
Adeujwald
apoJ yadpng
Iie3aq 323png

Aeuiwypigd

12aysylopp 1@28png



91°88E 00°9T8'8E TO0
unowy 3ol4d syun
919102 80°0¥2 91'910'C
0o 08171 000
00°FrE‘T 00'Z91 00zt
00°00F'8 00'00L 00zt
00'096 0008 (L4
Junowy 2d siun
00'¥OE'TT Z9°Z8E0T 00'FOETT
00'00Z°01 Doross o0zt
wnouwy a3d spun
00°0020T L9'E0E9 09°LZ1'vT
0000981 00'085'T 0071
00°00ZY 00'0sE ooeT
00°00Z°L 00’009 00'eT
JunowYy 201d sMun
00'000°0€ ET'SLE'LE 00'0p6'e?
00°0009 BEPI6 000009
00"000°E $5'952°S 00°000°
00'69926 00'65926 ag'T
00°992 00'59Z o't
Junoury 3oud syun
00'¥Z6'T6 00°ZVE'FE 00'EL9'PE
00°ZE6'T 00°8ET oO'vT
00'056'T 00z 00'ale
Juhowy ao4d s)ufn
00'Z88'E 80'CCT 00005
00'005T 00’661 00°005°Z
123png [m10L Allanay |eyol 193pny (@101
TIOZ-TZ0T A4 TZ0Z-0Z0C Ad TZ0Z-020Z Ad

T Ose
0F°58¢

LBEFY'OT

0T'v1E'9

£2°ZTLLT
9£'T89°Z
LVEvR'E

TO'8L9YS

EF'£00°T
00'66T'T

Ay [0l
020Z-6T0T Ad

0070002
000

00°00Z'E€T

0O'9TT'ET

00'0v6'TZ
000009
00°000°E

00°000°95

00°0052
00'005'2

198png je30)
0Z0Z-6T0Z Ad

JUBWSSINGIRY JOGET JUBLIDN
uondiasag

FOUBURUIBIA BIIYRA

"y - 92UBUIIUIEI PUE Ucyelsdo
HUBYS 85 / WIWPY Z - SSISIM UOZUIA
dIGA-YIN
414 7@ Xej - {sBUI| 7} SBUNPUET 1BRUOCLY
uodasag

auoydap)

g# Jajua) Ajunwwo)
uogdussag

314398{3 - S

Aed gam

73 2les Jo uiod

a81eyD sishleuy jueq gaon
uonduasag

safieyy jueq
UDOWDId AlUnUoY)

s90RON J1Iqng

Auiqer fessuag g Aysedolyd
anueinsu| pieog
uopduasag

FouEINSU|
ENEXTET A
QduaIayua) JBJAL

uoydussag

Suiuied] pue uopeInp3

asuadx3 JuawAodwy

Aeujuidad

apa) 198png

|le3eq 1a8png
G-O0-000575-0T

0-00-005TS-01

Aleupwnaid

Aeujwalg
apo) 19dpng
|1e3aq 398png

0-00-0052E501

AleU W RId

apo) 198png

lielaq 128png
0-00-000TES0T

Aleuiwaig
Aleuiwijalyg
Aleunugalg
apo)1a8ipng
{le32q 325png
T-00-006625-0T

0-00-0599¢5-01
0-00-1099¢5-01

AleuwRad

AJRuiwa.d
apod 1a8png
1'e13q 133png

0-00-0005Z5-0T

Aeujwipeld
Aeujwely
apo) 123png
Ile13q 133png
0-00- S0
0-60-00EFZ5-0T

189ysyioa 108png



00'0 0B°005'0ZT 96'65E'0TZ 9£'690'9ET €L EPY'SAT B88'6ZT'PPT :|ejo) voday
oo 08005021 96'65E°0T2 9£'690°9€T EL°EYPSBT 89'6ZT'vbT ie10L UoENISIVRUPY - OT :pUnj
1[4 01] 08'0045'02T 96'65€'0TT 9£'690°9ET ELERY'S8T 98°62T T ‘fe30] asuadxy
6964945 88'E65'EST'T- 050 133e/, 0} UCREIO||Y UNLPY JO %05
00°19Z'595%- 88°'E65'EST'T- 610 13M35 0] LUDARIO||Y U|WPY JO %61
PEGES'TT- 28'€65'EST'T- T0°Q SEM PIIOS 01 UOLEIO|IY UILUPY JO %T
unowy 831id sjun uonduasaq
88'E65'E9T'T- Ot SPE'0E6- PEETESTITT- ¥B'ECT86- SLTZ0'E86 UoREI0||y ulwpy
000 000 000 IT'HLT'E o' asuadxg 12410
000 0o'c 00'T oozs - uoneaidaq
unowy 2ad sHun uopdyasag
0o'o 00’0 00’0 00T 000 uofieiasdag
a0q WLE 00'Q 000 Q0’0 asuadxy jsa1aiu|
000059 97'6TL'S 000059 880L5'L 000059 ajei0N g Yjauag sahoidwy
00'8ZE'T 00'#6T 00zt YOH 3487 JaA|IS
00'69 00'69 o't AIE10[Y [RUOREN
oo'sy 00'sy 00T a|qe|ieAY Sqor
00091 00'05T 00T Y049
Q0'0LE DO'OLE oot Jadedsmap ssaud Ajleq
00'T9RE 00198 00T 120L3s1q [elaads ¥
00'sL 00°sL 0ot 070 BIUSLUY JO jueg
0065t 0065t 0ot YAMY
005842 orss2 00y Q524sv
2261 £8°T6T 00T alullg uozewy
unowy a3d sy uopduasag
LEVER'L LEOTHYT 00'9TS0T 8T'6E8'TT 00'91s0T suondusgng g sang
00°009 000 00'009 000 Q0005 ~|ddns 73 IaueuIUIRW JUAWdNE]
000 6T'Z0T 00'00€E 0ao 0000 sluoyun
00008"T 0z'erl1 000021 STTLT 00°00Z'T A1anag] 13 aBersod
0070059 Az IRL's pir'9u6‘s LUTPT'ET pro96's a0 - s3(|ddng Suneradp
00°'00% vS11E 00'000'T EVTIET 00°000'T “UIRSINGUIIEY [ABEL PUE SFE3NIN
0’009 £6°SEY Q0°00F'T L5069 00°00%'T 13nd a|HYap
008791 00°8Z9'T 00'T S32INISS 3 S1Bg
198png [ea0)  Awapvmiol  IeBpng el AjARdv ROl 19dpng B0l
ZZ0Z-TZ0EZ M TZOL-0Z202 Ad TZ0Z-0Z0Z A3 020Z-6T0T Ad 0F0Z-6T0E A

Aseujwnadd
Adeujwid
Aeujwpid
spo) 3@3png
llelag 393png
0-00-00T666-0T

0-0F-00002L-0T

Aleunaly
apo)iedpng
Ite3aq] 32dpng

0-00-T00565-0T
0-00-008955-0T

Adeujwjasd

Aleuiwi|dy
AUl
Aeujwaug
Adeuiwiald
Aeujwpig
Adeujwnaiy
Aleupudid
Aleur)aly
apo3radpng
|e3=q 3adpng
0-00-005955-0T

G-00-005755-0T
0-00-009€55-0T
D-00-002€55-0T
T-00-000E55-0F
000-00/255-01
G-00-TG05F5-0T

Aeujtd

@30 103png



CoM

:i

:a
1oasQ

Helendale Community Services District

DATE: June 17, 2021
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBIJECT: Agenda item #8
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Adoption of Resolution 2021-12: A
Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Helendale Community Services District
Establishing the Appropriations Limit for Fiscal Year 2022 Pursuant to Article XIIIB of
the California State Constitution

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Adopt Resolution 2021-12 establishing the Helendale Community Services District Appropriations
Limit for Fiscal Year 2022.

STAFF REPORT

Article XIlIB of the California Constitution and related implementing legislation provide for an
annual “appropriations limit” for each entity of local government, including special districts, and
require the governing body of each local jurisdiction to establish its appropriation limit by
resolution each year.

The appropriations limit does not apply to the entire District budget but only to the appropriation
of “proceeds of taxes”. In the District’s case this is represented solely by property taxes and
special assessments. Each year the limit is adjusted by two factors: Price and Population. For FY
2022 the California Department of Finance provided these factors for San Bernardino County. The
Price Factor is 5.73 and the Population Growth Factor for San Bernardino County is 0.17%. The
attached chart shows the calculation for fiscal year 2022 as well as for the last eight fiscal years
(Historic GANN Calculations). For Fiscal Year 2022 the District Appropriation Limit is $831,313.
Included in the appropriation limit are the following:

“proceeds from taxes”

Solid Waste Disposal per parcel assessment

Water and Wastewater standby assessments and

General property taxes that fund the streetlights and the balance shared with the
Park fund.

For fiscal year 2022, the total of these taxes and property assessments is estimated to be
$381,499, which is well below the limit. Should appropriations exceed the limit, the excess taxes
are required to be returned by a revision of the tax rates within the next twe subsequent fiscal
years.



Fiscal Impact

Resolution 2021-12 establishes the District’s FY2021-22 appropriation limit for proceeds of taxes
at $831,313 in accordance with Article XIlIB of the California State Constitution.

FISCAL IMPACT: None.

REQUESTED ACTION: Approve Resolution 2021-12

ATTACHMENTS: Historic GANN Calculations
Resolution 2021-12 with attachments A & B



HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT
Historic GANN Calculations

Prior Year Appropriations
Appropriations CA per Capita Change in Calculation Subject to
Year Limit Personal Income Population Factor Limit

6/30/2014 553,066 512% 1.0512 0.65% 1.0065 1.0580 585,162
6/30/2015 585,162 0.23% 0.9977 0.68% 1.0069 1.0048 587,844
6/30/2016 587,844 3.82% 1.0382 1.09% 1.0109 1.0495 616,052
6/30/2017 616,952 5.37% 1.0537 0.68% 1.0068 1.0609 654,503
6/30/2018 654,503 3.69% 1.0369 1.16% 1.0116 1.0489 686,527
6/30/2019 686,527 367% 1.0367 0.95% 1.0095 1.0465 718,484
6/30/2020 718,484 3.85% 1.0385 0.90% 1.0090 1.0478 752,861
6/30/2021 752,861 3.73% 1.0373 0.51% 1.0051 1.0426 754,926
6/30/2022 784,926 573% 1.0573 017% 1.0017 1.0591 831,313



:&;“-

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-12

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HELENDALE COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT ESTABLISHING THE APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022
PURSUANT TO ARTICLE Xlil B OF THE CALIFORNIA STATE CONSTITUTION

WHEREAS, Article Xlll B of the Constitution of the State of California provides that the total annual
appropriations subject to limitation for each government entity shall not exceed the appropriations limit
of each governmental agency for the prior year adjusted for certain changes mandated by Proposition 4
passed on November 4, 1979 and Proposition 111 passed fune, 1990, except as otherwise provided for
in Article Xlll B and implementing State statutes; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article Xill B, and Section 7900 et seq. of the California Government Code, the
District is required to set its appropriation limit for each fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager for the Helendale Community Services District has conducted the
necessary analysis and calculations to determine the appropriations limit for Fiscal Year 2021-22, relying
on the approved limit from fiscal year 2020-21, and the following two adjustment factors: Annual
Percent Change in Population for January 1, 2021 for San Bernardino County and the state-wide Per
Capita Personal income Change; and

WHEREAS, based on such calculations, the General Manager has determined the said appropriations
limit to be $831,313 and pursuant to Section 7910 of the Government Code, has made available to the
public the documentation used in the determination of the limit. (Exhibit “A” and “B” attached and
made of part hereto).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, ORDERED AND DETERMINED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 17th day of June, 2021.
AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN: -
ABSENT:

By:

Tim Smith, President

Attest:
Sandy Haas, Secretary




May 2021
Aftachmeni A

A. Price Factor: Aricle Xlll B specifies that local jurisdictions select their cost of living
factor to compute their appropriation limit by a vote of their governing body. The
cost of living factor provided here is per capita personal income. If the percentage
change in per capita personal income s selecied, the percentage change to be
used in seting the fiscal year 2021-22 appropriation limit is:

Per Capita Personal Income

Fiscal Year Percentage change
{FY) over pilor year
2021-22 573
B. Following is an example using sample population change and the change in

Cadlifomia per capita personal income as growth factors in compufing a 2021-22
appropriation limit.

2021-22:

Per Capita Cost of Living Change = 5.73 percent
Population Change = -0.46 percent

Per Capita Cost of Living converted to a ratio: 573+100 =1.0573
100

Population converted to aratio: -0.46 + 100 =0.9954
100

Calculation of factor for FY 2021-22: 1.0573 x 0.9954 = 1.0524



Fiscal Year 2021-22

Attachment B
Anmnual Percent Change in Population Minus Exclusions®
January 1, 2020 to Janvary 1, 2021 and Total Population, Janvary 1, 2021

Total
County Percent Change  ---_Populafion Minus Exclusions ---
Chiy 2020-2021 1-1-20 1-1-21 1-1-2021
San Bemardino
Adelanta 0.13 35,102 35,147 35,147
Apple Valley 0.03 74,33 74,350 74,350
Barstow 0.24 24,097 24,040 24,205
Bigy Bear Lake -0.06 5,192 5189 5,189
Chino 1.41 83,889 85,073 88,184
Chino Hills -0.22 82,844 82,661 82,661
Colton 0.27 54,051 54,198 54,198
Fontana 1.15 211,519 213,944 213,944
Grand Termace -0.07 12,408 12,392 12,399
Hesperia 0.23 95,834 26,053 96,053
Hightand -0.27 55,211 55,060 55,060
Lorna Linda 1.31 24,533 24,854 24,895
Montclair 0.25 39.501 39.598 39,598
Needles -0.54 5,382 5,353 5,353
Ontario 0.67 180,788 182,004 182,004
Rancho Cucamonga 0.05 175,052 175131 175131
Redlands £0.01 71,164 71,154 71,154
Riclto 0.24 102,813 102,567 102,567
San Bernardino .62 216,384 215,035 216,291
Twentynine Palms 0.09 24,380 24,402 29,967
Upland -0.33 78,769 78,513 78,513
Victorville 0.41 123,241 123,992 127170
Yucaipa 0,07 55,674 55,634 55,634
Yucca Valley 01 22,306 22,330 22,330
Unincorporated -0.20 303,098 302,484 303,912
County Total 017 2,157,565 2,161,165 2,175,909

*Exclusions include residents on federal military installations and group quarters residents in state mental
institutions, state and federal comectional institutions and veteran homes.



59-“%%

P

Helendale Community Services District

";-

OMMUHI
IH.I.S\

DATE: June 17, 2021
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #9
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Award of Contract for Community Center
Paving Project

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Approve Award of Contract and authorize the General Manager to execute contract documents.

STAFF REPORT

In April the District circulated a bid for Request for Proposals (RFP) per the District’s purchasing
policy. An ad was placed in the Daily Press as the paper of general circulation in the area as well as
direct solicitation. District Staff compiled a list of 32 potential bidders to whom the notice was
distributed.

On April 26, at pre-bid meeting was held with a tour or the property and discussion related to each
of the three proposed area. On May 3 at 2:00 p.m. a bid opening was conducted. There were
three bidders present with five bids received. The District opened each bid based upon the time
the bid was received. The bid was designed with three area to be bid and reserved the right for
the Board to award any or all of the three areas or reject all bids based upon the affordability of
the project.

Management submitted the bids to a qualified engineer who reviewed the bids. The detailed
comparison of bids is attached to this staff report. He made the following comments:

¢ The apparent low bidder did not acknowledge Addendum #4

¢ The grading item seems the only item that is far from average

¢ Engineer recommends a 20% contingency be added to the project to ensure the funding is
available for change order if needed

Staff does not feel that the oversight regarding Addendum #4 is significant and wouid preclude
award of the project to the lowest bidder. Further Staff agrees with the need for a contingency in
an amount the Board concurs with,

Based upon the bid submitted by the lowest responsive, responsible bidder, all three areas will
cost $236,072.11 which is a difference of $68,191.86. Staff discussed the bid with the low bidder
and reviewed all addenda and prevailing wage requirements. The bidder was satisfied that that
covered all of the element addressed.



High Dasert Asphslt, Fabric and | Christensen

Aren L United Paving| Underground | Yegholan Engineering Brothers Average
Item Amount Amount Amount Amount Amoumnt

$101,586.91 | § 142,298.93 | $162,029.50 | § 142,083.69 | $186.780.00 | $ 146,955.81 |
Aran 2

[s 72202568 $ 85437.80 [ § 94.314.22 | § 128,217.38 | $131,176.0C | $ 162,633.01 |
Araa 3

[$ 6045056 | & 76,527.24 | $ 66,235.16 | § 76,291.80 | $112,900.00 | § 78,482.75 |
Total $236,072.11 | & 304,263.97 | $322.57e.82 | § 346,592.87 | $430,850.00 | § 328,071.57 |
Addendums N Y N Y ¥

FISCAL IMPACT: $236,072.11

REQUESTED ACTION: Award bid to United Paving in the amount of $236,072.11 with a

ATTACHMENTS:

Engineer’s analysis
Draft contract decument

contingency of -and authorize Staff to sign the contract documents.




A A N A N -1 swnpuappy
LS'TL0'8T€ $ 00°0S8°0Ev $ [8°T65'OPE $ BYBISTIES [G6'EITVOE § TT'ZTLO9ET S leloL
SIT8y'se ¢ 00'006'TTIT $ 08'T62'9L $ 9T'SET99 $ ©TLESOL $ 9565009 ¢
00°088°C $ 00°006°T $ 00005 8 - S 00000'S S 000D0D'T $§ S1 sywiad Auna) S
99'702'0F S 0000079 $ 8T'9S0'LE S O9E7Z8'9E ¢ ¥B'SR9ZE § O8BYYIE S 1|eydsy t
€991 S 00°009°4T § #0°812'ST $ TI'S9SOT $ OV09r'TT $ 096/E4T § aseq || sse(d £
FEBTSET $ 0000061 § 98'I8STT $ BILPRST $ OQTIBETT $ 9T'TE88 S 1 £ ealy Jo Buipels 4
[4¥ X4 4] S 0000F'6 $ TYSEG9 $ 00000 ¢ 00000'S ¢ 00008'T § 1 uoneziiqonN 1
wey
€ eday
TO'E£9°20T S ODCGLTTET § BELIT'8IT S CTPIE'WS S OFLEP'S8 $§ v9'STOWL §
ov'v08'z S 000¥8's $ 00°9/6T $ 00006T S 00965'T § 00OTLT $ v3 sdoig |9sym 07
00'088°7 S 00°006'C S 0000S'S s - $ 00°000's $ 00000'T S §1 syuad AJuno) 6
91'864°S $ O0DDEZ9 $ O0FSPES S 000£9°T S 00'8T9v $ 000ZT'L $ 41 uLRg v 9 8
OT LT’ S 000009t § 9L'G89'E S 00048 $ 9L10E S 00S£0'T S Sl Buiduig L
TTLL8's $ 00008°0T § [E£7T/0°ST S 00002t S O000S00T § STE9EE S 4§ J8NnD uogqry s)8Jouo)d 9
6E'98T'9 $ 0000¥'S $ SETET'ET S 0000S'T & 000SS'S S 666KCT S Yaecadde aaup uapim S
SEVLE'EE $ 000007y $ VR'EDE'EE S oFLostr $ POBPSPT S OvESy'ST § Jeydsy 14
LELETST $ 00'000°6T S T/ 96E'ET $ CEVYI'ET & ODOBE9T § 08'S90VT S asegq || sse[D £
6¥'85£9T $ 00000%T S 18'8¥0'TT S PPELO'BT S OOTBETT § O0T6RT'L S 1y 7 ealy jo Buipess 4
£0°'606'9 $ 00'00t'6 S €1°999'TT $ 006899 $ 000005 S O00008'T S 1 uonez||iqow T
way
Z ealy
I8'SS6°90T $ O00°08L'98T $ 69'ES0'ZTHT S 05S'6Z0'T9T S £6'86Z'TFT ¢ T6'98SI0T §
ov'orL'y $ 00088°0T § O00°9ES'E S 0000V'E $§ 00958C § O0090'E S v3 sdois [2aym L
91’865 S 00009'¢ § TPSPI'V $ 00006'T § OFESHS $ 00008'T § Y| Fudinag 9
7'9€9°'29 S 00000'W8 $ VE'ETE'LS S ST6ER'ZB § TY'9ZS09 $ OOEGETS S 4 yeydsy S
T6°600°CE S 00000°2F $ €6'[8T(T S 00ZEY've § OL'BGEL'GE S TE68STE § 4 aseq || sse|d t
0070887 S 00006T ¢ 0000SS s - $ 00000 $ 00°000'T S s1 sHuLIad Aunc) £
9E'65€'LT S 000008 $ BTPLLOE S STLPR'OP $ STTEYST S 00WPSE  § sl T eaJy jo Bupei z
vSSEL's $ 0000F'PL S 0L9T6°ZT S 001198 $ 00°000°'S § O00DLET § sl uoijez||iqow T
unowy nnowy unowy lunowy wunowy 92ld N uun wiay|
afesany siayyoag Buueau)fuy :m_o_._mm> punocidiapun Sulaed payun T ealy
UISUBISUYD  pue auqed jeydsy wasaa Yy

129044 Buined J93ua) AJlunwwo)

19113S1d SIIAIBS AJUnLiWo) 3jepua|aH



AGREEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF
Community Center Paving

As of Community Center Asphalt Project, 2020, HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES
, a public District (herein “District”), and United Paving, a . (herein
“Contractor”), agree as follows: ‘

GENERAL
SECTION 1. SCOPE OF WORK

Contractor will furnish labor, equipment, and materials, and will perform work, for the
construction of the facilities described in the Contract Documents set forth in Section 4 below.

SECTION 2. CONSIDERATION

District shall pay Contractor the sum set forth in Contractor’s bid for the performance of the
work.

SECTION 3. PAYMENTS
(a)  Monthly progress payments shall be as follows:

(1)  On or about the 25th day of each month, Contractor shall submit to District
an invoice including an estimate of the cumulative amount and value of the
work performed by Contractor prior to that date and subsequent to prior
estimates. The estimate may include 90% of the value of acceptable
materials and equipment delivered to the work site. The estimate shall be
based on certified copies of paid invoices by the Contractor.

(2)  The District shall review the request as soon as practicable to determine
whether the payment request is proper. A payment request found nottobe a
proper payment shall be returned within seven days after receipt
accompanied by a written description of the reasons why the request is not
proper.

(3)  District shall pay Contractor, within 15 days of receipt of the invoice, ninety
percent of the invoice amount reduced by: amounts due to District for
equipment, services or materials furnished by District; amounts of claims or
liens by the District or others, and amounts required to be deducted by
federal, state or local governmental authorities.

(4)  Ifthe District fails to make progress payment within thirty days after receipt

-1-



of an undisputed and properly submitted invoice, the District shall pay to the
Contractor interest at the legal rate set forth in Code of Civil Procedure
Section 685.101(a) from seven days after receipt of the invoice by the
District until paid.

(5)  Progress payments do not signify acceptance of the work, or any portion of
the work. Payments do not preclude District from demanding and recovering
damages for failure to fully perform.

(b)  On satisfactory completion of the work, District shall pay Contractor ninety percent
of the value of the actual work less prior monthly progress payments.

(c)  Within thirty days after recordation of a notice of completion, the undisputed amounts
withheld by the District shall be released. "Completion" occurs on the acceptance by the governing
body of the District; or the filing of a notice of cessation of labor.

(d)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor may receive payment in full, other than
retention for claims by the District or third parties, if the Contractor deposits approved securities or

enters into an agreement with an escrow agent to hold eamed retentions. The substitution of
securities or the use of an escrow account shall be in the form and manner permitted by law.

SECTION 4. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The complete contract includes the contract documents set forth herein, to wit: the Notice
Inviting Bids, the Bid Forms, the Special Conditions, the Technical Specifications, this Agreement,
the Payment Bond, the Performance Bond, the Workers’ Compensation Certificate, the Non-
Collusion Declaration, the Certificate of Insurance, any Plans and Specifications, and any Addenda.
SECTION 5. COMPLIANCE WITH PROVISIONS OF LAW

(a)  This District is subject to laws relating to public agencies which are part of this
contract as though fully set forth herein.

(b)  Contractor shall comply with laws relating to the work.
SECTION 6. ATTORNEYS’ FEES -

The Court shall award reasonable costs and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, to the
prevailing party in an action or proceeding to enforce this Agreement.

SECTION 7. NOTICES

Notices required or permitted shail be given by personal delivery, by first class mail, postage
prepaid, or facsimile transmission:

2-



To Contractor:

To District: Helendale Community Services
26540 Vista Road, P.O. Box 359
Helendale, CA 92342

SECTION 8. CONFLICT WITH PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS

Conflict between the plans and specifications and this contract shall be brought to the
attention of the District which shall resolve such conflict.

SECTION 9. ASSIGNMENT

(@  Contractor shall not assign this contract or payments under this contract.

(b)  Contractor and each subcontractor hereby assign to the rights, title, and interest in and
to causes of action under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C.A. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright
Act (Chapter 2 [commencing with Section 16700] of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and
Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, services or materials for this contract or the

subcontract. This assignment shall be made and become effective without further acknowledgment
by the parties at the time the District tenders final payment to the Contractor.

SECTION 10. SECTION HEADINGS

Section headings are for the convenience of the parties and shall not affect the interpretation
of this contract.

SECTION 11. AUTHORITY OF DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE

District’s representative shall decide questions about the quality or acceptability of materials
furnished and work performed, manner of performance and rate of progress of the work, the
interpretation of the plans and specifications and the fulfillment of the contract by Contractor.

WAGES, HOURS, AND WORKING CONDITIONS
SECTION 12. PREVAILING WAGES
() A determination of the general prevailing rates of per diem wages and holiday and
overtime work where the work is to be performed is on file at the District’s offices. Contractor and

subcontractors will not pay less than the prevailing rates of wages. Contractor will post one copy of

3



the prevailing rates of wages at the job site.

(b)  Contractor shall forfeit as penalty to the District the sum set forth in Labor Code
Section 1775 for each calendar day or portion thereof for each workman paid less than the prevailing
rates under the contract or any subcontract.

SECTION 13. TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE PAYMENTS

Travel and subsistence payments shall be paid to each worker as defined in the applicable
collective bargaining agreements filed with the Department of Industrial Relations for the particular
craft, classification or type of work.

SECTION 14. HOURS OF WORK

(a)  Eight hours labor constitutes a legal day’s work. Workers shall be paid at a rate of
one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for work in excess of eight hours during a calendar day
or forty hours during a calendar week of the foregoing hours.

(b)  Contractor shall keep and make available an accurate record showing the name each
of each worker and hours worked each day and each week by each worker.

() As a penalty to the District, Contractor shall forfeit twenty-five dollars for each
worker, including subcontractor’s work, for each day the worker works more than eight hour or each
week the worker works more than forty hours.

SECTION 15. APPRENTICES
Contractor shall comply with the Labor Code concerning the employment of apprentices.
SECTION 16. SUBCONTRACTORS

(a) Contractor shall comply with the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act of
the Public Contracts Code.

(b)  Contractor shall submit to District the following information:

(i) The name and location of the place of business of each subcontractor
performing work, labor or rendering construction services, and each
subcontractor licensed by the State of California specially fabricating and
installing improvements according to detailed drawings or the plans and
specifications, in an amount in excess of one-half of one percent of the
Contractor’s total bid.



(i)  The portion of the work to be done by each subcontractor.

(¢)  The Contractor shall list only one subcontractor for each portion of the work
identified in the bid.

SECTION 17. NON-DISCRIMINATION

The Contractor shall not refuse to employ or promote any person, and shall not discriminate
against any person with respect to compensation or terms and conditions of employment, and shall
not discipline or discharge any person employed because of the person’s race, religion, creed, color,
national origin, ancestry or sex. The Contractor shall not refuse to accept otherwise qualified
employees as indentured apprentices solely on the grounds of race, religion, creed, color, national
origin, ancestry or sex.

SECTION 18. SAFETY

Contractor and subcontractors shall comply with the provisions of the Safety and Health
Regulations for Construction, promulgated by the Secretary of Labor under the Contract Work
Hours and Safety Standards Act, as set forth in Title 29, C.F.R. and by the California Division of
Industrial Safety.

SECTION 19. CHARACTER OF WORKERS

Only competent workers shall be employed on the work. Workers who are incompetent,
intemperate, troublesome, disorderly or otherwise objectionable, or who fail to perform work
properly and acceptably, shall be immediately removed from the work by the Contractor and not re-
employed.

INSURANCE, INDEMNIFICATION AND BONDS
SECTION 20. INSURANCE

(a)  Before beginning the performance of the work, Contractor shall purchase and
maintain insurance to protect the Contractor and the District from claims: (i) arising from
Contractor’s operations under the contract by the Contractor, a subcontractor or anyone employed by
them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable; (ii} under workers’ compensation,
disability benefits and other similar benefits acts; (iii) for damages because of bodily injury,
occupational sickness, or disease, or death of the Contractor’s employees, or persons other than the
Contractor’s employees; (iv) for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage
sustained by a person as a rcsult of an offense related to employment of such person by the
Contractor, or other persons; (v) for damages, other than the work itself, because of injury to or
destruction of tangible property, including loss of use resulting therefrom; (vi) for damages because
of bodily injury, death of a person or property damages arising from ownership, maintenance or use

-5-



of a motor vehicle; (vii) involving contractual liability insurance applicable to the Contractor’s
obligations; and (viii) for damage to work in progress.

(b)  Theinsurance required shall be written for not less than limits of liability specified in
the contract documents or required by law, whichever is greater. The insurance shall be purchased
from companies authorized to do business in the jurisdiction where the project is located. Coverages
shall be written on an occurrence basis without interruption from the date of commencement of the
work until date of final payment or until termination of coverage required to be maintained after
final payment. The District, its officers, agents and employees shall be named as additional insured.

(¢)  Certificates of insurance executed by the carrier(s) and acceptable to the District and
copies of the policy shall be filed with the District prior to the commencement of the work. The
Certificates and the insurance policies shall provide the policies will not be canceled or allowed to
expire until at least thirty days prior written notice has been given to the District. If the insurance
coverages are required to remain in force after final payment and are reasonably available, an
additional certificate evidencing continuation of such coverage shall be submitted with the final
application for payment. Information concerning reduction of coverage shall be furnished by the
Contractor with reasonable promptness in accordance with the Contractor=s information and belief.

(d  Contractor shall require each subcontractor to maintain policies of insurance covering
the hazards, and under the conditions mentioned above, and having the District, its officers, agents,
volunteers and employees as additional insureds. Copies of the subcontractor's certificates of
insurance and policies shall be filed with the District.

SECTION 21. INDEMNIFICATION

(a) Contractor shall indemnity and safe the District, its officers, agents, volunteers and
employees, free and harmless from costs, damages or liability, including attorneys’ fees, arising out
of any act or omission to act, including any negligent act or omission to act by Contractor, its
officers, agents, subcontractors and employees with respect to the performance of the work or the
Contractor’s obligations under this contract.

(b)  Inaddition to the foregoing, Contractor shall pay District costs, including attorneys’
fees, incurred by the District in handling, responding to, or litigating stop notice claims or other
demands against money due to the Contractor or against the Contractor's payment bond by
Contractor’s officers, agents, employees or subcontractors.

SECTION 22. PAYMENT BOND

(2  Before beginning the performance of the work, Contractor shall file a payment bond
with the District for its approval and acceptance. The payment bond shall be in the sum of one
hundred percent (100%) of the contract price.



(b)  The payment bond shall be in substantially the form of the bond attached hereto. The
bond shall be executed by a representative of the surety having no financial interest in the contractor.
The payment bond shall be separate and distinct from any other bond required by this contract. In
addition to all other requirements imposed by law or by the Contract Documents listed in Section 4
of this Agreement, all surety companies executing bonds for the work to be performed hereunder
shall possess a certificate of authority from the California Insurance Commissioner authorizing them
to write surety insurance as defined in Section 105 of the California Insurance Code, and said
sureties must also appear on the Treasury Department’s most current list (Circular 570 as amended).

SECTION 23. PERFORMANCE BOND

(a) Before beginning the performance of the work, Contractor shall file a performance
bond with the District for its approval and acceptance. The performance bond shall be in the sum of
one hundred percent (100%) of the contract price. The bond shall be payable by surety or sureties to
District if Contractor fails to fully perform his obligations hereunder.

(b)  The performance bond shall be in substantially the form of the bond attached hereto.
The bond shall be executed by a representative of the surety having no financial interest in the
Contractor. The performance bond shall be separate and distinct from any other bond required by
this contract. In addition to all other requirements imposed by law or by the Contract Documents
listed in Section 4 of this Agreement, all surety companies executing bonds for the work to be
performed hereunder shall possess a certificate of authority from the California Insurance
Commissioner authorizing them to write surety insurance as defined in Section 105 of the California
Insurance Code, and said sureties must also appear on the Treasury Department’s most current list
(Circular 570 as amended).

PERFORMANCE
SECTION 24. TIME FOR COMPLETION
(a) The work shall be completed within 60 calendar days of the Notice to Proceed.

(b)  If the work is not completed before this date, the District will suffer damage. It is
impractical and infeasible to determine the amount of damage. The Contractor shall pay to the
District, as fixed and liquidated damages and not as a penalty, the sum of $500 each calendar day of
delay. The Contractor and Contractor’s surety shall be liable for the amount. The Contractor shall
not be charged liquidated damages because of any delays in the completion of the work due to
unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor.

(¢)  If the work is not completed before this date, the District will incur substantial
damages which cannot be ascertained at this time. Contractor shall pay to District damages caused
by Contractor’s delay in completing the work.

(d  Within ten (10) days from the beginning of such delay, the Contractor shall notify the

-7-



District in writing of the cause of the delay. District shall ascertain the facts and extent of the delay
and extend the time for completing the work if in the District’s judgment the finding justify an
extension. The findings of fact shall be final and conclusive.

(¢)  The District may extend the time for completion if the District determines such
extension to be in the best interest.of the District. If the District extends the time limit for the
completion of the work at the request of the Contractor, for other than acts of God and situations
beyond the control of both parties, such extension will increase the District’s financial obligations
incurred for engineering, inspection, supervision, incidental and overhead expenses directly
chargeable to the contract and accruing during the period of extension. The Contractor shall
reimburse District for such reasonable charges before the final payment.

® The District may deduct the liquidated damages from progress payments or from the
final payment. The payment of progress payments shall not constitute a waiver of liquidated
damages.

SECTION 25. ACTS OF GOD

Contractor is not responsible for the cost of repairing or restoring damage to the work
exceeding five percent of the contract price and determined to have been proximatély caused by
earthquakes in excess of the magnitude of 3.5 on the Richter Scale and tidal waves, if damaged work
is built in accordance with accepted and applicable building standards and the plans and
specifications.

SECTION 26. UTILITY RELOCATION

()  As between the parties, District is responsible for the timely removal, relocation or
protection of existing main or truck line underground utility facilities located on the job site, if such
utilities are not identified by the District in the plans and specifications. As to such unidentified
utilities, Contractor shall be compensated for: the costs of relocation; repairing damage not due to
the failure of Contractor to exercise reasonable care; removing or relocating such utilities not
included in the plans and specifications with reasonable accuracy, and equipment on the project
necessarily idled during such work. Contractor shall not be assessed liquidated damages for delay in
completion of the project, when the delay is caused by the failure of the District or the owner of the
utility to remove or relocate the facilities.

(b)  The District is not required to indicate the presence of existing service laterals or
appurtenances when the presence of such utilities on the work site can be inferred from other visible
facilities, such as buildings, metering junction boxes, on or adjacent to the work site.

() Contractor shall immediately notify the District and utility in writing, if the
Contractor discovers utility facilities not identified by the District in the contract plans and
specifications.



SECTION 27. PUBLIC CONVENIENCE

(a) Contractor’s operation shall cause no unnecessary public inconvenience. The access
rights of the public shall be considered at all times. Unless otherwise authorized, traffic shall be
permitted to pass through the work or an approved detour shall be provided. Safe, adequate,
continuous and unobstructed pedestrian and vehicular access shall be maintained to fire hydrants,
residences, commercial and industrial establishments, churches, schools, parking lots, service
stations, motels, fire and police stations, and hospitals, unless other arrangements are made
satisfactory to the owners.

(b)  Vehicular access to residential driveways shall be maintained to the property line
except when necessary construction precludes such access for reasonable periods of time.

(c) Grading operations, roadway excavation and embankment construction shall provide
areasonably satisfactory surface for traffic. When rough grading is completed, the roadbed surface
shall be brought to a smooth even condition satisfactory for traffic.

(d)  The Contractor shall comply with applicable state and local requirements for closure
of streets. Contractor shall provide barriers, guards, lights, signs, temporary bridges, flagmen and
watchmen advising the public of detours and construction hazards. Contractor shall comply with
additional public safety requirements arising during construction. Contractor shall furnish and
install, an upon completion of the work promptly remove, signs and waming devices.

(e) At least forty-eight hours in advance of closing or partial closing or of reopening any
street, alley or other public thoroughfare, Contractor shall notify the police, fire, traffic and
engineering departments of jurisdictional agencies involved and comply with their requirements.

SECTION 28. EXCAVATIONS

(a) Contractor shall submit for District approval, a detailed plan showing the design of
shoring, bracing, sloping or other provisions to be made for worker protection from the hazard of
caving ground during the excavation of trenches five feet or more in depth. The plan shall be at least
as effective as that required by the Construction Safety Orders of the California Division of
Industrial Safety. If the plan varies from the shoring systems standards established by the Safety
Orders, the plan shall be prepared by a registered civil or structural engineer.

(b) At the close of each working day, Contractor shall completely backfill open
excavation and cover the same with temporary asphalt mix in accordance with normal practice in the
industry and the rules, regulations, laws and ordinance of the State of California and the San
Bemardino County Public Works Department.

{c) If the work involves digging trenches of excavations extending deeper than four feet

below the surface, the Contractor shall promptly, and before the conditions are disturbed, notify the
District, in writing, of any: (1) material the Contractor believes to be hazardous waste, as defined in

-9-



Section 25117 of the Health and Safety Code, and required to be removed to a Class I, Class I, or
Class III disposal site; (2) subsurface or latent physical conditions at the work site differing from
those indicated; (3) unknown physical conditions at the work site of unusual nature, or different
material from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in the work of the
character provided in the contract. The District shall promptly investigate the conditions. If the
District finds the conditions are as alleged by the Contractor and conditions cause a change in the
Contractor=s cost, or the time required for performance, the District shall issue a change order. If a
dispute arising whether the District’s findings are correct, the Contractor shall proceed with the
work. The Contractor shall retain rights by contract or law pertaining to resolution of disputes and
protests between the parties.

SECTION 29. EXTRA WORK

(a)  The District may require changes in, additions to, or deductions from the work to be
performed or to the materials to be furnished under this contract. No extra work shall be performed
or change made except in pursuance of a written order from the District stating the extra work or
change is authorized, and setting forth the basis upon which payment is to be made. No claim for
additional compensation shall be valid unless pursuant to such change order. Nothing in this section
shall excuse the Contractor from proceeding with the prosecution of the changed work. When
required by the District, the Contractor shall furnish an itemized breakdown of the quantities and
prices used in computing the value of any ordered change.

(b)  Adjustments in the amounts to be paid to the Contractor by reason of any such
change, addition or deduction shall be determined by one or more of the following methods:

(1) By an acceptable lump sum proposed from the Contractor.

(i) By unit prices contained in the Contractor’s original bid and incorporated in
the contract documents or fixed by subsequent agreement between the
District and the Contractor.

(iii) By ordering the Contractor to proceed with the work and to furnish daily
reports of extra work. The reports shall itemize all costs for labor, material,
and equipment rental. The reports for workmen shall include hours worked,
rates of pay, names and classifications; and for equipment shall include size,
type, identification number and hours of operation. Records and reports shall
be made immediately available to the engineer upon his request.

(c) When the District orders extra work and there is an agreement between the District
and the Contractor to perform the work, the District may approve the method used by the Contractor
to accomplish the work. At the request of the District, the method to be used shall be memorialized
in a writing prior to work being performed.

(d)  Ifthe Contractor contends a proposed change is a substantial revision in the character

-10-



of the work, the question shall be immediately submitted to an arbitrator for decision. The
arbitrator=s decision will be final and conclusive unless it is fraudulent, capricious, arbitrary or so
grossly erroneous as to imply bad faith. Each party shall advise the other in advance of the
arbitration of the material on which the party intends to rely and give the other a reasonable
opportunity to refute or supplement such factual material.

SECTION 30. CLEAN-UP

On completion of the work, Contractor shall remove debris and surplus materials from the
work site.

SECTION 31. MATERIALS

(a)  Unless otherwise specified, show, or permitted by the District, materials and
equipment incorporated in the work shall be new and current manufacture. The District may request
the Contractor to furnish manufacturer’s certificates to this effect.

(b)  Materials furnished and work performed shall be subject to inspection and testing by
District’s authorized agents at District’s expenses. If such inspection and testing reveals non-
compliance with the requirements of this contract, the Contractor shall bear the cost of necessary
corrective measures and the cost of subsequent inspecting and testing.

(©)  The inspection of the work shall not relieve the Contractor of the obligations under
the contract. Even though equipment, materials, or work required under the contract have been
inspected, accepted, and estimated for payment, the Contractor shall replace or repair such
equipment, materials, or work found to be defective or otherwise not to comply with the
requirements of the contract up to the end of the maintenance and guarantee period.

SECTION 32. PERMITS AND LICENSES
(a) Contractor shall apply for and procure permits and licenses necessary for the work.

(b) Contractor shall give notices necessary and incidental to the due and lawful
prosecution of the work and shall comply duly with the terms and conditions of permits and licenses.

(c) Contractor shall pay charges and fees in connection with permits and licenses.
SECTION 33. LAND AND RIGHTS OF WAY
(a) District shall provide land and rights-of-way where the work is constructed.

(b) Contractor shall procure additional rights-of-way desired by the Contractor to
facilitate construction. Contractor shall enter into written agreements with property owners for such

-11-



purposes and provide District with copies of the agreements.

(c)  Except as provided above relating to utility relocation, when the work is to be
performed in the vicinity of existing improvements, such improvements shall not be disturbed or
damaged except for such removal or relocation in the land and rights-of-way provided by the District
or unavoidable to accommodate the work.

SECTION 34. PLANS AND WORKING DRAWINGS SUBMITTED BY DISTRICT

(a) The approved plans shall be supplemented by working drawings necessary to control
the work adequately. Such drawings shall be consistent with the contract documents. Such
drawings delivered to the Contractor shall be deemed written instructions to the Contractor.

(b)  The District will furnish to the Contractor copies of drawings and specifications
reasonably necessary for the execution of the work. The Contractor shall keep one set of drawings
and specifications in good order available to the District’s representative at the site of the work.

(c) The plans for the work show conditions supposed or believed by the engineer to exist.
It is not intended or inferred the plans constitute a representation such conditions actually exist. The
District, its officers, agents and employees shall not be liable for loss sustained by the Contractor as
aresult of variance of the conditions as shown on the plans and the actual conditions revealed during
the progress of the work.

SECTION 35. SHOP DRAWINGS SUBMITTED BY CONTRACTOR

(a) Shop drawings are drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, performance charts,
brochures and other data prepared by the Contractor or any subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier or
distributor, and illustrating some portion of the work.

(b)  The Contractor shall review, stamp with approval, and submit for review by the
District’s representative, shop drawings for material and equipment to be incorporated into the work.
Drawings shall be submitted in quadruplicate to the District’s representative and be accompanied by
a letter of transmittal listing the drawings submitted. Drawings shall show the name of the project,
the name of the Contractor, the names of suppliers, manufacturers and subcontractors. Shop
drawings shall be submitted with promptness and in orderly sequence to cause no delay in the work.

(c) Shop drawings shall be complete. If the shop drawings show deviations from the
requirements of the plans and specifications because of standard shop practices or other reasons, the
deviations and the reasons therefor shall be set forth in the letter of transmittal.

(d) By approving and submitting shop drawings, the Contractor represents material,

equipment and other work shown thereon conforms to the plans and specifications except for the
deviations set forth in the letter of transmittal.

-12-



(e)  Within ten calendar days after receipt of the drawings, the District will return two
prints of the drawings to the Contractor with comments. If noted by the District, the Contractor shall
correct the drawings and resubmit in the same manner as the original submittal. The Contractor shall
direct attention in the letter of transmittal accompanying resubmitted shop drawings to revisions
other than the corrections requested by the District’s representatives on previous submittals.

® The review by the District’s representative is for general conformance with the design
concept of the project and general compliance with the plans and specifications and shall not be
construed as relieving the Contractor of the full responsibility for: providing materials, equipment
and work required by the contract; the proper fitting and reconstruction of the work; the accuracy
and completeness of the shop drawings; selection fabrication processes and techniques of
construction; and performing the work in a safe manner.

(g) No portion of the work requiring a shop drawing submittal shall be commenced until
the submittal has been reviewed by the District's representative and returned to the Contractor with a
notation indicating re-submittal is not required.

SECTION 36. SUPERVISION BY THE CONTRACTOR

Before starting the work, the Contractor shall designate, in writing, a representative having
authority to act for the Contractor. An alternate representative may be designated. (A joint venture
shall designate only one representative and alternate). The representative or alternate shall be
present at the work site when work is in progress. Orders or communications given to this
representative shall be deemed delivered to the Contractor. In the absence of the Contractor or
designated representative, directions or instructions may be given by the District’s representative to
the superintendent or foreman having charge of the specific work to which the order applies. Such
order shall be complied with promptly and referred to the Contractor or the representative.

SECTION 37. INSPECTION

(a)  The District’s representative shall have access to the work during construction and
shall be furnished with reasonable facility for gaining knowledge of the progress, workmanship and
character of materials used and employed in the work.

(b)  When the Contractor varies the period during which work is carried on each day,
Contractor shall give notice to the District’s representative so proper inspection may be provided.
Work done in the absence of the District’s representative is subject to rejection.

(c) No materials shall be installed until approved by the District’s representative.
Installations to be backfilled shall be inspected and approved by the District’s representative prior to
backfilling. The Contractor shall give notice in advance of backfilling to the District’s representative
so proper inspection may be provided.

-13-



(d)  Theinspection of the work shall not relieve the Contractor of obligations to fulfill the
contract. Defective work shall be made good, and unsuitable materials may be rejected
notwithstanding the fact such defective work and unsuitable materials have been previously
overlooked by the District’s representative and accepted.

SECTION 38. REMOVAL OF DEFECTIVE AND UNAUTHORIZED WORK

(a)  Rejected work shall be removed and replaced by the Contractor in an acceptable
manner and no compensation will be allowed for such removal or replacement. Work done beyond
the lines and grades shown on the plans or established by the District’s representative, or work done
without written authority will be considered as unauthorized and not be paid for. Such work may be
ordered removed at the Contractor’s expense.

(b)  Upon failure on the part of the Contractor to comply promptly with an order of the
District’s representative under this section, the District’s representative shall have authority to cause
defective work to be removed and replaced, and unauthorized work to be removed, and to deduct the
costs from monies due the Contractor.

SECTION 39. ERRORS OR DISCREPANCIES NOTED BY CONTRACTOR

(@)  Ifthe Contractor finds discrepancies between the specifications and the drawings, and
the physical conditions at the site of the work, or finds errors or omissions in the drawings or in any
survey, Contractor shall promptly notify the District in writing of any such discrepancy, error or
omission. If the Contractor observes drawings or specifications at variance with applicable law,
ordinance, regulation, order or decree, Contractor shall promptly notify the District in writing of
such conflict.

(b On receipt of any such notice, the District shall promptly investigate the
circumstances and give appropriate instructions to the Contractor. Until such instructions are given,
work done by the Contractor, after Contractor’s discovery of such error, discrepancy or conflict, will
be at Contractor’s own risk and Contractor shall bear costs arising therefrom.

SECTION 40. EQUIPMENT

The Contractor must furnish adequate equipment and facilities to perform properly the work
in a workmanlike manner in accordance with these specifications. Such equipment and facilities
must be in a good state of repair and maintained in such state during the progress of the work and

shall meet requirements of applicable ordinances and laws. No worn or obsolete equipment shall be
used, and in no case shall the maker’s rating of capacity for equipment be exceeded.

SECTION 41. STORAGE OF MATERIALS

-14-



Materials for use in the work shall be stored by the Contractor to prevent damage from
exposure to the elements, admixture of foreign materials or from any other cause. Contractor is
responsible for damage to or loss of materials by weather or other causes.

MISCELLANEOUS
SECTION 42. GUARANTEES

Contractor guarantees work from defect in workmanship for the period of one year from the
date of acceptance by the District and shall repair and replace such work, together with other
displaced work, without expense to the District, ordinary wear and tear, usual abuse or neglect
excepted. District may have the defects repaired and made good at the expense of the Contractor, if
Contractor fails to comply with the above-mentioned conditions within a week after being notified in
writing,

SECTION 43. RISK OF LOSS PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE

Except as set forth above relating to acts of God, risk ofloss from total or partial destruction
of the work, prior to final acceptance, shall be borne by Contractor regardless of the cause.
Contractor shall repair or replace such damages or destroyed work, to its prior undamaged condition
before being entitled to additional progress payments or final payment. Total or partial destruction
or damage shall not excuse Contractor from completion of the work.

SECTION 44. TERMINATION: CONTRACTOR AT FAULT

(a)  The District may declare the Contractor in default, should the Contractor fail to meet
the requirements of the contract, or be placed in bankruptcy, or should a receiver be appointed for
Contractor’s properties, or should Contractor make an assignment for the benefit of creditors. In
such event, the District will notify the Contractor in writing. On receipt of such written notice, the
Contractor shall preserve site construction materials, equipment and plant, and undertake immediate
steps to remedy such default.

If the Contractor fails to remedy such default within five calendar days after receipt of such
written notice, the District may terminate the Contractor’s right to proceed with the work as to which
default has occurred. Upon receipt of such written notice, the Contractor shall for that work affected
by any such termination:

(1)  Assist the District in making an inventory of materials and equipment in
storage at the site, en route to the site, in storage or manufacture away from
the site, and on order from suppliers;

(2)  Assignto the District, subcontractors, supply contracts and equipment rental

-15-



agreements all as designated by the District; and

3) Remove from the site, all construction materials, equipment and plant listed
in said inventory other than such construction materials, equipment and plant
which are designated in writing by the District to be used by the District in
completing such work.

(b)  The District may complete the work to which notice applies by contract or otherwise,
and may take possession of the materials, plant, tools, equipment, supplies and property furnished by
the Contractor which is designated by the District in writing for such purpose.

(c) The expense of completing such work, together with a reasonable charge for
administering a contract for such completion, shall be charged to the Contractor. Such expense shall
be deducted by the District out of such monies as may become due to the Contractor. If this expense
exceeds the sum otherwise payable under the contract, the Contractor and Contractor’s sureties shall
be liable. Upon written notice from the District, the Contractor shall promptly pay to the District,
the amount of such excess. The District shall not be required to obtain the lowest bids for
completing such work, but may make such expenditures as in the District’s sole judgment will best
accomplish such completion.

SECTION 45. TERMINATION: CONTRACTOR NOT AT FAULT

District may terminate the contract upon ten days written notice to the Contractor, if District
finds reasons beyond the control of the parties which make it impossible or against the District=s
interests to complete the work. In such a case, the Contractor shall have no claims against the
District, except for the value of work performed to the date of termination, and the cost of materials
and equipment on hand, in transit, or on definite commitment, as of the date of termination if such
materials and equipment would be needed in the work. The value of work performed and the cost of
materials and shipment delivered to the site shall be determined by the District in accordance with
the procedure prescribed for the making of a final estimate and payment.

SECTION 46. RESOLUTION OF CERTAIN CLAIMS

(a) Notwithstanding the foregoing, a demand of $375,000 or less, by the Contractor for a
time extension; payment of money or damages arising from the work done by or on behalf of the
Contractor pursuant to this contract; or payment of an amount which is disputed by the District shall
be processed in accordance with Public Contracts Code Sections 20104 ef seq. relating to informal
conferences, non-binding judicially supervised mediation and judicial arbitration.

(b) A single written claim shall be filed under this section prior to the date of final
payment for all demands, including demands not subject to Public Contracts Code Sections 20104 et
Seq., arising out of the contract.

(c) Within thirty (30) days of the receipt of the claim, the District may request additional

-16-



documentation supporting the claim or relating to defenses or clairns the District may have against
the Contractor. Ifthe amount of the claim is less than $50,000, the Contractor shall respond to the
request for additional information within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the request. The
Contractor shall respond to the request within thirty (30) days of receipt if the amount of the claim
exceeds $50,000 but is less than $375,000.

(d) Unless further documentation is requested, the District shall respond to the claim
within forty-five (45) days if the amount of the claim is less than $50,000, or within sixty (60) days
if the amount of the claim is more than $50,000 but less than $375,000. If further documentation is
requested, the District shall respond within the same amount of time taken by the Contractor to
respond or fifteen (15) days, whichever is greater, after receipt of further information if the claim is
less than $50,000. If the claim is more than $50,000 but less than $375,000 and further
documentation is required by the District, the District shall respond within the same amount of time
taken by the Contractor to respond or thirty (30) days, whichever is greater.

()  Ifthe Contractor disputes the District’s response, or the District fails to respond, the
Contractor may demand an informal conference to meet and confer for settlement of the issues in
dispute. The demand shall be served on the District within fifteen (15) days after the deadline of the
District to respond or within fifteen (15) days of the District’s response, whichever occurs first. The
District shall schedule the meet and confer conference within thirty (30} days of the request.

® If the meet and confer conference does not produce a satisfactory result, the
Contractor may pursue remedies authorized by law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, or caused it to
be executed as of the day, month and year first above written.

DISTRICT

By:
Kimberly Cox, General Manager

CONTRACTOR

By:

-17-



PAYMENT BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

WHEREAS, the Governing Board of the Helendale Community Services District (herein
“District”), on June 17, 2021, awarded to United Paving, (herein “Principal™), a contract for
Community Center Paving.

WHEREAS, Principal is required to furnish a bond in connection with contract so if
Principal or its subcontractors fail to pay for materials or supplies for the performance of the work,
or for labor done thereon, or for amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance Act, the Surety on
the bond will pay the same.

NOW THEREFORE, the Principal and r (herein “Surety”) are held
and firmly bound unto the District in the penal sum of ¢ ), lawful
money of the United States of America, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we
bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by
these promises.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH if Principal, its subcontractors,
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, shall fail to pay for materials, provisions,
provender or other supplies or teams used in, upon, for or about the performance of the work
contracted to be done, or for work or labor thereon of any kind, or fail to pay the persons named in
California Civil Code Section 9000 et seq., or amounts due under the Unemployment Insurance
Code with respect to work or labor performed under the contract, or for amounts required to be
deducted, withheld, and paid over to the Employment Development Department from the wages of
employees of the Contractor and subcontractors pursuant to Section 13020 of the Unemployment
Insurance Code with respect to such work and labor, and other laws of the State of California and
rules and regulations of its agencies, then Surety will pay the same in or to an amount not exceeding
the amount hereinabove set forth, and also will pay, in case suit is brought upon this bond, such
reasonable attormeys’ fees as shall be fixed by the court.

This bond shall inure to the benefit of the persons named in California Civil Code Section
9000 et seq., so as to give a right of action to them or their assigns in any suit brought upon this
bond.

Should the condition of this bond be fully performed, then this obligation shall become nuil
and void, otherwise it shall remain in full force and effect.

No change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the contract, or the work
to be performed thereunder, or the specifications accompanying the same, shall affect Surety’s
obligation on this bond. Surety waives nofices of such change, extension of time, alteration, or
addition to the terms of the contract, or to the work or to the specifications.

Page 1 of 2



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three identical counterparts of this instrument, each of which
shall be deemed an original, have been duly executed by the Principal and Surety above named on
the day of , 2022.

(Principal)

By:

(Surety)

By:
(Attorney-in-fact)

Page 2 of 2



PERFORMANCE BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

WHEREAS, the governing board of the Helendale Community Services District (herein
“District”), on June 17, 2021, awarded to United Paving, (herein “Principal™), a contract for
Community Center Paving.

WHEREAS, Principal is required under the terms of the contract to furnish a bond for the
faithful performance of the contract;

NOW THEREFORE, the Principal and ‘ (herein “Surety™), are
held firmly bound unto the District in the penal sum of '
3 ), lawful money of the United States of America, for the payment of which sum well and
truly to be made, we bond ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators and successors, jointly and
severally and firmly by these promises. ‘

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if the above-bounden
Principal, or its heirs, executors, administrators, successors or assigns shall in all things stand to and
abide by, and well and truly keep and perform the covcnants, conditions, and agreements in the
contract, including but not limited to the payment of liquidated damages, and any alteration thereof
made as therein provided, on its part to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner therein
specified, and in all respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shall indemnify and save
harmless the District, its officers and agents, as therein stipulated, this obligation shall become null
and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and virtue.

Surety stipulates and agrees no change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms
of the contract, or to the work to be performed thereunder, or the specifications accompanying the
same, shall affect its obligation on this bond. Surety waives notice of such change, extension of
time, alteration or addition to the terms of the contract, or to the work or to the or to the
specifications.

Surety agrees in case suit is brought on this bond, Surety will pay District’s reasonable
attorneys’ fees to be fixed by the court.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, three identical counterparts of this instrument, each of which
shall be deemed an original, have been duly executed by the Principal and Surety above named, on
the day of 2021.

(Principal)

(Attach Acknowledgment) By:

(Surety)
By:

(Attorney-in-fact)



WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CERTIFICATE

I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every
employer to be insured against liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in
accordance with the provisions of that Code, and I will comply with such provisions before
commencing the performance of the work of this contract.

Dated:

NOTE: If Contractor is a corporation, the legal name of the corporation shall be set forth above,
together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign contracts on behalf of the
corporation. If the Contractor is a partnership, the true name of the firm shall be set forth above,
together with the signature of the partner or partners authorized to sign contracts on behalf of the co-
partnerships. Ifthe Contractor is an individual, the name of the firm shall be set forth together with
the signature.



NON-COLLUSION DECLARATION

The undersigned declares under penalty of perjury as follows:

1. I am employed by of , the party
making the foregoing bid as .
2. The bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person,

partnership, company, association, organization, or corporation.

3 The bid is genuine and not collusive or sham; that the bidder has not directly or
indirectly induced or solicited any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid, and has not directly or
indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in a sham
bid, or that anyone shall refrain from bidding.

4. The bidder had not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by agreement,
communication or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other bidder, or to
fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder, or to secure
any advantage against the public body awarding the contract of anyone interested in the proposed
contract.

5.  All statements contained in the bid are true.
6. The bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted the bid price or any breakdown
thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, or paid, and will not

pay, any fee to any corporation, partnership, company, association, organization, bid depository, or
to any member or agent thereof to effectuate a collusive or sham bid.

DATED: By:




3 &

Helendale Community Services District
DATE: June 17, 2021

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Kimberly Cox, General Manager

SUBJECT: Agenda item #9
Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Approval of a Professional Services
Contract for Construction Management Services for the Community Center Paving

Project

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Approve Award of Professional Services Agreement (PSA) to ARL Engineering and Testing.

STAFF REPORT

With the award of the Community Center Paving project, Staff is requesting that the Board
Consider authoring the General Manager to enter into a Professional Services Agreement with ALR
Engineering and Testing for Construction Management Services for the above reference project.

The project is beyond the knowledge base of the District Staff and in the best interest of the
District capital investment, Staff recommends that a competent professional well-versed in this
type of construct be the owner’s representative. The firm would provide daily oversight, review
construction submittals, take batch samples of asphalt, etc. A parking lot is a long-term
investment and if done correctly should decades.

Attached for the Board consideration is the draft Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for ALR in
the amount of $37,000. The cost estimate is attached as Exhibit A (Scope of Work) to the PSA.
This will be a time and materials proposal and the actual costs may not reach the threshold of the
proposal.

FISCAL IMPACT: $37,000

REQUESTED ACTION: Approve a PSA for Project Management Services for the Community Center
Parking Lot Project.

ATTACHMENTS: Draft PSA with Scope of Work



AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES
BETWEEN
HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
AND
ALR Engineering

THIS AGREEMENT is made this 17" day of June, 2021 (hereinafter referred to as the
“Effective Date™), by and between the HELENDALE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT, a
public agency organized and operating pursuant to California Government Code Section 61000 et
seq. (hereinafter referred to as the “DISTRICT”), and WATER SYSTEMS CONSULTING, INC.,
a (hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT”). DISTRICT and
CONSULTANT may individually be referred to as “Party” or collectively as “Parties” in this
Agreement.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT desires to contract with CONSULTANT to provide on-call
professional engineering support and consulting services for the DISTRICT (hereinafter referred
to as “Project”); and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to contract with the DISTRICT to provide such
services for the Project; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT holds itselt as duly licensed, qualified, and capable of
performing said services for the Project, and that CONSULTANT is customarily engaged in an
independently established trade, occupation, and/or business of the same nature as the work to be
performed herein; and

WHEREAS, this Agreement establishes the terms and conditions for the DISTRICT to
retain CONSULTANT to provide the services described herein for the Project.

COVENANTS

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the faithful performance of the terms and
conditions set forth herein, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLEI
ENGAGEMENT OF CONSULTANT
AND AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED

1.1 ENGAGEMENT: The DISTRICT hereby engages CONSULTANT, and
CONSULTANT hereby accepts the engagement, to perform the Project services described in
Section 2.1 of this Agreement for the term set forth in Section 5.1 of this Agreement.



1.2 AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED: Authorization for CONSULTANT to
proceed with all or a portion of the Project services described in Section 2.1 of this Agreement wili
be granted in writing by the DISTRICT as soon as both Parties sign the Agreement and all
applicable insurance and other security documents required pursuant to Section 6.3 of this
Agreement are received and approved by the DISTRICT. CONSULTANT shall not proceed with
said Project services until so authorized by the DISTRICT, and shall commence work immediately
upon receipt of the Notice to Proceed.

1.3 NO EMPLOYEE RELATIONSHIP: The Project services to be provided by
CONSULTANT are outside the usual course of the DISTRICT’s business. CONSULTANT shall
perform the Project services provided for herein as an independent contractor, and not as an
employee of the DISTRICT. CONSULTANT is not to be considered an agent or employee of the
DISTRICT for any purpose, and shall not be entitled to participate in any pension plans, insurance
coverage, bonus, stock, or similar benefits that the DISTRICT provides for its employees.
CONSULTANT shall indemnify the DISTRICT for any tax, retirement contribution, social
security, overtime payment, or workers’ compensation payment which the DISTRICT may be
required to make on behalf of CONSULTANT or any agent or employee of CONSULTANT for
work performed under this Agreement.

ARTICLE I
SERVICES OF CONSULTANT

2.1 SCOPE OF SERVICES: The Project services to be performed by the
CONSULTANT under this Agreement are described in the Scope of Work attached hereto as
Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference (hereinafter referred to as the “Scope of
Work™), and shall, where not specifically addressed, include all related services ordinarily
provided by the CONSULTANT under same or similar circumstances and/or otherwise necessary
to satisfy the requirements of Section 3.3 of this Agreement. In case of conflict between the terms
of this Agreement and the provisions of the Scope of Work, this Agreement shall govern,

2.2  PREVAILING WAGES: In accordance with the provisions of the California Labor
Code, CONSULTANT shall secure the payment of compensation to employees. To the extent
required by the California Labor Code, CONSULTANT shall pay not less than the prevailing rate
of per diem wages as determined by the Director, Department of Industrial Relations, State of
California. Copies of such prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file at the DISTRICT"s office,
which copies will be made available to any interested party upon request. CONSULTANT shall
post a copy of such determination at each job site. If applicable, CONSULTANT shall forfeit to
the DISTRICT the amount of the penalty set forth in California Labor Code Section 1777.7(b), or
any subsequent amendments thereto, for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker
paid less than the specified prevailing rates for such work or craft in which such worker is
employed, whether paid by CONSULTANT or by any subcontractor.

2.3 HOURS AND WORKING CONDITIONS: The DISTRICT is a public entity in
the State of California and is subject to the provisions of the Government Code and the Labor Code
of the State. It is stipulated and agreed that all provisions of law applicable to public contracts are
a part of this Agreement to the same extent as though set forth herein and will be complied with



by CONSULTANT. CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable provisions of the California
Labor Code relating to working hours and the employment of apprentices on public works projects.
CONSULTANT shall, as a penalty to the DISTRICT, forfeit $25.00 for each worker employed in
the execution of this Agreement by CONSULTANT or by any subcontractor, for each calendar
day during which such worker is required or permitted to work more than 8 hours in any one
calendar day and 40 hours in any one calendar week, unless such worker received compensation
for all hours worked in excess of 8 hours at not less than 1% times the basic rate of pay.

ARTICLE III
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DISTRICT AND OF CONSULTANT

3.1 DUTIES OF THE DISTRICT: The DISTRICT, without cost to CONSULTANT,
will provide all pertinent information necessary for CONSULTANT’s performance of its
obligations under this Agreement that is reasonably available to the DISTRICT unless otherwise
specified in the Scope of Work, in which case the CONSULTANT is to acquire such information.
The DISTRICT does not guarantee or ensure the accuracy of any reports, information, and/or data
so provided. To the extent that any reports, information, and/or other data so provided was
supplied to the DISTRICT by persons who are not employees of the DISTRICT, any liability
resulting from inaccuracies and/or omissions contained in said information shall be limited to
liability on behalf of the party who prepared the information for the DISTRICT.

3.2  REPRESENTATIVE OF DISTRICT: The DISTRICT designates Kimberly Cox
as the person to act as the DISTRICT’s representative with respect to the work to be performed
under this Agreement. Such person will have complete authority to receive information and
interpret and define the DISTRICT’s policies pertinent to the work, although such person will not
control or direct CONSULTANT’s work. In the event the DISTRICT wishes to make a change in
the DISTRICT’s representative, the DISTRICT shall notify the CONSULTANT of the change in
writing.

3.3  DUTIES OF CONSULTANT: CONSULTANT shall perform the Project work in
such a manner consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by firms
practicing in the same or similar locality under the same or similar circumstances (hereinafter the
“Standard of Care”). The CONSULTANT shall exercise the Standard of Care to cause all work
and deliverables to conform to all applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations.

34  APPROVAL OF WORK: The DISTRICT’s approval of work or materials
furnished hereunder shall not in any way relieve CONSULTANT of responsibility for the technical
adequacy of its work. Neither the DISTRICT’s review, approval or acceptance of, nor payment
for any of the services shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement
or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of this Agreement. Where approval by
the DISTRICT is indicated in this Agreement, it is understood to be conceptual approval only and
does not relieve the CONSULTANT of responsibility for complying with all laws, codes, industry
standards, and liability for damages caused by negligent acts, errors or omissions, noncompliance
with the Standard of Care, or the willful misconduct of the CONSULTANT or its subcontractors.
CONSULTANT’s obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the DISTRICT, and its
directors, officers, employees and agents as set forth in Section 6.9 of this Agreement also applies



to the actions or omissions of the CONSULTANT or its subcontractors as set forth above in this
paragraph,

ARTICLE IV
PAYMENTS TO CONSULTANT

4.1 PROIJECT COSTS: During the Term of this Agreement, the DISTRICT will pay
CONSULTANT for services performed in accordance with the rates and estimated hours and costs
set forth in the Scope of Work. The amounts set forth in the Scope of Work constitute the
maximum compensation to which CONSULTANT may be entitled for the performance of services
for the Project, unless this Agreement and/or the Scope of Work are changed in writing by the
DISTRICT in advance of the services to be performed hereunder. Adjustments in the payment
amount shall only be allowed pursuant to Section 6.4 of this Agreement.

42  INVOICES: Payment will be made by the DISTRICT within thirty (30) calendar
days after receipt of an invoice from CONSULTANT, provided that all invoices are complete and
CONSULTANT’s work product and services are provided and performed in compliance with the
terms and conditions of this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall invoice DISTRICT monthly for
services performed under this Agreement. In the event that a payment dispute arises between the
Parties, CONSULTANT shall provide to the DISTRICT full and complete access to
CONSULTANT’s labor cost records and other direct cost data, and copies thereof if requested by
the DISTRICT.

43  COST FOR REWORK: CONSULTANT shall, at no cost to the DISTRICT,
prepare any necessary rework occasioned by CONSULTANT's negligent act, or omission.

ARTICLE V
COMPLETION SCHEDULE

5.1 TERM: The Term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date, and shall
continue until September 30, 2021, unless this Agreement is earlier terminated pursuant to the
provisions of Section 6.7 below. Notwithstanding the above, the provisions of Sections 1.3, 2.2,
2.3, 3.3 and 3.4 and Articles IV, V, and VI herein shall survive the expiration and/or termination
of this Agreement.

5.2 TIME OF CARDINAL IMPORTANCE: CONSULTANT shall perform all
services required by this Agreement in a prompt, timely, and professional manner. Time is of
cardinal importance in this Agreement.

ARTICLE VI
GENERAL PROVISIONS

6.1 COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL LAWS:
CONSULTANT shall at all times exercise the Standard of Care and observe all applicable
provisions of Federal, State, and Local laws and regulations including, but not limited to, those
related to Equal Opportunity Employment.



6.2 SUBCONTRACTORS AND OUTSIDE CONSULTANTS: No subcontract shall
be awarded by CONSULTANT unless prior written approval thereof is obtained from the
DISTRICT. CONSULTANT shall be responsible for payment to subcontractors used by them to
perform the services under this Agreement. If CONSULTANT subcontracts any of the work to
be performed, CONSULTANT shall be as fully responsible to the DISTRICT for the performance
of the work, including errors and omissions of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors and of the persons
employed by the subcontractor, as CONSULTANT is for the acts and omissions of persons directly
employed by the CONSULTANT. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create any
contractual relationship between any subcontractor of CONSULTANT and the DISTRICT.
CONSULTANT shall bind every subcontractor and every subcontractor of a subcontractor to the
terms of this Agreement that are applicable to CONSULTANT’s work unless specifically noted to
the contrary in the subcontract in question and approved in writing by the DISTRICT.

6.3 INSURANCE: CONSULTANT shall secure and maintain in full force and effect,
until the satisfactory completion and acceptance of the Project by DISTRICT, such insurance as
will protect it and the DISTRICT in such a manner and in such amounts as set forth below. The
premiums for said insurance coverage shall be paid by the CONSULTANT. The failure to comply
with these insurance requirements may constitute a material breach of this Agreement, at the sole
discretion of the DISTRICT.

(a) Certificates of Insurance: Prior to commencing services under this Agreement, and
in any event no later than ten (10) calendar days after execution of this Agreement,
CONSULTANT shall furnish DISTRICT with Certificates of Insurance and
endorsements verifying the insurance coverage required by this Agreement is in
full force and effect. The DISTRICT reserves the right to require complete and
accurate copies of all insurance policies required under this Agreement.

(b) Required Provisions: The insurance policies required by this Agreement shall
include the following provisions or have them incorporated by endorsement(s):

(1)  Primary Coverage: The insurance policies provided by CONSULTANT
shall be primary insurance and any self-insured retention and/or insurance
carried by or available to the DISTRICT or its employees shall be excess
and non-contributory coverage so that any self-insured retention and/or
insurance carried by or available to the DISTRICT shall not contribute to
any loss or expense under CONSULTANT’s insurance.

(2) Additional Insured: The policies of insurance provided by
CONSULTANT, except Workers’ Compensation and Professional
Liability, shall include as additional insureds: the DISTRICT, its directors,
officers, employees, and agents when acting in their capacity as such in
conjunction with the performance of this Agreement. Such policies shall
contain a "severability of interests" provision, also known as “Cross
liability” or “separation of insured”.

(3)  Cancellation: Each certificate of insurance and insurance policy shall
provide that the policy may not be canceled (for reasons other than non-
payment of premium) without first giving thirty (30) days advance written
notice to the DISTRICT.




(©

(d)

(4) Waiver of Subrogation: The insurance policies provided by
CONSULTANT shall contain a waiver of subrogation against DISTRICT,
its directors, officers, employees and agents for any claims arising out of
the services performed under this Agreement by CONSULTANT.

(5)  Claim Reporting: CONSULTANT shall not fail to comply with the claim
reporting provisions or cause any breach of a policy condition or warranty
of the insurance policies required by this Agreement that would affect the
coverage afforded under the policies to the DISTRICT.

(6)  Deductible/Retention: If the insurance policies provided by
CONSULTANT contain deductibles or self-insured retentions, any such
deductible or self-insured retention shail not be applicable with respect to
the coverage provided to DISTRICT under such policies. CONSULTANT
shall be solely responsible for any such deductible or self-insured retention
and the DISTRICT, in its sole discretion, may require CONSULTANT to
secure the payment of any such deductible or self-insured retention by a
surety bond or an irrevocable and unconditional letter of credit.

N Sub-Confractors: CONSULTANT shall furnish separate certificates of
insurance and policy endorsements for each sub-contractor verifying that
the insurance for each sub-contractor complies with the same insurance
requirements applicable to CONSULTANT under this Agreement.

Insurance Company Requirements: CONSULTANT shall provide insurance

coverage through insurers that have at least an “A” Financial Strength Rating and

a “VII” Financial Size Category in accordance with the current ratings by the A.

M. Best Company, Inc. as published in Best’s Key Rating Guide or on said

company’s web site. In addition, any and all insurers must be admitted and

authorized to conduct business in the State of California and be a participant in the

California Insurance Guaranty Association, as evidenced by a listing in the

appropriate publication of the California Department of Insurance.

Policy Requirements: The insurance required under this Agreement shall meet or

exceed the minimum requirements as set forth below:

(1) Workers’ Compensationn CONSULTANT shall maintain Workers’
Compensation insurance as required by law in the State of California to
cover CONSULTANT’s obligations as imposed by federal and state law
having jurisdiction over CONSULTANT’s employees and Employers’
Liability insurance, including disease coverage, of not less than $1,000,000.

(2)  General Liability: CONSULTANT shall maintain Commercial General
Liability insurance with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000
per occurrence or claim and $1,000,000 aggregate. The policy shall include,
but not be limited to, coverage for bodily injury, property damage, personal
injury, products, completed operations and blanket contractual to cover, but
not be limited to, the liability assumed under the indemnification provisions
of this Agreement. In the event the Commercial General Liability insurance
policy is written on a “claims made” basis, coverage shall extend for two
years after the satisfactory completion and acceptance of the Project by
DISTRICT.




(3)  Automobile Liability: CONSULTANT shall maintain Commercial
Automobile Liability insurance with a combined single limit for bodily
injury and property damage of not less than $1,000,000 each occurrence for
any owned, hired, or non-owned vehicles.

(4)  Professional Liability: CONSULTANT shall maintain Professional
Liability insurance covering errors and omissions arising out of the services
performed by the CONSULTANT or any person employed by him, with a
limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim and $1,000,000
aggregate. In the event the insurance policy is written on a “Claims made”
basis, coverage shall extend for two years after the satisfactory completion
and acceptance of the Project by DISTRICT.

5) Property Coverage — Valuable Papers: Property coverage on an all-risk,
replacement cost form with Valuable Papers insurance sufficient to assure
the restoration of any documents, memoranda, reports, plans or other
similar data, whether in hard copy or electronic form, relating to the services
provided by CONSULTANT under this Agreement.

6.4  CHANGES: Ifthe DISTRICT requests a change in the Scope of Work, an equitable
adjustment shall be made and this Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly.
CONSULTANT must assert any claim for adjustment under this clause in writing within thirty
(30) calendar days from the date of receipt from CONSULTANT of the notification of change
unless the DISTRICT grants a further period of time before the date of final payment under this
Agreement.

6.5 NOTICES: All notices to either Party by the other shall be made in writing and
delivered or mailed to such Party at their respective addresses as follows, or to other such address
as either Party may designate, and said notices shall be deemed to have been made when delivered
or, if mailed, five (5) days after mailing.

To DISTRICT: Helendale Community Services District
26540 Vista Road, Suite B
P.O. Box 359
Helendale, CA 92342
Attn: General Manager

To CONSULTANT: ALR Engineering.
Address:
City/St/Zip
Attn:

6.6 CONSULTANT’S ASSIGNED PERSONNEL: CONSULTANT designates Mr.
Jeroen Olthof to have immediate responsibility for the performance of the work for the Project and
for all matters relating to performance under this Agreement. Substitution of any assigned
personnel shall require the prior written approval of the DISTRICT. If the DISTRICT determines
that a proposed substitution is not acceptable, then, at the request of the DISTRICT,
CONSULTANT shall substitute with a person acceptable to the DISTRICT.



6.7
(a)

(b)

6.8

TERMINATION:

The DISTRICT may terminate this Agreement or abandon any portion of the
Project, with or without cause, upon written notice. thereof to CONSULTANT.
CONSULTANT may terminate its obligation to provide further services under this
Agreement upon thirty (30) calendar days written notice only in the event of
substantial failure by the DISTRICT to perform in accordance with the terms of
this Agreement through no fault of the CONSULTANT.

In the event of termination of this Agreement, or abandonment of any portion of
the Project by the DISTRICT, the DISTRICT shall be immediately given title to all
original drawings and other documents developed for the Project, and the sole right
and remedy of CONSULTANT shall be to receive payment for all amounts due and
not previously paid to CONSULTANT for services completed or in progress in
accordance with the Agreement prior to such date of termination. If termination
occurs prior to completion of any task for which payment has not been made, the
fee for services performed during such task shall be based on an amount mutually
agreed to by the DISTRICT and CONSULTANT. Such payments available to the
CONSULTANT under this paragraph shall not include costs related to lost profit
associated with the expected completion of the work or other such payments
relating to the benefit of this Agreement.

ATTORNEYS’ FEES: In the event that either the DISTRICT or CONSULTANT

brings an action or proceeding for damages for an alleged breach of any provision of this
Agreement, to interpret this Agreement or determine the rights of and duties of either Party in
relation thereto, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover as part of such action or proceeding
all litigation, arbitration, mediation and collection expenses, including witness fees, court costs,
and reasonable attorneys’ fees. Such fees shall be determined by the Court in such litigation or in
a separate action brought for that purpose. Mediation will be attempted if both Parties mutually
agree before, during, or after any such action or proceeding has begun.

6.9
(@)

(®)

INDEMNITY;

CONSULTANT shall defend, indemnify, and hold DISTRICT, including its
directors, officers, employees, and agents harmless from and against any and all
claims, demands, causes of action, suits, debts, obligations, liabilities, losses,
damages, costs, expenses, reasonable attorney’s fees, awards, fines, settlements,
judgments, or losses of whatever nature, character, and description (the “Claims™),
to the extent any or all such Claims arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligent
acts, errors or omissions, recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT
and/or any of CONSULTANT’s subcontractors, including their respective
directors, officers, employees, agents and assigns.

CONSULTANT shall defend, indemnify and hold DISTRICT, including its
directors, officers and employees harmless from and against any and all claims,
demands, causes of action, suits, debts, obligations, liabilities, losses, damages,
costs, expenses, reasonable attorney’s fees, awards, fines, settlements, judgments
or losses of whatever nature, character, and description, with respect to or arising
out of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, copyright or



(c)

6.10

trademark and arising out of the use of any equipment or materials furnished under
this Agreement by the CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT’s subcontractors,
including their respective directors, officers, employees, agents and assigns, or out
of the processes or actions employed by, or on behalf of, the CONSULTANT or
CONSULTANT’s subcontractors, including their respective directors, officers,
employees, agents and assigns, in connection with the performance of services
under this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall have the right, in order to avoid such
claims or actions, to substitute at its expense non-infringing equipment, materials
or processes, or to modify at its expense such infringing equipment, materials, and
processes so they become non-infringing, provided that such substituted and
modified equipment, materials, and processes shall meet all the requirements and
be subject to all the provisions of this Agreement.

It is the intent of the Parties to this Agreement that the defense, indemnity and hold
harmless obligations of CONSULTANT under this Agreement shall be as broad and
inclusive as may be allowed under California Civil Code §§ 2778 through 2784.5, or
other similar state or federal law.

SAFETY: CONSULTANT shall perform the work in tull compliance with

applicable State and Federal safety requirements including, but not limited to, Occupational Safety
and Health Administration requirements.

(a)

(b)

6.11

CONSULTANT shall take all precautions necessary for the safety of, and
prevention of damage to, property on or adjacent to the Project site, and for the
safety of, and prevention of injury to, persons, including DISTRICT’s employees,
CONSULTANT’s employees, and third persons. All work shall be performed
entirely at CONSULTANT’s risk. CONSULTANT shall comply with the
insurance requirements set forth in Section 6.3 of this Agreement.
CONSULTANT shall also furnish the DISTRICT with a copy of any injury
prevention program established for the CONSULTANT’s employees pursuant to
California Labor Code Section 6401.7, including any necessary documentation
regarding implementation of the program. CONSULTANT hereby certifies that its
employees have been trained in the program, and procedures are in place to train
employees whenever new substances, processes, procedures, or equipment are
introduced. CONSULTANT shall demonstrate compliance with California Labor
Code Section 6401.7 by maintaining a copy of its Injury and Illness Prevention Plan
at the Project site and making it available to the DISTRICT.,

EXAMINATION OF RECORDS: All original drawings, specifications, reports,

calculations, and other documents or electronic data developed by CONSULTANT for the Project
shall be furnished to and become the property of the DISTRICT. CONSULTANT agrees that the
DISTRICT will have access to and the right to examine any directly pertinent books, documents,
papers, and records of any and all of the transactions relating to this Agreement.

6.12
(2)

OWNERSHIP OF SOFTWARE:

Subject to payment of all compensation due under this Agreement and all other
terms and conditions herein, CONSULTANT hereby grants DISTRICT a
nonexclusive, transferable, royalty-free license to use the Software furnished to



DISTRICT by CONSULTANT under this Agreement. The license granted herein

shall authorize DISTRICT to:
(1) Install the Software on computer systems owned, leased or otherwise
controlled by DISTRICT;

(2)  Utilize the Software for its internal data-processing purposes; and
(3)  Copy the Software and distribute as desired to exercise the rights granted
herein.

(b)  CONSULTANT retains its entire right, title and interest in the Software developed
under this Agreement. DISTRICT acknowledges that CONSULTANT owns or
holds a license to use and sublicense various pre-existing development tools,
routines, subroutines and other programs, data and materials that CONSULTANT
may include in the Software developed under this Agreement. This material shall
be referred to hereafter as “Background Technology.”

(c) DISTRICT agrees that CONSULTANT shall retain any and all rights
CONSULTANT may have in the Background Technology. CONSULTANT grants
DISTRICT an unrestricted, nonexclusive, perpetual, fully paid-up worldwide
license to use the Background Technology in the Software developed and delivered
to DISTRICT under this Agreement, and all updates and revisions thereto.
However, DISTRICT shall make no other commercial use of the Background
Technology without CONSULTANT’s written consent,

6.13 INTEGRATION AND AMENDMENT: This Agreement contains the entire
understanding between the DISTRICT and CONSULTANT as to those matters contained herein.
No other representations, covenants, undertakings or other prior or contemporaneous agreements,
oral or written, respecting those matters, which are not specifically incorporated herein, may be
deemed in any way to exist or to bind any of the Parties hereto. Each Party acknowledges that it
has not executed this Agreement in reliance on any promise, representation or warranty not set
forth herein. This Agreement may not be amended except by a writing signed by all Parties hereto.

6.14 ASSIGNMENT: Neither Party shall assign or transfer its interest in this Agreement
without written consent of the other Party. All terms, conditions, and provisions of this Agreement
shall inure to and shall bind each of the Parties hereto, and each of their respective heirs, executors,
administrators, successors, and assigns.

6.15 GOVERNING LAW: This Agreement shall be construed as if it was jointly
prepared by both Parties hereto, and any uncertainty or ambiguity contained herein shall not be
mnterpreted against the Party drafting same. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of
this Agreement and the Scope of Work, the provisions of this Agreement shall control. This
Agreement shall be enforced and governed by, the laws of the State of California. If any action is
brought to interpret or enforce any term of this Agreement, the action shall be brought in a state
court situated in the County of San Bernardino, State of California, or in a federal court with
jurisdiction in the County of San Bernardino, State of California.

10



6.16 HEADINGS: Article and Section headings in this Agreement are for convenience
only and are not intended to be used in interpreting or construing the terms, covenants, and
conditions of this Agreement.

6.17 PARTIAL INVALIDITY: If any term, covenant, condition, or provision of this
Agreement is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the
remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect, and shall in no way be
affected, impaired, or invalidated thereby.

6.18 EFFECT OF DISTRICT’S WAIVER: Any failure by the DISTRICT to enforce
any provision of this Agreement, or any waiver thereof by the DISTRICT, shall not constitute a
waiver of its right to enforce subsequent violations of the same or any other terms or conditions
herein.

6.19 AUTHORITY: The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant
that they have the legal capacity and authority to sign this Agreement on behalf of and to so bind
their respective legal entities.

6.20 MUTUAL WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES: CONSULTANT and
DISTRICT waive all consequential or special damages, including, but not limited to, loss of use,
profits, revenue, business opportunity, or production, for claims, disputes, or other matters arising
out of or relating to the Agreement or the services provided by CONSULTANT, regardless of
whether such claim or dispute is based upon breach of contract, willful misconduct or negligent
act or omission of either of them or their employees, agents, subconsultants, or other legal theory,
even if the affected party has knowledge of the possibility of such damages. This mutual waiver
shall not apply to third-party Claims and shall survive termination or completion of this
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date
first written above.

CONSULTANT DISTRICT
By: By:__

Kimberly Cox, General Manager
Helendale Community Services District

11



EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF WORK

12



ALR Engineering and Testing

Cost Proposal for the Helendale Community Services Project Management
Title Hourly Rate Qty Total

Principal Civil Engineer S 200.00 20 s 4,000.00
Senior Associate Engineer s 180.00 80 S 14,400.00
Senior Field Technician [ 105.00 160 S 16,800.00
Lab Technician S 90.00 20 S 1,800.00

$ 37,000.00



	06172021C Agenda
	061721BoardPacket

